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CORPORATE INFORMATION

NAER

Place of Incorporation
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBEEE

Revenue (HK$ million)
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBERE

Consolidated Results

mEXEE
Year ended 30 June
BZEAA=1THLEE
(HK$ million) 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
(BEHET) L W —E—Ei —E-NF -\ —S—+HF
Revenue A 5,761 5,119 5,316 5,374 4,814
GP% EF=E 22% 23% 22% 21% 21%
Profit before taxation FRELAT &R 421 400 398 391 319
Taxation BiE (63) (83) (58) (65) (46)
Profit for the year AE BT 358 317 340 326 273
Consolidated Assets and Liabilities
mEEERAE
At 30 June
WAB=+H
(HK$ million) 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
(B¥EET) ==l T2 —E-hEF ZE-N\§ ZE—+F
Total assets BmEE 3,676 3,215 3,062 2,871 2,561
Total liabilities wmas (795) (738) (727) (701) (655)
Non-controlling interests FEiZ &S - - n (11 (11)
Equity attributable to AT RRE
shareholders of the =
Company 2,881 2,477 2,324 2,159 1,895
Key Financial Indicators
FEBKIEE
Year ended 30 June
BEANA=1THLEE
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
Ll —E T —E-AF T\ —ZZT—+tHF
Earnings per share (HK$) SREF(E%T)
Basic I=WN 1.51 1.34 1.44 1.38 1.15
Diluted e 1.51 1.34 1.43 1.37 1.12
Dividend per share (HK$) BRRE(B%T) 0.48 0.45 0.44 0.40 0.35
Equity-debt ratio* ERERKE=E 100:0 100:0 100:0 100:0 100:0
* Equity-debt ratio is defined as the ratio of the total equity * REERLEERARQARREGEESEFE

attributable to equity shareholders of the Company to net debt.
Net debt represents leases liabilities less cash and short term funds.

BERNLE - FERBEHEEERRER
SHES -

MIE(EB)BRAR | — B - —F 5, >



CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EEEIREHRES

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Lam Soon (Hong
Kong) Limited (the “Company”), | present herewith the annual
report of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”
or “Lam Soon”) for the financial year ended 30 June 2021.

Almost 2 years on, the world is still struggling to win the war
against the COVID-19 pandemic with vaccines and lockdowns.
The social and economic toll resulting from the pandemic, coupled
with constant geopolitical tensions, is deep and wide. Amidst such
difficult conditions, | am pleased that our businesses had exhibited
agility to navigate the storm by embracing these challenges as a
new business reality; making them an integral part of our business
planning and operational considerations.

The Group recorded an increase of 13% year-on-year in both
revenue and net profit at HK$5,761 million and HK$358 million
respectively, a satisfactory performance under the circumstances.
Sales momentum was supported as domestic demand, especially in
China, recovered and brought with it new opportunities. However,
at the same time, we faced new challenges with significantly
higher raw material costs affecting our edible oils and homecare
products divisions. Despite this, mitigated by higher bran prices
in our Flour division, we ended the year with overall Group gross
profit margin at 22.3%, lower by 1.0%. As at 30 June 2021, the
Group remained in a healthy financial position with a cash balance
of HK$ 1,485 million.

-

RAERXKBE(RB)ERIA(A2F Nz
ExE((ESE)) REARARAENBELF
(BB AKE ]S [RIENBE-Z=-—FA
STREMBFEEZFR -

BERBORKBEAAME > BE2HRADEBD
BEREEREHERITRCOVID-19FBERES -
COVID-19%& 1M L B BUAHE R R » &K
E2mRANEERLEIRL - TMNLREFE
BT BURAEE > BANERER L SHMN
BN SHRMEBHE  HMkEAETE
¥ FEHRAEKRIREEZSETTRNEHMN

—=o

XEBIHNBEBRARGEFR BB
5,761,000,0007t & & #358,000,0007C » &4
BR13%  RLEREST  HEESARE -
BEEBRAER(AERPEER)EHR  HED
CEETETE T - WHIR T HLE o A 0 EHILE
B RMEERHE  RMBRAKRELHA
EHEMNERERIEEEER D PERY
ZoFEWY > HREHRIBNBEEER
5 RESBER REX BAEEMNEAE
FZEE223% » THE1.0%  RZE=—FxA
=t+8 AEEZHBRRER BaEHA

7 #£1,485,000,0007T °
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EEEIREHRES

Accordingly, the Board is pleased to recommend a final dividend
of HK$0.33 per share at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.
In addition to the interim dividend of HK$0.15 per share paid
earlier this year, total dividend for the year amounts to HK$0.48
per share. The total payout for this financial year at approximately
HK$116,810,000 represents the sixth consecutive year of growth
in dividend per share.

Strategic Overview

In the face of continued uncertainty and difficult economic
conditions, the Group remains steadfast to build a long-term
sustainable enterprise, with professional management that
adheres to investment and financial disciplines. Within this ambit,
the Group, led by its new Group Managing Director, had re-
strategized a new 4 Year business plan. This focuses the business
in three key areas; namely (i) improving its brand and product
differentiation, (ii) the pursuit of a premiumization strategy and
(iii) business growth via innovation in products and the expansion
of new geographies. This is supported by plans to strengthen the
business infrastructure, supply chain and the enhanced use of IT
and analytics in its operating model.

Hit ESEMAZERDEBITWRRABE
Fe LRBEAPRESRBE0.337T « BRRAK
FEREBONPHRESREBE 15T
AEEREBELEBRBY048T - RBHE
EAETIREABY116,810,0007T » BEANF
BRBREHEBER -

SRR AL

AEBEERTRENEHMOIMZEXREEA
7 EHEFENTHARTRBRENEET
g FAEENBRETBHITERMAUSEZ
¥ RESHER  AEEEHREEEESA
HENRET  EFHET ZHN4AFER
g MEBAEBERETR=EREREE
Mg AEERERERERL ; (IBRE
BAbREE LR (i) BB E M Al R iR
REREBER - AREEINERBZERR
it~ HEEURAEREBERNA P NEEAENR
B oM T B AR ER A E o
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EEEIREHRES

We substantially completed in June 2021 a new Specialty Fats
Factory in Jintan, East China. The new plant will commence
operations in the first quarter of the next financial year. Specialty
Fats strongly complements our Flour products portfolio — apart
from sharing a common customer and distribution base, it also
presents opportunities to create synergy from a commercial,
technical, R&D and operational perspective. Fitted with the latest
equipment and technology, this new investment will further
strengthen the Group’s penetration into the baking industry.

The Group has an Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG")
task force to focus on the ESG issues and practices. The Group
ESG framework is based on four pillars, namely “Towards a
Greener Future”, “Empowering Our People”, “Conducting
Business with Honour” and “Caring for our Community”. Over
the years, the ESG task force had initiated various actions to
enhance ESG performance. To support the Group’s commitment
to be a responsible steward for environmental sustainability, the
task force has been working on a new framework that includes
targets, initiatives and performance metrics for energy use, carbon
emission, water and waste management.

This year also marks a significant milestone of the Company,
being the 60th anniversary of Lam Soon. Through the years, Lam
Soon has built a solid portfolio of quality products and trusted
brands that enable the Group to not only survive, but grow
under challenging and difficult conditions. The strong foundation
underpinning Lam Soon will continue to be strengthened and be a
base for growth going forward.

Last but not least, on behalf of the Board, | would like to express
our sincere gratitude to our shareholders, customers, partners
and employees for their unwavering support and commitment to
the Group during these unprecedented and exigent times. The
dedication and resolve of our employees in responding to changes
in market conditions to continuously drive the business forward
had been instrumental to the Group’s performance in the year.
We remain confident that the Group will continue to progress and
deliver long term sustainable value to all stakeholders.

KWEK Leng Hai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 August 2021
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

FHE R

OVERVIEW

The financial year just ended had been another year of volatility
under a prolonged COVID-19 pandemic. The Group had
demonstrated adaptability and agility to withstand a rapidly
changing market, while staying on course to pursue its long-term
mission and strategy. During these times, the Group embarked
on a heightened risk management mode and has been closely
monitoring our costs and expenditures, except for strategically
important investments in production infrastructure, brand
equity and channel development. Based on the Group's strong
fundamentals, we managed to achieve double-digit growth in
both sales and profits under challenging circumstances, which
serves as a strong indication of the Group’s overall strength and
resilience.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

Amidst the unprecedented challenges posed by a continuing
COVID-19 pandemic, Group sales revenue increased by 13%
from the previous year, driven mainly by increased sales of our
core products in PRC, supported by favourable bran prices and
appreciation of the Renminbi.

Due to unfavourable raw material costs (in particular the increased
costs of edible oils), our gross profit margin was lower by 1
percentage point to 22%. A specific focus on implementation
of various cost control measures has resulted in an overall
improvement of operational efficiencies, which in turn led to
a reduction of operating expenses as a percentage of sales by
1 percentage point compared to last year. Profit for the year
increased by 13% to HK$358 million, a result of sales growth as
well as reduction in taxation expenses.

-

M=

COVID-19RBHETR - RELE  AIMAER
NP HRFEXRARBEIZ - AEERB T
ERERE D MBEMY - BEAAEAZ T RE -
EIRFERFHL - BITREIE D KRR o EILH
B ARERRERSERREERN  #K
ARIETFUARDEE  HEEERRE - @
REERRBRREIEANEZRERN - BE
FE2RE BEREARERINEREE K
FEERBERNTEFMAUBIER - BT
REBENBEORRES

B RER

BEZE-ABERESZH(COVID-19 ) EIFEXR
RITHEEESRTAMRENRE  XEE
SHEWAB EEEZIN13% » TEFERKRMZ
DERETEMNEEEMEM - UARENNE
REERARBHE -

AR B R AR AN (55 Bl = & A Jm B A B9 38 0)
SIEERMEMNETBIEEDHE22% ° HM
PHRERERSTEMANERER  EEXEX
RERAEFRA SEEERGHEEENLE
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

FHE R

BUSINESS REVIEW

Food Segment

Despite the continuing lifestyle restrictions impacting channel
dynamics, an economic slow-down in the lower household income
segment and the increased polarisation of consumer spending
habits and sentiments, revenue from our food segment increased
by 13% to HK$4,957 million, with a corresponding increase in
profit from operations of 3% to HK$379 million. This growth was
the net result of the Group’s conscious efforts to strategically
focus on selected growing segments, improving our product mix,
and the execution of agile and responsive sales and marketing
activities, while leveraging on external factors such as favourable
bran prices and Renminbi appreciation.

In response to the COVID-19 pandemic’s continued impact on
consumer behaviour and channel dynamics, our Flour Division
made short-term tactical adjustments whilst staying focused
on its long-term strategic plans to transform itself from being
an ingredients supplier to an all-round solution provider to our
customers.

On the product and marketing front, we continue to differentiate
our products in support of our premiumisation strategy. We
made increased efforts to drive our signature Royal Sakura range
and introduced new premium products such as Golden Statue
Japanese Flour and French Flour, with a view to enhance product
segmentation and meet our customers’ diverse needs.

On the other hand, our sales team had executed appropriate
measures which deepened and widened our distribution coverage
across different tiers of cities in China. In view of the accelerated
shift to digital channels, the Group had dedicated more resources
to interactive online communication channels via live-streaming
and a series of social media platforms to stay connected with our
customers during this challenging period.

In relation to our strategic investment, with our project team’s
discipline, dedication and hard work, the establishment of our
new Specialty Fats Plant in Jintan was substantially completed in
June 2021. The new plant will commence operations in the first
quarter of the next financial year. Specialty fats is a key component
complementing our Flour portfolio as they share common targeted
customers, synergized distribution network as well as other
operational and system requirements. The new plant, equipped
with state-of-the-art facilities, will provide a new solid pillar to
support business growth in the near future.
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

FHE R

BUS'N ESS REVIEW (continued)

Food Segment (continued)

During the year, our Edible Qil Division had been adversely
impacted by significant increase in oil prices, which gave rise
to higher cost of goods sold. In response, we had put in place
various mitigating measures to control related expenses and also
instituted compensatory price increases across channels to counter
the higher raw material costs. In order to continue to support our
position as a premium brand in the Edible Oil market, we remained
committed to spend on strategically important brand-building and
marketing activities; for instance, the launch of our Knife Brand
Celebrity Campaign (the “Campaign”) featuring a celebrity artist
on various platforms, ranging from television advertisements to
promotional exposure on different kinds of public transportation in
China.

For the purpose of evaluating the effectiveness of our Campaign
and striving for continuous improvement when executing such
activities in the future, we arranged a post-campaign assessment!
conducted by a professional party which indicated that the
Campaign was effective in enhancing our Knife Brand’s consumer
appeal. The Campaign had successfully repositioned our long-
standing Knife Brand and equipped it with a contemporary image,
which helped differentiate the brand from market competitors.

We considered this to be a valuable investment that had not
only fueled the continuous growth in our current core markets,
including Shenzhen and Guangzhou, but also facilitated regional
expansion into other Guangdong cities and enhanced our brand
position in e-commerce channels. For the mature Hong Kong
market, our continuous efforts in our premiumisation strategy
had successfully led to an increase in market share for our Knife
Supreme range?, despite the lower profits as a result of intense
price competition.

As regards Manuka Health honey products, the Group continued
to implement its distribution in China primarily through various
e-commerce platforms. We believe that we have established the
foundation for this business.

! 2021 AC Nielsen 2021 Post Knife Campaign Customised Research
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

FHE R

BUS'N ESS REVIEW (continued)

Home Care Segment

In respect of the Home Care Division, despite a revenue growth
by 8% year-on-year to HK$805 million, the negative impact of
increasing costs of raw materials and intense market competition
had resulted in a smaller increase in profit from operations by 2%
to HK$86 million.

During the year, social lockdowns and movement restrictions
caused by the COVID-19 pandemic accelerated a change
in consumer preference from physical stores to online sales
platforms. We will closely monitor and analyze the consumer
behavioural pattern, so as to make appropriate strategic and
tactical adjustments as and when necessary. The Home Care
division will continue to pursue its product differentiation
and premiumization strategies, as well as expand our product
categories and geographical coverage to drive sustainable growth.
To this end, the Group had launched new product variants under
the AXE and Labour brands, with the AXE brand image refreshed
via a cross-brand collaboration with a local design “B. Duck”. Our
sales team also implemented measures which not only deepened
and widened our channel coverage in the Guangdong province,
but also further promoted our brands on various e-commerce
channels.

OUTLOOK

Looking ahead, we remain cautiously optimistic that the overall
business environment will improve in tandem with progress made
in vaccination rates and related medical treatments, as well as
timely actions taken by different governments such as contact
tracing and lockdowns to counter and contain the COVID-19
pandemic. However, we recognize that the situation remains fluid,
not least because of the emergence of highly contagious variants
of COVID-19.

The Group had been agile in its response and will remain vigilant
and disciplined to adopt best practices to safeguard the general
well-being of our employees, customers and all other stakeholders.
Higher commodity costs coupled with intense price competition
would remain challenges, in particular for our Edible Qil Division.
The price of edible oil is expected to remain high in the short term
and the situation will be closely monitored to ensure that any
impact to the bottom line is properly managed.

In spite of these challenging times, the Group remains focused and
committed to the continued execution of its strategies to pursue
long-term sustainable growth for our business.
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

FHE R

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Management has been provided with the following key
performance indicators (“KPIs”) to manage its business, through
evaluating, controlling and setting strategies to improve
performance. Such KPIs include revenue, gross profit margin,
profit for the year, inventory and trade receivable turnover days.

Group Results

For the year ended 30 June 2021, the Group’s revenue increased
by 13% to HK$5,761 million. The increase was mainly due to the
growth of core products in PRC and favourable bran prices, as well
as appreciation of the Renminbi. The Group’s gross profit margin
reduced by 1 percentage point to 22.3% due to unfavourable raw
material costs. Profit for the year increased by 13% to HK$358
million, a result of sales growth as well as reduction in taxation
expenses.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

At 30 June 2021, the Group had a cash balance of HK$1,485
million (2020: HK$ 1,530 million). About 63% of these funds were
denominated in Renminbi, 34% in Hong Kong dollars and 3%
in United States dollars. In addition, the Group invested in fixed
income government bonds in Mainland China and equity securities
listed in Hong Kong with carrying amounts of HK$68 million
(2020: Nil) and HK$82 million (2020: Nil) respectively as at 30 June
2021.

Banking facilities available to Group companies and not yet drawn
as at 30 June 2021 amounted to HK$610 million (2020: HK$611
million).

The Group centralises all the financing and treasury activities at
corporate level. There are internal controls over the application of
financial and hedging instruments which can only be employed to
manage and mitigate the commodity price risk and currency risk
for trade purposes.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Liquidity and Financial Resources (continued)

At 30 June 2021, the inventory turnover days' were 72 days (2020:
62 days). The trade receivable turnover days? improved to 18 days
(2020: 21 days).

In view of the strong liquidity and financial position, management
believes the Group will have sufficient resources to fund its daily
operations and capital expenditure commitments.

Foreign Currency Exposure

The Group has operations in Mainland China, Hong Kong and
Macau. Local costs and revenue are primarily denominated in
Renminbi, Hong Kong dollars, and Macau Patacas.

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through sales
and purchases, which give rise to receivables, payables and
cash balances that are denominated in a foreign currency, i.e. a
currency other than the functional currency of the operations to
which the transactions relate. The Group monitors its exposure by
considering factors including, but not limited to, exchange rate
movement of the relevant foreign exchange currencies as well
as the Group’s cash flow requirements to ensure that its foreign
exchange exposure is kept at an acceptable level. Details of the
foreign currency exposure of the Group are set out in note 24(d) to
the financial statements.

Net exchange gains for the year is set out in note 6 to the financial
statements.

Equity Price Exposure

The Group maintains an investment portfolio which comprises
equity securities listed in Hong Kong for investment yield
enhancement purpose. Equity investments are subject to asset
allocation limits.

! The calculation of inventory turnover days is based on the closing
balances divided by the preceding 3 months’ cost of sales and
multiplied by 91 days.

2 The calculation of trade receivables turnover days is based on the
closing balances divided by the preceding 3 months’ revenue and
multiplied by 91 days.
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Capital Expenditure

During the year ended 30 June 2021, the Group invested a total
sum of HK$140 million (2020: HK$93 million) on construction of
new plant and new production lines in China and acquisition of
other plant equipment.

Details of the capital expenditure commitments are set out in note
25(a) to the financial statements.

Human Resources

As at 30 June 2021, there were 1,690 employees in the Group.
Annual increment and year-end performance bonus mechanism
were incorporated in the Group’s remuneration policy to retain,
reward and motivate individuals for their contributions to the
Group. In addition, the Company also operates a share option
scheme for granting of options to eligible employees.

Relation with Shareholders and Investors

The Company encourages two-way communication with its
stakeholders. Extensive information about the Group’s activities
is provided in the Annual and Interim Reports, which are sent to
shareholders. The Group also maintains a number of websites
to provide a wide range of information on the Group and its
businesses.
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Changzhou Lam Soon Edible Oils Company Limited June 2021
Opening Ceremony 202156 A
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CORPORATE HIGHLIGHTS

EELE
Bakery China 2021 April 2021
20MEF23EHEEREERES 2021548
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CORPORATE HIGHLIGHTS

EELE
Lam Soon Cup - Final Competition of April 2021
the iba. UIBC. Cup of Bakers in China 2021548
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China International Import Expo November 2020
HEEBEOEES 20205114
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CORPORATE HIGHLIGHTS
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Honour & Awards

REERRIE

-

Lam Soon (Shandong) Food Company Limited
was awarded “Product Quality Award — Golden
Grain Award"” by National Trade Fair for
Manufacturing and Sale of Grain and Edible Oils
MIE(LR)RRERARKEZBEEBEHDHE

FEEHER EnEER-SRE

Shekou Lam Soon Flour Mills Company Limited
was awarded “National Excellent Enterprise
with Foreign Investment — Excellent

Tax Payment and Turnover (2019)" by China
Association of Enterprises with Foreign
Investment and the Shenzhen Association of
Enterprises with Foreign Investment.
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Jiangsu Lam Soon Food Company Limited: —

The flour brands “Royal Sakura Japanese Style Cake Flour” and “Golden Statue Ultra Fine
Wholegrain Bread Flour” were awarded “Bakery China Innovation” by Bakery China 2021
I#MEIERMBBERAR  —
BERMBEXNEHBRSEGREAEEREENREFBETEEREER A EmE

H;E-"a“

R

WP RLANTAANS S

iE 45

[EET LEA T L bl
TR
iERAmALR RAS
(FEE RS TN R

a8

.qgm

Briddaanas i
HErZR

MIE(EB)BRAR | — B - —F 5, 25



CORPORATE HIGHLIGHTS
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Honour & Awards

REERRIE

-

Shekou Lam Soon Flour Mills Company Limited
was awarded Work Safety Standardization
Certificate by the Shenzhen Nanshan Safety
Production Association
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Lam Soon (Shandong) Food Company Limited
was awarded the Work Safety Standardization
Certificate by the State Administration of Work ; e 3
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CORPORATE HIGHLIGHTS
SELE

Honour & Awards
BB A8 1F

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited was awarded “Hong Kong’s Most Outstanding Services
Awards 2021 (Most Outstanding Food Manufacturer Of The Year)” by CORPHUB
FMIE (&) BRABEECORPHUBE R [ EBREFRB AR 2021 (FERALHERRER) ]
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“Knife” was granted the Outstanding
Marketing Award and Star Supermarket Brand
under the PARKNSHOP Super Brands Award
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About Lam Soon
Our Sustainability Mission and Vision

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the "Group”) is built on the strong heritage of value creation for
our stakeholders and communities within which we operate. Over
the years, we have taken a progressive approach in integrating
sustainability into our businesses, towards a stronger, more resilient
group. We are committed to: growing our businesses responsibly,
balancing environmental with economic considerations, as well as
meeting the expectation of our stakeholders and contributing to our
communities.

Our Values

The Group continues to strive for excellence in its day-to-day business
operations and embrace the following core values in all aspects:

BEAMIE
BANTREAREES RS

MIE(ERB)ERAR(TARANRENBELRF
HEATAEEDEIERBFNERRMAEL
ENHBRABEEZEREEL - ZFFX - &K
FERBGEMB S T ERRMARMNE
%o EEEBEERAREE - RFAFD - B
BEANEERREAMANES  FHRRREL
BEREZ  UREIFHENHERD/HE
EHER -

RANEESR

FEEEBTAREREBEPEREM  AE
EBERERAUTZOMEE :

Honour

To conduct business with honour

BE LAEEB 2 AETER

./

Human
resources

ANER

To enhance the quality of human resources —
as the essence of management excellence

RAANEFREE - EREUEE 2 B8

Entrepreneurship

S

To pursue management vision and foster entrepreneurship

BREEESRIZELEREH

./

Innovation

RIFT KERBIRIH

To nurture and be committed to innovation

Quality

4E

expectations

To provide products and services that consistently exceed customers' N\
SERMBNEFBRENERRRS J

Progress
i

To continuously improve existing operations and to position
for expansion and new business opportunities

FERERRLEURBRER KRR IET &G

To ensure oneness in purpose, harmony and friendship in A\
the pursuit of prosperity for all J

RERRINIER - #ER B R -2 MERRFEREN ARG

Social
responsibility

HesT AENENERTEE

To create wealth for the betterment of society
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About Lam Soon (ontinued)
Our Values (continued)

These intrinsic values form a major part of the Group’s core value
system and have served as the foundation for its sustainable
growth and development.

Our Business

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited has been publicly listed on
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange since 1972. The Group is
headquartered in Hong Kong and is principally engaged in the
manufacturing, trading and processing of food and home care
products in Hong Kong, the PRC and Macau. The Group comprises
a broad portfolio of famous brands, which include “Knife”, “Red
Lantern”, “AXE", “Labour”, “Golden Statue”, “American Roses”,
“Royal Sakura” and “Double Peach”.

About This Report

Reporting Standard

This is the fifth Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG")
report of Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited, highlighting its ESG
performance, with disclosure reference made to the ESG Reporting
Guide as described in Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of the Securities (“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) and Guidance issued by
the Stock Exchange. The Group has complied with all the “comply
or explain” provisions set out in the ESG Reporting Guide during
the Reporting Period.

Reporting Period

From 1 July 2020 to 30 June 2021 (the “Reporting Period”).

Reporting Scope

This ESG report covers the Group’s overall ESG performance in
the manufacture and distribution of food and home care products
in Hong Kong and Mainland China, which accounted for 98%
of the Group’s total revenue during the Reporting Period, unless
otherwise stated. The Group’s major operational sites are:

(i) the Lam Soon Building in Hong Kong, which comprises the
headquarters office and an edible oil plant;

(i) the Shenzhen office in Shekou, Shenzhen in the People's
Republic of China (“PRC");

(iii) the five flour mills in Shekou (Shenzhen), Yixing, Jintan,
Qionglai and Qingzhou in the PRC;
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About This Report (continued)

Reporting Scope (continued)

(iv) the edible oil plant in Shekou, Shenzhen in the PRC; and
(v) the homecare product plant in Guangzhou in the PRC.

The ESG performance of the business operation in Macau, sales
offices in Beijing and Shanghai were not reported as they did not
have any significant ESG impact during the Reporting Period. No
major operational changes had occurred during the Reporting
Period.

Feedback

The Group welcomes stakeholders’ feedback on our ESG approach
and performance. Please give your suggestions or share your views
with us via email at webmaster@lamsoon.com.

Our Approach to Sustainability
Environmental, Social and Governance Management

The Group sees the benefits of proactively tackling ESG issues,
believing that its strategic focus on sustainability and its ability to
manage associated ESG risks can create not only tangible value
for its business, but also long-term values for its employees,
customers, the environment and the broader society, towards a
stronger and more resilient group.

The Group formalised the ESG Governance Structure in November
2020, in which, the Board of Directors of the Company
(the "Board”) oversees the sustainability management and
performance of the Group and has the overall responsibility for the
Group’s ESG strategy and reporting. The Group has dedicated its
effort to ensuring its compliance with relevant legal and regulatory
requirements as described in the latest Listing Rules.

The Group also incorporates ESG related risks into its Enterprise
Risk Management ("ERM"”) Framework that has integrated the
processes for managing risks and controls into daily operations and
decision-making processes. Under the Group’s ERM Framework,
a structured approach was employed on an ongoing basis to
identify, assess, treat, monitor and report on the key risks affecting
the sustainability of the Group’s business. During the Reporting
Period, we have identified physical risk and transition risk as our
climate-related risks within our ERM Framework, corresponding
risk management programs and actions have been developed and
implemented with aims to bring them under the Group’s overall
risk appetite level.

For details of the Group’s corporate governance practices, please
refer to the Section of “Corporate Governance Report” of this
annual report.
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Our Approach to Sustainability coninves  FKPIE AT EFE RN @)

ESG Governance Structure at Lam Soon FIENERE  HeREANETELE

Board of Directors

Exg

N

° Has overall responsibility for the Group’s ESG and to oversee the
sustainability management and performance of the Group.
HAKENRR HBRECSHERES  WEBAKETHER
RHEERKRE -

J

Board Audit and
Risk Management
Committee
EEgEakER
EEZEY

To assist the Board to oversee the Company’s overall risk management and
governance issues including, among others:

BYESEEEANANERAREERERSE  HPh8E

° To monitor the ESG reporting progress.
EERRIE HEREAREEE -

° To review the ESG report as well as the ESG related risks and issues.
EHRE  HEREARERIEBR  HERELHEERBREH

ESG Task Force
RBRiE -8R
ERIENAE
Group Managing Director
EEESAKE
Chief Financial Officer

Elp s

General Managers of
business units

BHEBE VALK

Heads of various functions
BEHREEEE

N

o To develop and oversee ESG strategies and to monitor overall ESG
performance.
FIEREERE HEREARKRERRE HERERERER
I o

o To implement the strategies, setting their respective
actions and goals, devising and implementing related plans
and policies.
BieXu - HIEHSEENTERER  HIERERBETSIRBUR -

o To work with business units and departments on a regular basis to
collect data, track operational performance and coordinating the
preparation of the ESG report.
EHEEBEN RIS FEARERE - BHEERRRHGBHERR
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Our Approach to Sustainability (continued)
Four-Pillar Approach to Sustainability

The Group believes that an effective ESG management structure
is a key factor to business success and has therefore adopted
an integrated four-pillar approach to its overall sustainability
management to manage ESG issues on the environment, human
capital, corporate governance and social capital.
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ESG Management at Lam Soon
MIEZRE HERERNERE

PILLAR 1 PILLAR 2
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PILLAR 3
TR=

PILLAR 4
XD
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Caring for
our Community

Empowering
our People
BRBE T HAIM
ET

Towards a
Greener Future

BEERRAR

Stakeholder Engagement

The Group values input and feedback of its stakeholders as they
bring potential insights to the Group’s business. This year, as
to ensure its business focus remains relevant, the Group has
commissioned an independent consultant to conduct stakeholder
survey and materiality assessments to engage and gauge
feedback from internal and external stakeholders. We regularly
communicate with them and understand their expectations on us
through a range of communication channels. Through identifying
areas of improvement and maintaining close communication with
various stakeholders, the Group aims to consistently enhance its
ESG performance and management.

Conducting
Business
with Honour
LUEEETER

BRI

FESR
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Our Approach to Sustainability (continued)

HIEEEERET

Employee engagement and team
building activities
Internal e-newsletter — E-Post

Stakeholder Engagement (continued) BOESHEE)
Stakeholder Group
FhENER Communication Channel EIEEE
Management and Annual conferences Fg
Employees of Lam Soon Appraisal sessions FEER

ST Z2RNEBEREH

A EBE F BN — E-Post

Interviews Bilia

Intranet A B 4

Meetings =

Mediation team SN

Labour union Is

Notice boards BT ERE
Customers Customer hotline EEEG
BEx Customer surveys EFERAE

Website and social media UL RN I EE
Investors/Shareholders Annual and interim reports FHRAMPEARE
BEE BE Annual General Meeting (AGM) BRAEAEES(EERES)

Official website =k b

Press releases and announcement HERMQMm
Suppliers and Business Partners Tendering and procurement HRERKBEER
HEBMERSESMH communication

Regular evaluation TE AT

Conference calls EEEE

Meetings =

Workshops T1EYy
Industry Association/ Industry forum THEEHE

Regulators/Media Official website Bk

TEWE EERE e Press releases and announcement FERAAMm
Community Partners/NGOs Community engagement HESH
HEESEREME FBUFES ESG Report RIE - HERERRE

Social media R

Volunteering and charitable activities AR M BAEEE
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Our Approach to Sustainability (continued)

Materiality Analysis

In this year’s stakeholder engagement, the Group has engaged
over 100 stakeholders via stakeholder surveys to collect their
feedback and recommendation on our ESG performance in various
topics. Based on the industry trend and benchmarks, we identified
a total of 21 sustainability issues (as shown in table below) for
stakeholders to rank its relative importance to the Group on a scale
of 1 to 5 (with “1” being not important at all and “5"” being very

important).

PILLAR 1
XHE—

EEMDN

o

Material Topics for Lam Soon

MIENEEZRE

PILLAR 3
=

PILLAR 2
XHE=

BMAHAFERROT @

ESHENEFHESRERT  AEEEBEH
ERERBBI00EFNEER  UKEAEY
EMESRETHERE HERERARANK
EBANERE - RETEBZREE  RARRE
T2VRAFERRBFEWTRAR) B0
FLIES(MIRREZAEE » [5IRRHFFE
BER)NEERANARENAE EZMHETH

PILLAR 4
XN

(o) (o) (o) (rrrr)

Towards a
Greener Future
ERERRARRK

O 0]

Carbon emissions and

energy efficiency

REERR R BER Bz

e Water management
AKER

e \Waste management
EEERE

e Packaging materials
BEME

e Pollution mitigation
AR

e Climate change
mitigation and
adaption
EERERERIRE

e Deforestation and

Biodiversity
IR R EY ZEME

34

Empowering
our People

BETEMANET

e Equal opportunities

TEHE

e Fair labour practices

DFEE TIEA

e Employee welfare and

engagement
EERENRSHE

e Employee well-being,

health and safety
EEE - REEZR

e Employee

Development
EE#RE

Conducting Caring for
Business with Honour our Community
DEBETER 2l
O O O O
e Product quality e Community investment
and safety HEBRE
EmnEEHZTE

e Marketing and labelling

e Procurement practices
BREBEH

e Cyber security and
data privacy
Rxz 2 HEBEARE

e Intellectual property
HHERE

e Corporate governance
EER

e Economic performance
BRI

e Business ethics and
compliance

[EESEEIEY:]
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RIE-HERER

Our Approach to Sustainability (continued)
Material Topics for Lam Soon (continued)

A materiality matrix was developed from the results of the
stakeholder engagement exercise conducted with internal and
external stakeholders through an online survey. ESG Issues for
disclosure in this Report were identified by considering the relevance
of each ESG Issue to the operations and stakeholders of the Group.

Upon analysing the survey results and adjusted by peers’
materiality, 14 issues laid within the “Priority” quadrant,
remaining 7 issues laid within the “Significant” and “Moderate”
quadrant in the materiality matrix. Among all issues, “Employee
well-being, health and safety”, “Product quality and safety” and
“Corporate governance” were the top three material sustainability
issues this year. The results in the materiality analysis were
reviewed and endorsed by the Board.

Materiality Matrix

5 16}
ke a
e o a
VN
T g T v
o [19]
o =
;'W a 7]
o R
S
T A5
T =
8_ 3
S
< 5] ®
Moderate & Significant &

Importance to Business ¥I M EE 4

Carbon emissions and energy efficiency
BEBER R BEIR A &

Equal opportunities

8 o
TR

Water management
AKERE

Fair labour practices

DFEE TIEH

9

Waste management

BEE 10

EERFRSHE

Packaging materials

B BERI - ZRERE

Pollution mitigation
DI HR

Climate change mitigation and adaption

Product quality and safety
mEEHEZTE

.4

ERRBERRE

Deforestation and Biodiversity

IR R E M SR
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EHERE

14
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RiIE - HERERBRES

Pillar 1: “Towards a Greener Future”
Environmental Management

We aim to reduce waste and improve efficiency in energy
and use of resources, starting from the humblest of steps
and seek to entrench the philosophy into a Group-wide
awareness and culture of caring for the environment.

The Group pledges to make continuous improvement in managing
and monitoring its emissions, wastewater, solid waste and noise
pollution. Every year, through engaging external licensed testing
laboratories, various environmental tests are conducted to
evaluate the capability of existing facilities on meeting regulatory
and environmental requirements and national standards based on
the parameters obtained.

The Group strictly abides by the laws, rules and regulations
enforced in relation to environmental protection and pollution
control, including but not limited to the following:

° Environmental Protection Law of the PRC;

o Atmospheric Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the
PRC;

° Law of the PRC on Prevention and Control of Water
Pollution;

° Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of

Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste;

. Soil Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the PRC;

° Directory of National Hazardous Wastes;

° The Administrative Measures for Hazardous Waste Transfer
Manifests;

o Regulations on Environmental Protection in Guangdong
Province;

o Regulations on Prevention and Control of Environmental

Pollution by Solid Waste in Guangdong Province;

o Measures for the Management of Hazardous Waste
Transfer in Shenzhen;

o Environmental Protection Regulations of Shenzhen Special
Economic Zone; and

o Measures for the Management of Municipal Domestic
Waste (Decree No. 157 of the Ministry of Construction of
the PRC).

In addition to complying with laws and regulations at national/
provincial/city level, the Group also follows industry standards to
monitor its environmental performances.

XHE—[BOERRRRE]
B EE
BN R RERE NS BAL  HDR

EREBEFNERFABHXE AZHEMH
BEZHERBEAEHHBERENZHR -

REEEEFBEREHHR - 55K - EIREY
REFSRNERRER - AEEEFEEN
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REMGEEFILREEREEEZEERRR
RERBREFEEZED -

AEEBBETHBRERERTREG IR
& EBARBAE  BEEFRRUTEE

. (PEARANEREREL)

. (PEAREMBRRTEIAEE

. (hEARAMBEATLEEE) |

. (FEAREMNEIEEBEY S LRER
AEY S

. (PEARAME L IETEBAE)

. GEIALALES -8

. (EREYEBHETEIE)
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. (EREERENSRBRERARRG) ;
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Pillar 1: “Towards a Greener Future”

(continued)
Environmental Management (continued)
For air emissions, the Group is committed to stay compliant with:

. The Emission Standard of Air Pollutants for Boilers
(DB44/765-2019 and GB 13271-2014);

° The Emission Limits of Air Pollutants (DB44/27-2001) in
Guangdong Province;

° The Integrated Emission Standard for Air Pollutants (GB
16297-1996); and

o The Regional and Integrated Emission Standard of Air
Pollutants (DB37/2376-2019) in Shandong Province.

For water pollutants, the Group ensures that its discharge meets:

° The Discharge Limits of Water Pollutants (DB44/26-2001) in
Guangdong Province;

o The National Integrated Wastewater Discharge Standard
(GB 8978-1996); and

o Wastewater Quality Standards for Discharge to Municipal
Sewers (GB/T 31962-2015).

For noise pollution, the Group strictly controls the noise generated
from production activities in compliant with:

o The Emission Standard for Industrial Enterprises Noise at
Boundary (GB 12348-2008).

No cases of material non-compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the Group relating to
air and greenhouse gas (“GHG") emissions, discharges into water
and land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste
were recorded during the Reporting Period.

The Group continuously monitors its air emission, wastewater
discharge and noise level to ensure minimal impact on the
surrounding environment and creation of a healthy environment
for its workers. Regular maintenance of machines and equipment
is enforced to prevent excessive noise generation. The Group did
not receive any complaints from the surrounding communities
regarding air pollution, odor, noise, or night light pollution during
the Reporting Period.

Air Pollutant Emissions

All air-borne emissions are strictly monitored by the Ministry of
Environmental Protection of the PRC. All sampling results from our
plants were within permissible levels stated by various emission
standards, including the Determination of Toxic Substances in
Workplace Air — Chloride (GBZ/T160.37-2004).

MR (&

X

(&)

[ BRI ERERRR ]

EE(E)
RERERME - AREHNET

. CIBIE R RIS R Y HEAZZEE) (DB44/765-
2019K% GB 13271-2014) ;

. (EREBRRTREMRE) (DB44/27-
2001) ;

. (ARRERYEGEHEHIZZE) (GB 16297-
1996) ; &

. (UREBEBEME AR SR GRS BERE
#%(DB37/2376-2019) ©

PATRME » AREREEFRFTS

. CERE KSRV BEMIRE) (DB44/26-
2001) ;

. CEKEREPEIZZE) (GB 8978-1996) ;
%

o (BKHEAHMBETKE
(GB/T 31962-2015)

K E )

RRFFSRME  AKEEBEBBTUTEREER
REFEEEDELENRE

e (IXGCXBARZRBHIREE)
(GB12348- 2008) °

RBEHE - TEBEFMNERERBEER
RERNBHEAEEERNEARE  ARY
RBEEHMEZRRAZERE(BERE DB
BRI IUAREERERES
&Y o

FEBFEEEHZRR - BABERRES
KF o UERHEAERSNSERER ) I
REEBTAERENERE - BHHHEIRRE
ETERMERE  UBLEELEBZRE - REKE
HE ARBLTERIFEEEBRNRERS
F IR R T HRE T RIVEMIRR -

ZRITRMBERR

B REZENEREZ R hERRIHERE
ER - iIEREMBERENEROESESE
BEERENATKER » BRE(IESHER
BEEYEREELY)(GBZ/T160.37-2004) °

VERAR | 2= —FF3k 37



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RiIE - HERERBRES

Pillar 1: “Towards a Greener Future”

(continued)
Air Pollutant Emissions (continued)

The Group has made relentless efforts on emission reduction
through various initiatives and policies. Our operational site
operates a natural gas-fuelled boiler with high efficiency and low
NOx emissions. The flour mills are equipped with dust collector
systems for collection and removal of airborne dust generated
during the flour production processes. When the air containing
flour dust passed through the filter, the flour dust is captured and
circulated back into the production processes. Then the filtered
air is released into the atmosphere via exhaust pipes mounted
on the building’s walls or roof. The filters and exhaust pipes are
constantly being monitored by the production team. In addition,
a third-party testing organization is invited each year regularly for
testing. According to the testing report, the actual concentration
of particles (up to 20mg/m?3) was found to be lower than the
national standard (120mg/m?3), causing no significant impact to the
environment.

To further reduce air emissions, our operational sites have
upgraded all forklift trucks to electric-powered models, resulting
in lower fuel consumption and exhaust emission. The Group has
an internal guideline on the purchase of hybrid electric vehicles
aiming at further minimising fuel consumption and GHG emission.
The new staff canteen uses electricity rather than LPG to reduce
air pollution caused by catering service. Fume exhaust generated
from canteen operations in other plants is purified by electrostatic
precipitator before releasing into the atmosphere.

Air pollutant emissions of all business operations

XE—[BRERRRRK]

()
ZRISRMPER (&)

AEEBBRERENBERBRBBELT T8
B o RFANEESHRFENRARBIENYER
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BES ARRENERENLEEBRTEL
MIBE  ESAENPENZREBBEIRE -
EHHESRKRE  IRRELEBR  BE
EPRERBERBREEREYREREENG
REFHERRT - LEERTEERBIER
MBRE - WO EPSFERBBE=IR
RHBETRR - RIBROAME - RRBRNY
MERRE(ZIEBIHR0ZER)BRERZR
E(EBYFKIER)  WEHRFEREKR

E/
2

RE—FIRIERIEN - HANEESHE S
HIFBEXEARBEHRN - EMEE T HE
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BiES  EEE-TRIRBERERBERE
- HEIREFERENMFERELLMA
(LPG) » BRI BB AIERNZRSR - £
Ht THENRELETEENERLAFER
ERFRTEHRERRSD -

FrE#BEE 2 ERTRY R

Unit 2020/21 2019/20 2018/19
By Sl bl — T, —FF —E—-)\/-"F
Air Pollutant Emissions
ERSEUBER
Nitrogen oxides (“NOx") kg 82.07 133.21 138.17
AGY Fr
Sulphur oxides (“SOx") kg 0.64 0.70 0.84
wED Fx
Respiratory suspended particles kg 2.28 2.39 2.61
("RSP")
ELSPN =208 Fr
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Pillar 1: “Towards a Greener Future”

(continued)

Air Pollutant Emissions (continued)

Air pollutant emissions of all business operations (continued)
Note:

- Emission factors (“EFs”) were revised to make reference to
Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules and their referred documentation
as set out by the Stock Exchange, unless stated otherwise.

- The air pollutant emissions figures for FY2019/20 and FY2018/19
have been updated to include the natural gas consumption. EF
for the NOx emission of natural gas was assumed to be 50kg/TJ,
referring to Non-CO, Emissions from Stationary Combustion by
IPCC while the SOx and RSP emissions are negligible.

Greenhouse Gas Emission and Energy Efficiency

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s business operations
resulted in GHG emission of 38,751.55 tonnes of carbon dioxide
equivalent (“tCO,eq.”), mainly carbon dioxide, methane, nitrous
oxide and hydro fluorocarbons. The overall intensity of the GHG
emissions for the Group was 0.04 tCO,eq./tonne of production
volume. The major sources of greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions
for Lam Soon came from production activities, canteen operations
and mobile vehicles. The GHG reported arose from the following
activities and scopes:

. Direct (scope 1) GHG emissions from the combustion of
various fuels in stationary and mobile sources, and release
of refrigerants;

o Energy Indirect (scope 2) GHG from purchased electricity;
and
° Other Indirect (scope 3) GHG emissions from business air

travel, freshwater and sewage processing, and paper waste
disposal at landfills.

During the Reporting Period, the total energy consumed by the
Group was 63,997,399 Kilowatt-hour (“kWh"). Overall energy
intensity was 72.66 kWh/tonne of production volume, achieving
2% reduction than last year. Types of energy consumed included
electricity, natural gas, LPG, biofuel, petrol and diesel.

The Group continues exploring new energy-saving opportunities
and energy-efficient technologies for its premises and production
lines so as to reduce energy consumption and GHG emissions.
Priority is always given to energy-efficient equipment with Grade 1
energy label when selecting cooling system.
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Pillar 1: “Towards a Greener Future”

(continued)

Greenhouse Gas Emission and Energy Efficiency
(continued)

To support the use of clean energy, the Group took part in the
CLP Power Hong Kong Limited (“CLP") Renewable Energy Feed-in
Tariff Scheme by installing 554 pieces of 220-kW solar PV module
on the rooftop of Lam Soon Building in Hong Kong. The solar PV
system commenced operation in November 2019 and supplied
electricity of 423,188 kWh to CLP’'s power grid as at 30 June 2021.

The Group receives continuous support from CLP Eco Building
Fund. During the Reporting Period, we started to revamp
the lighting for our office and roof, saving 40% electricity
consumption per year. We will further extend the lighting
revamp project to cover our warehouse. Some of the plants in
Mainland China are also equipped with LED lighting system. The
refurbishment work is expected to be scaled up across the business
units in Hong Kong and Mainland China.

XE—[BRERRRRK]
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B = SRS BRI R BT A (4T
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Lam Soon Realty Limited was awarded
“Appreciation Certificate” by CLP for
participating in CLP's Peak Demand
Management Programme 2020
FEIEERRATESEAE
SEAEEETE20208HEEE [ RS

&

cPlew Vs

Apprecration

Certificate

LAM SOON BEALTY LT

Furthermore, system upgrades on programmable logic controllers
(“PLCs") have been completed for our operational site. The
strengthened control over production equipment reduces engine
idling and thus improves the overall energy efficiency. Old
machinery (e.g., blowers and motors) was replaced with energy-
saving models. Designed with energy efficiency up to 94%, a
new natural gas boiler with a fully automatic condensing system
for energy-saving has been in operation at the edible oil plant in
Shekou since 2019. In addition, the preservation for boilers has
been changed from wet method using steam to dry method using
chemicals, thus consuming less natural gas for generating steam.

BN HAWEESHE TR A RIZEEES
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Pillar 1: “Towards a Greener Future”

(continued)

Greenhouse Gas Emission and Energy Efficiency

(continued)

Greenhouse gas emissions and energy consumption data of

all business operations

Unit

By
Greenhouse Gas Emissions
BERBHN
Scope 1 Direct emission
giks1 BiEHEN
Natural gas tCO,e
RAR WS {tiEE
Liquefied Petroleum Gas (“LPG") tCO.e
wb AR (CR{IeAHRR D W —E b EE
Diesel tCO,e
4eH W —E bR EE
Petrol tCO,e
;] W —EiREE
Biofuel tCO,e
EYIRR W —EbixEE
Refrigerants tCO.e

472 B M —EtiEE

Scope 2 Energy indirect emission

g2 REREEHEK

Purchased electricity tCO,e
BE W _EtREE

Scope 3 Other indirect emission

gER3  HAMmEEHER

Paper waste disposed of at tCO,e
landfills
HEEE B WER W —E i EE

XE—[BRERRRRK]

(&)

B = SRS BRI R BT A (4T

FrERBEEEZ BERBIHMREFEFHE

2020/21 2019/20 2018/19
el Y=t —T— 5, —TF —ZT—)\/—hEF

58.06 114.37 115.86
0.17 0.87 8.12

4.15 3.47 8.80
116.15 125.12 146.22
3.43 3.32 3.63
140.77 57.71 238.92
38,141.58 37,943.17 40,998.53
66.43 63.56 62.78
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RiIE - HERERBRES

Pillar 1: “Towards a Greener Future”

(continued)

Greenhouse Gas Emission and Energy Efficiency

(continued)

Greenhouse gas emissions and energy consumption data of

(&)

A =
Jm E

REHEHRERAE (&)

XE—[BRERRRRK]

FEXRBEBECRERBHMREFREFEE

all business operations (continued) (&
Unit 2020/21 2019/20 2018/19
By =t ek bl — T —BF —E—-)N\/-"F
Freshwater processing tCO,e 71.70 68.15
KIKET i —_EtmEs
IR }(Jﬁg mﬁ %'ﬂ:ﬁﬁaag 95 54
Sewage processing tCO,e 33.69 31.49
REK 38 W —E b EE
Business air travel tCO,e 115.51 156.33 125.63
B M E R M-S tRES
Total GHG emission tCO,e 38,751.55 38,567.56 41,804.03
BEREENAE WoFLREE
GHG emission intensity tCOe/tonne 0.04 0.05 0.05
of production
volume
BERBHRRE W_EttREE
EWMES
Energy Consumption
RETRH#E
Electricity kWh 63,277,271 60,502,263 63,958,998
&% TEE
Natural gas m?3 28,706 56,547 57,283
RAR, 3 F5 R
kWh 283,944 559,320 566,603
TR
LPG kg 56 495 3,770
RAC AR T
kWh 780 6,899 52,549
T R B
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Pillar 1:

"Towards a Greener Future”

X

[ BRI ERERRR ]

(continued) (#&)
Greenhouse Gas Emission and Energy Efficiency BERBHER KRR (E)
(continued)
Greenhouse gas emissions and energy consumption data of TEXBEBZ BEEREHMREEREES
all business operations (continued) (#&)
Unit 2020/21 2019/20 2018/19
v} et o=t N —T— 5 —TF -]/ —-"EF
Diesel L 1,584 1,175 3,225
s st
kWh 15,841 11,748 32,245
TR
Petrol L 43,667 46,508 54,433
i F
kWh 388,684 413,972 482,366
T FL B
Biofuel L 6,360 6,150 0
VR F
kWh 30,879 29,859 0
FTRE
Total energy consumption kWh 63,997,399 61,524,061 65,092,761
BERHELE TR
Energy consumption intensity kWh/tonne 72.66 74.25 74.01
of production
volume
RERHERE TEE SHEER
Notes: Kzt -

Emission factors (“EFs”) were made reference to Appendix 27 to -
the Listing Rules and their referred documentation as set out by the

Stock Exchange, unless stated otherwise.

EF of 0.37 kg CO,e/kWh was adopted for purchased electricity in -
Hong Kong. EF of 0.6101 kg CO,e/kWh was adopted for purchased

electricity in Mainland China.

EF of biofuel used in canteen operations was assumed to be 0.54 —
tCO,e/tonne, by referring to the Methanol Institute Specifications.

CO, emissions from the Group’s business air travels were reported -
in accordance with the International Civil Aviation Organisation

("ICAQ") Carbon Emission Calculator.
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Pillar 1: “Towards a Greener Future”

(continued)

Greenhouse Gas Emission and Energy Efficiency
(continued)

Greenhouse gas emissions and energy consumption data of
all business operations (continued)

Notes: (continued)

- Energy density of 9,500 BTU/pound was adopted for biofuel
calculation, by referring to the Methanol: Properties and Uses
published by SGS.

- Natural gas consumption for 2019/20 and 2018/19 were restated
to align data collection scope, total GHG emission, energy
consumption and the intensity values were also restated due to the
natural gas consumption.

- Scope 3 other indirect emission arises from paper waste disposed
of at landfills in FY 2019/20 was restated to align data collection
scope.

- Since January 2020, forklifts in Shenzhen edible oil plant have been
switched from LPG to electric-powered models, causing decrease
of LPG consumption.

- Decreasing of natural gas consumption in FY2020/21 was caused
by operation reduction of the refinery facility in Shenzhen edible oil
plant.

The Group has developed GHG emission and energy usage targets
of manufacturing plants' to monitor the performance on GHG
emission and energy consumption reductions:

Targets H1Z

° reducing electricity intensity by 7% at Group level
by 2025 using 2018/19 which is 70.18 kWh/tonnes of
production volume as baseline. During the Reporting
Period, the electricity intensity of the target scope is
69.56 kWh/tonnes of production volume.

° reducing electricity-led carbon intensity (Scope 2)
by 8% at Group level by 2025 using 2018/19 which is
0.044 tCO,e/tonnes of production volume as baseline.
During the Reporting Period, the carbon intensity of
the target scope is 0.042 tCO,e/tonnes of production
volume.
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! Manufacturing plants include the five flour mills in Shekou
(Shenzhen), Yixing, Jintan, Qionglai and Qingzhou in the PRC, the
edible oil plant in Shekou, Shenzhen in the PRC and Hong Kong,
and the homecare product plant in Guangzhou in the PRC.

! URPEEDCRI) - EE - £35 - TREKK
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(continued)

Water Management

The Group consumes water for its production and domestic
activities. Water consumed by its Hong Kong’s operations was
supplied by Hong Kong’s Water Supplies Department, whilst water
consumed by the Mainland China’s operations was sourced from
the municipal water supply system in the respective location.
There was no issue identified in sourcing water that was fit for
purpose. The plants have water tanks in place to store water for
emergency use. During the Reporting Period, the Group consumed
171,865 m? of freshwater, with a water intensity of 0.20 m3/tonne
of production volume.

All discharges from production and domestic activities are pre-
treated on-site through regularly maintained grease trap and
septic tanks. On-site wastewater treatment facilities? are installed
in some of our operational sites for advanced sewage treatments.
40% of the wastewater in home care production plant is treated
and reused as flushing water. The pre-treated wastewater will
enter the sewage collection system and discharge to a nearby
municipal sewage pipe network system.

During the Reporting Period, the treated effluent discharged
by our operational sites fulfilled the requirements of permitted
discharge limits set by the Discharge Limits of Water Pollutants
(DB44/26-2001). In particular, for the home care product plant,
the measurable chemical oxygen demand (COD) in the treated
wastewater was strictly controlled within 90 mg/L, meeting the
first-class discharge standard of Guangzhou, the PRC. The edible
oil plant in Shekou performs regular wastewater testing and the
sampling results of COD, pH value, total suspended solids (TSS),
and oil and grease were all within the relevant permissible levels
during the Reporting Period.

The Group persistently reduces water loss by maintaining and
upgrading its water supply pipeline system, minimises water
consumption through upgrading water-saving devices and reuses
wastewater whenever possible. Some water-saving initiatives
include:

(i) Establishing regulations on water management to regulate
water consumption practices of employees;

(ii) Using cooling water recirculation system for cooling towers;
(iii) Installing automatic faucets;

(iv) Re-using purified reverse osmosis (“RO") water for toilet
flushing and greening of production areas; and

(v) Posting promotional materials and reminders to encourage
water conservation practices.

2 Since the flour mills did not generate industrial wastewater, and
the wastewater generated by the edible oil plant in Hong Kong
was minimal, there were no on-site wastewater treatment facilities
provided in these plants.
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(continued)

(&)

Water Management (continued) AKEE (&)

Our manufacturing plant has formulated Regulations on BIETHARESERNSIET (HAKEERE)Y L
Management of Water Usage during the Reporting Period to HESERAKRIRERENKE - Iti » KEER
regulate rational use of water and promote the conservation of THEPEIMREIRE KK EE LUR A g
water resources. In addition, the Administration Department of the IKEEEE o

Group is expediting the replacement of old water dispensers to

reduce the consumption of bottled water.

Water consumption of all business operations EEBEEZHKE

Unit 2020/21 2019/20 2018/19
By el Pl —T—f, —FF —F-)\/-hE

Water Consumption

AXKE

Water consumption

AXxE

Water consumption intensity

AKEE

m? 171,865 160,658 153,871
M 75K

m3/tonne of 0.20 0.19 0.17
production
volume

NEK/BHEE

on the target.

To monitor our progress in water saving, we have set a target BEERMEHKIENER  BMPAERE
to reduce water intensity based on production volume BE  U=ZZT—\/—HhWENESM0.17 2 H
of our manufacturing plants by 3% by 2025 using 2018/19 KREEG  F-E_RFREERENAK
which is 0.17 m3/t as the baseline. During the Reporting Period, HEMREK3% c RBREHE BEEHERMN
the water intensity of the target scope is 0.19 m3/t. Due to AKEEBESMO0.19YAK - ARERBE
the outbreak of pandemic, more measurements regarding 2 BRMETESEEEERESNIER -
cleaning and disinfection were carried out, which led to more BECERESZK - RMFEER K MEE
consumption on water. We will keep monitoring our progress KREZEFHWER -

Targets B 1Z

v
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Pillar 1: “Towards a Greener Future”

(continued)
Waste Management

The Group generated an approximate total of 27,827 kg of
hazardous waste with an intensity of 0.03 kg/tonne of production
volume and 1,090,817 kg of non-hazardous waste with an
intensity of 1.24 kg/tonne of production volume in the Reporting
Period. Hazardous wastes generated include pesticide waste,
waste with organic solvent, waste with mineral oil, waste with
dye and coating, copper, selenium and mercury-containing wastes
and other wastes (i.e. waste containers, capacitors and oil wipes).
Non-hazardous wastes generated comprised of commercial,
paper, plastic, scrap metal, sludge and other wastes. Other wastes
included sampling and liquid wastes from manufacturing plants.

The Group is committed to minimising the wastes generated in
our manufacturing plants and offices and ensuring that both
hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are well-managed.

For hazardous wastes, we have appointed licensed operators/
applied industry standard to collect and handle hazardous wastes
prior to disposal. For non-hazardous wastes, centralised waste
collection, storage and transfer facilities for on-site solid wastes
are available in accordance with national standards to maximise
recycling rates. Non-hazardous wastes are collected by registered
waste collectors for proper disposal. Commercial wastes are
transferred to designated collection points; other recyclables,
including scrap metals and waste paper, are collected and
repurposed by qualified recyclers.

To prevent potential harm to human health through contamination
of soil, air and water resources, the Group is committed to
ensuring proper and immediate treatment of hazardous wastes
and wastes that require strict control by engaging qualified
companies for collection and further handling.

Additionally, the Group has adopted electronic communication for
a paperless operation for the Group. Where printing is necessary,
double-sided printing is recommended. The use of smart-print
application also saves paper and ink. Waste recycling bins are
installed in the offices to encourage paper recycling. Over 78.4%
of the non-hazardous wastes were recycled during the Reporting
Period, with 100% recycling rates achieved for scrap metal, waste
paper, plastic and sludge.
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Pillar 1: “Towards a Greener Future”

(continued)
Waste Management (continued)

Our manufacturing plant has established the following initiatives
to reduce waste generation:

(i) Establishes the “Waste Management Procedure” and
sets up various recycling stations, to facilitate better

classification of wastes for storage and disposal; and

(ii) Generates economic benefits from non-hazardous wastes,
by selling them to recognised recycling companies.

Waste management of all business operations

XE—[BRERRRRK]

(&)
BEEE(#)

EMNEERECHEATREROEEYE
Ao

(i) BY [EMEERF |URILZEEY
vh o DUMEENBEYETEF 2 BUER
EREE R

(i) BEBEETBEYVYEETRANDEKL
A RPEEEENE o

HERBEEZEYEE

Unit 2020/21 2019/20 2018/19
By e e el T —FF —F-)\/—hEF
Hazardous Waste Produced
EEEEREEY
Other waste listed on kg 25,749 14,558 3,711
the Directory of
National Hazardous Wastes
ELIKGEI AL ES-9X:0 F=
HibEEzEY)
Pesticide wastes kg 0 3,682 5,309
(from treatment within
the factory premises)
BEERFYOCREBIRSHAN T=
BE)
Wastes with organic solvent kg 722 1,299 630
EEWBEINEEY Fx
Wastes with mineral oil kg 579 525 543
ERYHNEREY F=
Mercury-containing wastes kg 245 306 324
(from waste lighting products)
EREEY(CREEZRHER) TR
Wastes with dye and coating kg 453 244 199
SERRRBRHEZEY Fr
Acid waste kg 0 80 0
BEMEREZEY) F=
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Pillar 1: “Towards a Greener Future”

(continued) (#&)
Waste Management (continued) BEYIE R (1)
Waste management of all business operations (continued) FTERBEBEZEYEE (E)

Unit 2020/21 2019/20 2018/19
B et Pt N —ZT—h—FTF —E-)\/—"F
Selenium-containing waste kg 79 78 33
BWEEY Fr
Copper-containing waste kg 0 0 3
SREEY Fr
Total hazardous wastes kg 27,827 20,772 10,752
produced
ELXEERREYEE T=
Hazardous wastes intensity kg/tonne of 0.03 0.03 0.01
production volume
FEBEYRE Tr SBHEE
Non-hazardous Waste
Produced
EEXEEBRREY
Commercial waste kg 447,725 355,080 332,620
BREZEY Fr
Scrap metal kg 165,217 219,195 32,360
BETE T
Sludge kg 94,937 187,960 174,990
VEp Fr
Waste plastic kg 283,657 175,055 90,978
REEE R T
Waste paper kg 99,281 20,641 36,150
RE4K Fr
Total non-hazardous wastes kg 1,090,817 957,931 667,098
produced
ELXBEBRYEE TR
Non-hazardous wastes kg/tonne of 1.24 1.16 0.76
intensity production volume
EBEBREYRE T SHWEE
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Pillar 1: “Towards a Greener Future”

(continued)
Waste Management (continued)
Waste management of all business operations (continued)

The Group has developed waste targets to monitor the
performance on waste reduction:

Targets BH1Z

For non-hazardous wastes, to achieve 100% diversion
rate of all business operations by 2025 using 2018/19
which is 68.60% as the baseline. During the Reporting Period,
the Group has achieved 78.36% diversion rate.

For hazardous wastes, maintaining 100% recycling rate
for hazardous wastes of manufacturing plants by 2025
using 2018/19 as the baseline. During the Reporting Period, the
Group has maintained 100% recycling rate.

XE—[BRERRRRK]
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Packaging Materials

Packaging materials consumed by the Group were mainly
recyclable materials including plastic, cotton bags and paper.
Packaging materials were sourced from external suppliers, with
constant inspection on quality, particularly on their safety and
hygiene performances. During the Reporting Period, a total of
16,298.86 tonnes of packaging materials have been consumed
for protection of finished products, representing a consumption
intensity of 0.02 tonne/tonne of production volume.

BEMH

AEEEENEEMRETIEETERME - &
BB mRREER - SEAHTIHE B IR
EE BAEEEHEREE  BRREAER
EREFEFTENRE - RBEHE RMHAE
RIREHE316,208 86 EME - RTRH
HREAESWES0.020 -
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Pillar 1: “Towards a Greener Future” & — ([BROEBR&FFKRXEK ]

(continued) (#&)
Packaging Materials (continued) BEMBL(E)

The Group has been proactively exploring ways to reduce the use NEB—BERBERFERDEHRBEMER
of packaging materials and promoting products with replaceable EETEREENERUBDEEEHNR - &
packaging to reduce the consumption of plastic pumps. The PN EERECEHRUTERE :

following practices were implemented by our manufacturing

plants:

o Reduce the consumption of packaging materials by bulk o BERAMTNREGERDLEMEN
delivery and light packaging; SHFE S

. Evaluate packaging suppliers annually for compliance . SEFEEEHERURRERMN;
assurance;

. Reduce the use of non-recyclable resources for packaging; . WAOERAAEWRE RRIERSE |

. Apply various re-using and recycling methods to non-food . HIEEmMEBEMPRRAZEEENRAR

packaging materials, such as re-using as turnover box, or BREBERE HlEAREREEEFER
recycling by recognised handlers; and FHRATREASETERIE &

. Adopt recyclable labelling materials, such as replacing . AT EWZEME - FIaBERZ

polyvinyl chloride (“PVC") based labelling materials with Bt —BR(PENRELUBF ZH(PVQO)
those made of polyethylene terephthalate (“PET"). S ENEBME -
Packaging material consumption of all business operations BB EECORNFEFE
Unit 2020/21 2019/20 2018/19
BBy =t et Pl —T— 5 —TF TN\ —"F

Packaging Material Consumption

BEMBERE

Plastic tonnes 8,197.41 8,133.79 8,060.52
przp ! L]

Paper tonnes 6,413.11 6,607.78 6,086.72
#oR 7]

Metal tonnes 1,110.98 1,429.39 1,699.16
2B A

Cotton tonnes 553.89 533.58 683.46
irin i

Fibre and cotton tonnes 23.48 22.32 9.46
WERBH A
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Pillar 1: “Towards a Greener Future”

(continued)
Climate Change - Mitigation and Adaptation

The Group recognises the importance of managing the impacts
brought by climate change. During the Reporting Period,
we started to identify and assess climate-related risks which
can impact the long-term interests of our business and other
stakeholders.

For physical risk, the increasing frequency of heavy rainfall can
lead to flooding and damage to our plant-based ingredients. On
the other hand, our factories operating in the water-stressed areas
could suffer from shortage of water. As water is one of the major
raw materials of our products, water shortage could hamper the
production of our products.

For transition risk, it is expected that China would take more
aggressive policies and measures to limit the GHG emissions in
order to meet the national carbon neutrality target by 2060. The
possibility of being regulated by the carbon trading system also
creates uncertainty towards the Group's business development.

To cope with the climate-related risks, we have implemented
various measures to mitigate and adapt to the impacts created
by climate change. The ISO 14001 Environmental Management
System has been adopted across most of the Group’s operation
sites. The system enables that effective and timely emergency
mechanism is in place in case of severe environmental incidents.
It also keeps track of the Group’s energy efficiency and emission
reduction targets.

Since 2013, the Group has appointed qualified third-party
institutions to verify its greenhouse gas (“GHG") emission, as part
of the commitment to the government’s Emission Trading Scheme.
In particular, the flour mill in Shekou is audited annually to ensure
that their GHG emission quantification and reporting meet the
requirements set out in the Specification with Guidance for
Quantification and Reporting of the Organisation’s GHG Emissions
(SZDB/Z 69-2018).

Electricity consumption, which accounted for over 98% of
the Group’s total GHG emission, remains the largest source
of GHG emissions for the Group during the Reporting Period.
To demonstrate its determination to lower the overall energy
consumption, the Group has phased out old equipment, upgraded
lighting system and participated in the CLP clean energy initiative
to optimise energy efficiency, which aims to reduce electricity
consumption and align with the practices in regions where it
operates in.
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People Management AEEHE
The Group had a total of 1,690 employees as of 30 June 2021, RZBZ—-FXA=+H  AEEHRE1,69
all were full-time employees. The total workforce categorised by ZEE  HAZHBES - B4R - FEARR
gender, age group and geographical region is shown below: WEE DS E HEESRIOT
Employment 1E1E
Total Workforce (%) by Gender Total Workforce (%) by Age Group
RUBIE DL E HBEE (%) RERANEDNEB HER (%)

56 and above ° 18-25
Sem &k b 18-255%
Female 3.73% 3.67%

pog 3
42.96%

46-55
46-555%
21.89%

26-35
26-355%
29.53%

Male

=3

57.04%

36-45
36-455%
41.18%

Total Workforce (%) by Geographical Region
RBEE D HNEE HBR (%)

o Hong Kong
58
10.77%

Macau
B’
0.77%

Mainland China
FP B KR
88.46%
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Pillar 2: “Empowering our People”

(continued)
People Management (continued)

We aim to create a diverse, welcoming culture and a safe working
environment in which our people are engaged, nurtured and
empowered to reveal their full potential.

The Group regards human resources (“HR") as its most valuable
asset. With a mission to create values for its employees, the
Group offers attractive career prospects, a wide variety of learning
opportunities and a safe working environment.

The Group is in compliance with all applicable laws of Hong Kong
and the PRC regarding labour rights and employment, included but
not limited to:

° Employment Ordinance of the Laws of Hong Kong;

o Minimum Wage Ordinance of the Laws of Hong Kong;

o Employees’ Compensation Ordinance of the Laws of Hong
Kong;

o Labour Law of the PRC;

. Labour Contract Law of the PRC; and

o Social Insurance Law of the PRC.

The Code of Conduct provides our employees with clear
requirements on their conduct at work. It defines the ethical
principles and the behaviours expected to be observed by our
employees and explains how employees are expected to apply the
Group’s values and to comply with the laws and regulations that
affect its operations.

No non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the Group relating to compensation and
dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods,
equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other
benefits and welfare had been identified during the Reporting
Period.

XEZ  THREFRMANET ]
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Pillar 2: “Empowering our People”

(continued)
Fair Labour Practices and Equal Opportunities

The Human Resources Department continues to implement
comprehensive checking system during the recruitment process
to ensure compliance with all the applicable laws regarding
employment and labour standards, such as the Employment
Ordinance of the Laws of Hong Kong and Provisions on the
Prohibition of Using Child Labour of the PRC.

The Group will take appropriate disciplinary action against
anyone who is in breach of any applicable laws, regulations,
and ordinance. We comply with relevant laws and regulations in
relation to the prevention of use of child and forced labour during
the Reporting Period.

The Group has a standardised appraisal system to evaluate
employees’ performances, assess their capabilities and determine
whether their abilities are in line with the Group’s business
development. It also provides a basis for promotion, salary
increment and a communication platform for employees and
management to set mutually agreed and measurable performance
standards, as well as career development opportunities.

Equal opportunities are given to employees in respect of
recruitment, training and development, job advancement, and
compensation and benefits. The employees are not discriminated
against or deprived of such opportunities on the basis of gender,
ethnic background, religion, colour, sexual orientation, age,
marital status, family status, retirement, disability, pregnancy or
any other discrimination prohibited by applicable laws of Hong
Kong and the PRC.

The Group has established a publicly available whistleblowing
channel for all stakeholders. The Group’s HR department will
consolidate all cases received, assess the severity of the case
and report any case to the Chairman, Group Managing Director
and Chairman of the Board Audit and Risk Management
Committee when there is an event of foreseeable significant
impact to the Group’s operation and/or reputation. The result of
the investigation will be reported to the whistle-blower and all
information are kept confidential.
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Pillar 2: “Empowering our People”

(continued)
Employee Well-being, Health and Safety

The safety and well-being of employees is the core concern of the
Group. As such, the Group strictly complies with all applicable
laws and regulations in relation to occupational health and safety
("OHS"), including but not limited to the Law of the PRC on the
Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases, the Hong Kong
Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance (Chapter 509 of the
Laws of Hong Kong), and Hong Kong Employees’ Compensation
Ordinance (Chapter 282 of the Laws of Hong Kong). The Group
also has OHS systems and policies in place to manage occupational
health and safety issues across the entire business operation.

Apart from mandatory health check-up before employment,
annual or biennial check-ups are also offered to employees based
on their employment categories and nature. Frontline workers in
the PRC undergo end of term check-ups to ensure that no OHS-
related health issues are developed during their employment.
Employees exposed to high occupational health risks are
offered occupational health checks in accordance with statutory
requirements. Appropriate personal protective equipment (“PPE")
is provided to employees based on duties performed. Offices
and canteens are assessed by qualified institutions to ensure
that they meet applicable national standards regarding indoor
environmental pollution control.

Noise reduction devices have been installed in the equipment such
as exhaust fans, air compressors and grinders in accordance with
the requirements of the Environmental Impact Assessment Report
conducted by the Group’s appointed agencies. Acoustic meters
have been installed in all working areas to further improve the
monitoring processes.
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Pillar 2: “Empowering our People”

(continued)
Employee Well-being, Health and Safety (continued)

Risk of respiratory related diseases are high for employees working
inside the flour mills, especially if not properly protected with
adequate PPE. To reduce workers’ exposure to flour dust, effective
dust collection devices are installed at all flour mills to ensure
that the airborne dust concentration does not exceed regulatory
exposure standards. To minimise explosion hazard, the flour
mills have deployed various explosion protection systems (e.g.,
explosion-proof lighting system, flameless vent installations on
dust collectors). Our plants have obtained relevant explosion-
proof certifications, ISO 9001, ISO 22000 and HACCP certification.
Meanwhile we have maintained compliance with the following
regulatory requirements, which include:

o Safety Regulations for Dust Explosion Prevention and
Protection (GB15577-2018);

o Safety regulations for the protection of dust explosion for
grain processing (GB17440-2008);

o Guide for pressure venting of dust explosions (GBT15605-
2008); and
o Safety Specifications for Dedusting System Used in Dust

Explosion Hazardous Area (AQ4273-2016).

When purchasing office furniture, the Group selects
formaldehyde-free products and gives preference to wood
products from FSC-certified forests to ensure that its employees
work in a safe environment.

The health and safety of employees in times of the pandemic
remains the Group's primary concern. To contain the spread of
COVID-19 and to protect the health and safety of our employees,
the Group has implemented special arrangements and stepped up
precautionary measures, aiming to reduce the risk of infection.
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Pillar 2: “Empowering our People”

(continued)
Employee Well-being, Health and Safety (continued)

Special arrangements and preventive measures adopted by the
Group included:

o Adopt flexible work arrangements (e.g., work-from-home
arrangement, rotating shifts);

o Postpone non-essential travel to countries where there are
confirmed cases of COVID-19;

o Request self-quarantine for staff members who have
travelled overseas recently;

o Conduct internal questionnaire to understand employees’
health conditions after travelling abroad and collect
feedback;

o Arrange body temperature check before entering Lam Soon

offices and plants; and

o Provide hand sanitisers and surgical masks in the
workplace.

Owing to the effective OHS management, we have maintained
zero fatality in the past three years.

Work-related fatalities over the past three years
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Pillar 2: “Empowering our People”

(continued)
Employee Welfare and Engagement

The Group provides competitive remuneration with various
benefits to attract and retain talent. Employment package is
regularly reviewed with consideration of the market trend,
benchmarking the industry’s salary and benefit information
through salary survey reports conducted by professional
consultants. Annual salary increment and year-end performance
bonus mechanism have been incorporated in the Group's
remuneration policy. Share options are also granted to the Group's
eligible employees to provide incentive for and in recognition of
their contributions.

Employees in the PRC are entitled to year-end bonus, social
security insurance and housing fund. Year-end bonus, life and
health insurance are provided to employees in Hong Kong.
Additionally, staff sale, meals and transportation are made
available to employees. Fair terms on working hours, holidays,
termination of contract, fringe benefits and leave entitlement are
stipulated in the employment contracts signed between employees
and the Group. Overtime work shall be applied through submission
of application forms and approved by departmental supervisors.
Any disputes will be settled according to the Group’s appeal
procedures in an equitable and prompt manner.

Employees are always kept informed of the Group's key projects,
future directions and latest market strategies, activities and social
events in the industry through notice boards, intranet, meetings,
annual conferences and the internal e-newsletter, namely E-Post.

The Group also arranges various on board training activities to
help new employees adapt to the company culture. During the
Reporting Period, the Group organised group meetings and team
building activities to enhance employees’ sense of belonging and
foster staff relationship. Some of the activities organised during
the Reporting Period include:

o Team building event for Lam Soon flour plants in the East
China;
o Team building event organised by Labour Union for home

care product plant;
o The 4t Sports day in the East China; and

o Afternoon Tea on the 60™ Anniversary of Lam Soon.
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Pillar 2: “Empowering our People”

(continued)
Employee Development

With human resources as one of the core values, the Group
believes that strengthening the capabilities of employees can
benefit both the Group and employees themselves. Training needs
are identified through appraisal sessions with employees. Thus, the
training provided can effectively address the objectives below:

(i) Facilitate the achievement of the Group’s and/or its
departmental targets;

(i) Increase productivity in every aspect of working processes;
(iii) Enhance employees’ satisfaction; and
(iv)  Assist employees’ career development.

The training courses vary from mandatory training and skill
enhancement to the more advanced supervisory skills and
managerial development, targeting employees of various levels.
During the Reporting Period, employees have been provided with
both internal and external training on numerous areas including
salesman training — baking technique & theory, ISO training,
occupational safety and health training, customs regulations
training and IT security awareness training.

The Group takes a zero-tolerance approach to corrupt practices
by employees. During the Reporting Period, our Legal Department
and Independent Commission Against Corruption (ICAC) have
been consulted to provide anti-corruption trainings to senior
management and employees in both Hong Kong and the PRC
to make sure that the highest level of business ethics has been
met. The topics covered the explanation of relevant laws and
regulations, the definition of conflict of interest, preventive
measures and reporting channels.

Staff members are also encouraged to attend e-learning classes,
seminars, team building activities and knowledge sharing events
for enhancing their knowledge and skills. The Group will provide
subsidy or full reimbursement on the course fees to eligible staff
under the training policy.
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Pillar 2: “"Empowering our People” TR  [BREFRMEAVET ]

(continued) (#&)

Social Performance HEXRR

Turnover rate &% : 11.78%
By Gender (%) & 1% 5l &% By geographical region (%) &t E £l 5
Male Bt 10.06 \ Hong Kong &#& 25.82
@
| “_I A Female Z 4 14.05 N Macau BP9 15.38
Mainland China #E] K 10.03

By age group (%) &Gk 48 Bl &l 5

18-25 20.97

O O Q D 26-35 17.64

36-45 7.33
I I I I 46-55 9.73
>56 17.46

Health and Safety BEHEZ 2

Lost days due to work injury

days
ETHEEATERY % @

Development and Training % & E23% 3|

4 )

o_
I : E:l Development and Training (%) Average training hours (hours)
% BREEZI (%) TGN RFEL (ANEE)
Employees trained & T3Z3l 69.82 -
By gender &£ 5l & %
Male St 73.96 20.97
Female gk 64.33 14.90
By employee category Z{ES £ 5l
Senior Level Management 92.86 11.14
SREEAE
Middle Level Management 65.73 20.59
HREBEAE
Frontline and other employees 70.43 17.97
AR EMET
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Pillar 3: “Conducting Business with XHE=Z [ EEBETER]
Honour”

Supply Chain Management and Business Ethics HEEEERHEEE

We aim to uphold good business ethics and integrity and to KMEC#ERIFNEXEENHE  LED
develop long term relationships with our business partners based T EEMEENER FERMNERSER
upon fairness, mutual trust and benefit. We abide by applicable HEVRABRR HKMETEBRTIEERN
laws and regulations of Hong Kong, the PRC and relevant ERERAERURANT A EEBRRIZELE - 3R
international standards as listed below. No non-compliance was SHIR  NEBABIRER T EEERNE
achieved during the Reporting Period. W e

N

Applicable laws and regulations on supply chain management and business ethics

HEREERBRERZBRERRER

Scope #i[E Laws and regulations SEE R ER

o Food Safety Law of the PRC
(FEARAKNBERBZEE)

. National Food Safety Standard for the Use of Food Additives
(RRZ2EREERBMNBIEREE)

. Administrative Measures for Food Recalls

(EmBEEEIE)
@ o Public Health and Municipal Services Ordinance of

the Laws of Hong Kong

Product quality and safety BAEMI B D T E A R BURGD
EmEEHEZS . Food Adulteration (Metallic Contamination) Regulations

(BYBRE(EBEEESE)R6)

3 Food Recall Guidelines in Hong Kong
EEBRN(EmMEIKIES

o National Food Safety Standard — Detergent
(RREZE2EREE - HKHE)

. Technical Specification for Safety of Soaps and Detergents

CRIRA R Z 2 RIRE)

l\/\A . Advertisement Law of the PRC

#EARY SN
Marketing and labelling (PEARANERSE)

D
@ o Personal Data Protection Ordinance of the Laws of Hong Kong

FoloeD T e SR e BRED P CEAER (FLER) ) RG]

RAERZEZRBBELR

O
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Pillar 3: “Conducting Business with
Honour” (continued)

Procurement Practices

The Group has Procurement Management, Supplier Management
and Evaluation Policies in place which specify the Group’s
procurement principles. The policies also provide guidelines and
procedures to manage supply chain during tendering, contract
period and post-completion of work.

XHE= [ MEEETER]

(&)
REB1EH

FEEEHERBERE  HEBEERIMER
RoAETAKENEBRE - ZFHETRE
MTERE - GYBRIBTHEEEHER
MiEsI R -

&E

behaviour prohibited.

D

A EEIREE - LR EERAA

®©
O

During tendering, suppliers are selected and rated based on a
set of criteria, in terms of product price and quality, timeliness of
delivery, payment terms, food safety and after-sales service. Within
the contract period, background, permits, licences and certificates
of suppliers are checked to ensure their compliance with food
safety policies and standards. Products sourced from suppliers
are subject to multiple tests to ensure they are of national food
safety standards. The flour mills and the edible oil plant evaluate
their raw material suppliers every six months for compliance
assurance and collect suppliers” activity logs on a regular basis for
quality assurance. Suppliers of packaging materials are audited
against their safety and hygiene performances annually. Suppliers
must carry out rectifications if non-conformities are identified.
The Group also enters into contract with outsourced services
providers to ensure that they meet occupational health and
safety standards while performing their works. Suppliers who
violate laws and regulations, fail to meet tender requirements,
or commit misconducts during the contract period could be
subject to compensation payment and/or contract termination.
Upon completing the work, suppliers’ performance will be
evaluated based on the marking scheme as set out in the Supplier
Management Policy.

(- Three underlying principles on procurement management as outlined in the procurement policy \

JIBRERBBRAN=ERBEEERFRE

Adopt a just-in-time inventory model to buy only what the business operation needs with speculative

RARBEFEN  EREXBLERT  ZLRETS -

Source from local suppliers to reduce transportation cost.

Source for high quality and competitive products to meet the business strategy of the Group.

BEEARABRFHINHEBRE  UESAKENER -

ERGBENKE  HEFNWRERFIRIE
R—FEZA ARSRERERERE - XN
EAEK IRER  ERREREERRKE -
EENHR  AEESREHEBRNESR - F
AE - EERRAE UERKEBTERE
EHEREE -BEHEEANERALBS
RAR  UERNEEREREZZFRE - 8
B X & Fm R /< (8 B RF kR e R LA AR
RN YEHREHEEIEE A S UER
HE - AMSFHeRMHNHERETRZS
REERRATEANER - IBRBEFERE
o B AETAYIE o AEEIRESH R
BEEBITLEH  UBRARHNET THERE
ERERERZEZRE -REWVHR - HEMD
MERERRER - THEBRERIETE
T THERERIVBESR HLLE
o TR ITAER - BRB(EEEEERE)
B R HEE A RIVETHME -

MIE(EB)BRAR | — B - —F 5, 63



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RiIE - HERERBRES

Pillar 3: “Conducting Business with
Honour” (continued)

XHE= [ MEEETER]

(&)

Procurement Practices (continued) REBES (&)
Number of suppliers by geographical region
HEBYE (RBLEES)
Geographical region Unit
ih 32 E i B
Hong Kong No. of supplier 19
5B HERHE
Mainland China No. of supplier 344
B R pE HERMEAE
Others (including Canada, US, Australia, Europe and Asia) No. of supplier 9
Hi(BEMEX -« 26 BN - B REM) HERMEE

Along the supply chain, the Group engages employees in
maintaining, monitoring and improving the Group’s overall
procurement management. The Group encourages employees
to take proactive, comprehensive and stringent measures in
the process of procurement, to avoid unnecessary loss and
ensure utilisation efficiency of its resources in accomplishing the
production, supply and sales targets.

During the Reporting Period, there were no concluded legal cases
regarding corrupt practices brought against the Company or its
employees.

Product Quality and Safety

The Group fulfils relevant product quality, product safety and
food labelling requirements and meets various internationally
recognised standards. All the Group’s business operations possess
the ISO 9001 Quality Management System certification. The
flour mills and edible oil plants are certified to ISO 22000 Food
Safety Management System. The four flour mills in Shekou,
Jintan, Qionglai and Qingzhou as well as the edible oil plants
are accredited with Hazard Analysis and Critical Control Point
(HACCP) certification. The flour mills in Yixing and Jintan and the
edible oil plant in Shekou are certified to FSSC22000 Food Safety
System Certification. During the Reporting Period, there were no
significant products and service-related complaints received.

To ensure high product quality and safety for customers, the
Group strictly follows its policy, manual and guideline, and
procedure on customer satisfaction management, complaint
handling and product recall. The Group deploys standard
procedures on sanitation of food plants and associated equipment
to maintain a high hygiene standard throughout the production
process. Tests are conducted by the Quality Assurance Department
against pre-defined specifications in product safety or quality
standards. Qualified testing organisations are engaged to validate
the test results and issue independent test reports. Any materials
or products that fail to meet the required standards will be
labelled, isolated and assessed by related departments.
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Pillar 3: “Conducting Business with
Honour” (continued)

Product Quality and Safety (continued)

To strengthen customers’ confidence in our brand, the Group
responds to complaints/enquiries promptly with authorized
personnel assigned for handling. If there is any product quality
issue raised by our customers, we will conduct investigation to
identify the root cause of the incident, rectify the problem timely
and take appropriate preventive actions. If the complaints involve
product safety and withdrawal of the affected products from the
market is deemed necessary, we will immediately activate our
product recall procedures. The recalled products will be isolated to
ensure proper handling or disposal. All the information relating to
the recall will be documented for senior management review and
approval.
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Complaint handling and product recall procedures

RAFRERERBOERF

Authorised personnel to handle any enquiry or complaint cases
EREAERERMEARRHFRYE

Execute investigation and provide prompt response
ETRATI R MR EEE E

Perform product recall if the complaints involve product safety and
withdrawal is deemed necessary
MRBRFSIRERZTR  URRBELERE - BESTEREE

Ensure proper handling or disposal of the recalled product
BREECEREECEEEM

All the information relating to the product recall will be documented for
senior management review and approval
HERAOMEBNAMEEERSERER  UESEEEASEENE
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Pillar 3: “Conducting Business with
Honour” (continued)

Marketing and Labelling

The Group has established guidelines on marketing and labelling
to ensure that product specification and promotional activities
comply with applicable laws and regulations. Labels of edible oils
and flour products contain nutritional profile and the product
composition. For home care products, the product labels provide
information on the main ingredients, dosage instructions,
directions for use and safety precautions. Labels are required to
be approved by our Legal Department and Quality Assurance
Department with records filed. All marketing and labelling
materials shall be audited to ensure compliance with relevant
regulatory requirements. New product packages shall apply for
patent registration whenever necessary. In specific, our home care
product plant is accredited with the China Environmental Labelling
Products Certification for fulfilling the control requirements on
hazardous substances in raw materials or products, pollutants
in the factory as well as environmental policy in the production
processes.

The Group strives to improve public well-being by promoting
healthy lifestyle. As part of its ongoing effort to increase
awareness among business-to-business customers and strengthen
technical support to industry partners, the Group has set up four
baking centres in Jintan, Fuzhou, Shenzhen and YiXing. Other
online promotional channels, including the “Good Mother”
website (https://www.haomama.com) and Knife Oil Facebook,
upload videos on various topics, including introduction of
nutritional values of our products by registered dietitians and
sharing of cooking recipes prepared with nutritious ingredients.
Aside, the Group organises workshops to promote healthy and
balance lifestyle to the public.

Neither false nor misleading contents will be contained in any
product specification or promotional channels. During the
Reporting Period, the Group did not record any cases of material
non-compliance with laws and regulations regarding advertising,
marketing and labelling matters.
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B URRFESHEHEEEER - HEREBEE
ELRERFENEM - ABME - RMOR
EEEAMBCETRREESERAE
BEEBRTHENREMBAEREEDE
ITHSRUREEEBRPEBRREBERN

AEERIRBBREREETIARHIELD
REW - AFEZHRESLENCERX 2 HE
BEHNEBRMEHTESEBENEN XE
AEECESE - 8N FYIREEE T MHE
BERO c RPN EAEME LHEERE 8
¥E [ 49585 1483k (https://www.haomama.com)
FIERESRE - FETEAETENE S G
HEMEEMNARMERNEEEERSE
FRESELEMBNRE o thid » REBEHR
ITHEHUBAREBRREIEMNETFR o

FNERBRESEHEREI T EETERER
EHRT  RBEPE  AEEALEZREER
BEERES - EHEERBENERENER
B fEZE -
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Pillar 3: “Conducting Business with
Honour”

(continued)
Intellectual Property (“IP")

The Group strives to protect its own IP rights and respects
third party IP rights according to all related applicable laws and
regulations. It registers new IPs (including trademarks, designs and
patents) in different parts of the world, renews existing IP rights,
manages the use of IPs, and keeps track of IP infringement by
other parties. The Group reserves the right to take legal actions
against any alleged infringement.

The Group also ensures its service providers, suppliers or business
partners undertake and warrant that all their deliverables or
products are their original creation and/or do not infringe any
third party’s IP rights. Infringers are liable to specified appropriate
consequences in the event of a breach.

Cyber Security and Data Privacy

The Group's Legal Department seeks to improve the Group’s
compliance with applicable laws and regulations in data privacy. We
strictly follow internal policy, manual, guidelines and procedures on
protecting customers’ data as stated in the Code of Conduct. Before
collecting personal data from customers, they are informed of the
purposes of data collection and how it will be used. Procedures on
handling, storing, transferring and erasing customers’ personal data
collected are reviewed periodically.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not record any cases
of material non-compliance with laws and regulations regarding
cyber security and data privacy matters.

Pillar 4: “Caring for our Community”
Community Investment

We aim to contribute for the betterment of society, to
create collective advancement and harmonious community
relationships.

While formal policies on community engagement are yet to be
established, the Group continues to maintain its strong tradition of
supporting various charitable causes during the Reporting Period. The
Group established a volunteer service team to convey love and caring,
giving back to the society and fulfilling our social responsibility.

e (&

XHE= [ MEEETER]
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SRER( RERE)

REBMANRBEFAEHEEIEREERERR
BEEAABERNEESE=TANEERE - $
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REBETREARLRBHEER HEBRELS
EEFHEHERRE  REMBUXNERIE
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RBEHE  AEELEZESETAREERHD
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Pillar 4: “Caring for our Community” 400 : [EEIELE |«

(continued)
Community Investment (continued) HERE(#F)

In partnership with Shandong Luyan Agriculture Seeds Co., Ltd, BE-ZE—=F8 rEEHELEEWEXRE
the Group has launched the wheat incubation project since 2013 BERATESEKRE/NEEZEER  UEEER
to stablise food production and security. Under the project, we SEMNZE - EZEEY  KMABEFEARL)D
conduct a three year-long experimental cross breeding of Local BETAH=FNERBEIERE  LUBENZE
Chinese Wheat to test the wheat milling quality stability, followed HPHEENEEY  BRERSEEX - B2
by contract farming. To date, three types of wheat had passed the Bral  HE=ZBNZERAEERTEMHAR &
quality stability test, thus 16,500 tonnes of wheats were collected BEXNBERETILEI16,500MF /N o

through contract farming.

Volunteering and Charitable Activities
SREREEED

In 2020, the Group donated company products to Hong Chi Association which
provide people with intellectual disabilities a chance to get job training, as well e

as to find career direction, build self-esteem and enhance competitiveness.
Nominated by Hong Chi Association, the Group is awarded the “Caring
Company Award” for the fourteenth consecutive year by the Hong Kong
Council of Social Service since 2007, which is a testament to our long-term
commitment to community investment.

RIZZZZRF AEEOEESREQRTVER  REBATRHMESEI - =
REXEIM BYBEOLRRESHEFINKE - EEESNRET » A5EA
“ERLFREFTUFESEELSRBHESARN HRRER IR OF
TEMETEBRENR A ©

O

The staff meal service provided by Hong Chi
Association is to show Lam Soon’s support
of social inclusion and corporation social
responsibility.

ESSABTRMHERRYE  UETREIEHYL
SEAMEELEEEINIIS -

\
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Volunteering and Charitable Activities
/U\[ﬁ&/h\ﬁl /EQ

On 2 December 2020, the Group participated
n “Love Teeth Day”, an annual fund-raising
event organised by the Community Chest of
Hong Kong, the Hong Kong Dental Association
and Oral Health Education Unit of the
Department of Health to promote oral health
education.

R-ZBZZ2F+-B=H XEEZNHES
NEE  BERTEESIRELEZBORRERS
HEMWAEETB IFESIEY - #ED
PEREEHE -

In 2021, the Group participated in the poverty
alleviation programme organised by the local
government to provide assistance to Zhigian
District Luxi Village in Jintan. An overall support
plan was also set up for the following three
years to guide continuous partnership.
REZBZ—F AEEZHET B BUFAB A

BitE > AeEMEAEEZINRMER - F
B HFEET RR=ZFHNEREKRTEUES
BHEEE -

On 9-10 December 2020, Shenzhen Lam Soon Edible
Oils Company Limited collaborated with our business
partners to participate in the voluntary service and to
donate oil products to the underprivileged, as well as
people affected by the fire accident.
RZZE-ZEF+-ANBETAH  RIIFEIEHEERA
AERMNEBBHESHESEEERY - YO FEER
URZAKEHRZENALTHRERBNER °

g
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Index

Subject Areas,

WESE

I

BRABIARE  #H8RE
AR EESIRR R

Aspects, General Relevant Chapter(s) or Page
Disclosures and KPIs Description Other References/Explanation  Number
TEHE - BE -
—REER
BERENIER Rt HEREHRAE MR HE BB
A. ENVIRONMENT
AR
Aspect A1: Emissions
BEAT  BERD
General Disclosure Information on: Environmental Management; 36-37;
—RIEE (a) the policies; and Air Pollutant Emissions 37-39
(b) compliance with relevant laws and RESTIE ;
regulations that have a significant Z=&R5RYHEKR
impact on the issuer
relating to air and greenhouse gas
emissions, discharges into water and land,
and generation of hazardous and non-
hazardous waste.
FRABRRRERBHR - mAkRLiEH
5  EEREEBREVYNEESEMN
(@ X &k
b) BFHBETABERSENMEREAEE
REHINER -
KPI A1.1 The types of emissions and respective Air Pollutant Emissions 37-39
BAREN emissions data. RIS RN
BEAT PR R ARBA BRI -
KPI' A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in  Greenhouse Gas Emission and 39-44
BREM tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity  Energy Efficiency
EEA1.2 (e.g. per unit of production volume, per SBERBEIENRKEFEME
facility).
HiE(SE1) RERBE (SBE2)RERE
PrprE (LAMEET &) & (an3E A ) % & (a1 B
BEEE[ - BERBIHE) -
KPI'A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in  Waste Management 47-50
RARENM tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity EYERE
BEA13 (e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).
FEEEEEEYEES (UMEETE) R (W
BR)BRE(MUESESE([ - BERE
")
70 Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited | Annual Report 2021



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RiIE - HERERBRES

HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Content

In d € X (continued)

Subject Areas,

BRBIARE  #HE8RE
AR EESIRE RS @)

Aspects, General Relevant Chapter(s) or Page
Disclosures and KPIs Description Other References/Explanation  Number
TEHE - BE -
—REER
BRENER it HEEHREMSIT FE i
KPI'A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced Waste Management 47-50
BAEER (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, EYERE
BIEA1.4 intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).
FEEREEEYEE (UMETE) R
BRABE(MNESESEN - BERE
&)
KPI' A1.5 Description of emissions target(s) set and Climate Change “Mitigation and 52
BAREN steps taken to achieve them. Adaptation”
EEA1S BRI LM BEME B B R AEFIELE
BRI 5B o We will continue to conduct
detailed recording on emissions,
in order to carry out meaningful
comparisons in the future. We also
strive to improve our environmental
performance continuously.
RIS — BB RERE
KM EEHEREETHFMAR
7 LEBEERRETEEZNL
B-HEMFIBHITERSEMOER
BRER o
KPI'A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non- Waste Management; 47-50
RASRAEN hazardous wastes are handled, and a
B1EAT1.6 description of reduction target(s) set and  We will continue to conduct

steps taken to achieve them.
HEBEEERBEERMNF L RiE
MAFET Y HRE R ER R EDELEREMN
RIS -

detailed recording on waste, in
order to carry out meaningful
comparisons in the future. We also
strive to improve our environmental
performance continuously.

BEYERE

RIS EBES EMETFMARLE
DEERFETERENLR - &
FITRBHTERSEFANRERR -

MIE(EB)BRAR | — B - —F 5, 7
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In d € X (continued)

Subject Areas,

WESE

BRBIARE  #HE8RE
AR EESIRE RS @)

Aspects, General Relevant Chapter(s) or Page
Disclosures and KPIs Description Other References/Explanation Number
TEHE EH
—REER
BERENIER it HEEHREMSIT e i
Aspect A2: Use of Resources
BHEA2 : EREA
General Disclosure Policies on the efficient use of resources, Environmental Management 36-37
—RIE including energy, water and other raw RIEEIE
materials.
BEREAER(BERIR - KREMWEM
B HBUER ©
KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption  Greenhouse Gas Emission and 39-44
BAHEE W by type (e.qg. electricity, gas or oil) in total Energy Efficiency
BIEA2.1 (kWh in “000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit BZER KRR
of production volume, per facility).
RERESWEER S EEER (M
B RICH)BEEUTETERTE)
REE(MNUEBESEN - BERKRES
")
KPI'A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity Water Management 45-46
BEGRIE Y (e.g. per unit of production volume, per FKERE
BEEA2.2 facility).
BEKEREE(WUSEEEN 818
RiEatE) ©
KPI'A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency Greenhouse Gas Emission and 39-44; 52
BREM target(s) set and steps taken to achieve Energy Efficiency
EEA2.3 them.
WM L EeRFEAMEEZERHER  Climate Change — Mitigation and
BELEERERENSER o Adaptation
We will continue to conduct
detailed recording on energy
consumption, in order to carry out
meaningful comparisons in the
future. We also strive to improve
our environmental performance
continuously.
BEREBHRK RS
R — BB RERE
KM EES R ETHFAR
% UNEERRETEEERNL
B-HBMTFBHITERSEMOERE
BRH o
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Subject Areas,

BRBIARE  #HE8RE
AR EESIRE RS @)

Aspects, General Relevant Chapter(s) or Page
Disclosures and KPIs Description Other References/Explanation Number
TEHE  EBH -
—REER
BERENIER it HEEHREMSIT e i
KPI' A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue  Water Management 45-46
RS R in sourcing water that is fit for purpose,
BIEA2.4 water efficiency target(s) set and steps All water used by the Group were
taken to achieve them. obtained with respective permits.
A REVE AR LA BEMERE - LR There were no issues related to
FEl AR MZ BB RAZZELHEHIE sourcing water that was fit for
FrERERBID 58 o purpose.
We will continue to conduct
detailed recording on water
consumption, in order to carry out
meaningful comparisons in the
future. We also strive to improve
our environmental performance
continuously.
AkER
AEBERANABKEES T HE
FFA o WEAMEIRSES AR
HIk BRARIRIRE -
HMEEEYRKEBETHFARL
%o UNEERRETEERNL
Bo-HBMTFBHITEHRSEMOER
BRH o
KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished Packaging Materials 50-51
RRES products (in tonnes) and, if applicable, ®###
BIEA2.5 with reference to per unit produced.
S mPAASEMBNESE (LINEGTE) R
(WER)BEEENEE -
Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources
BEA3  RIBERARER
General Disclosure Policies on minimising the issuer’s Environmental Management 36-37
—RIE significant impact on the environment and REEE
natural resources and the actions taken to
manage them.
BERITABRRERAARERELERSY
EHHER ©
KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts Environmental Management; 36-37;
BREN of activities on the environment and Greenhouse Gas Emission and 39-44
BIEA31 natural resources and the actions taken to  Energy Efficiency
manage them. RISEE
X EFHEHRERRAEFENEREY BREREHFRR
EROENEEBREENTH - BER M &=
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Subject Areas,

WESE

BRBIARE  #HE8RE

I

Al EESIRE RS @)

Aspects, General Relevant Chapter(s) or Page
Disclosures and KPIs Description Other References/Explanation Number
TEHE EH
—RIEER
BEREANER it MEEHRESIH e =X
Aspect A4: Climate Change
BHEAL : RIR#L
General Disclosure Policies on identification and mitigation Climate Change — Mitigation and 52
—RIEE of significant climate-related issues which ~ Adaptation
have impacted, and those which may SR{RE L —EFENERE
impact, the issuer.
B REHOERTESHBETAEEY
ENBERRREBESENICR -
KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate- Climate Change — Mitigation and 52
BREN related issues which have impacted, and  Adaptation
JEREAL N those which may impact, the issuer, and RIFEE L — EMRIERE
the actions taken to manage them.
BHERRITESHBTAELELENE
jtﬁﬂﬂﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂ RIEE1TE -
B. SOCIAL
B. #&
Employment and Labour Practices
EBREREIER
Aspect B1: Employment
FBEB1 : EfE
General Disclosure Information on: People Management; 53-54;
— R E (a) the policies; and Fair Labour Practices and Equal 55; 59

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer

relating to compensation and dismissal,

recruitment and promotion, working

hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,
diversity, anti-discrimination, and other
benefits and welfare

ERHFMREE BEREAN - THERE
BRE - FEHE - 2 - RBBEBUR
HibfFBREF

(a) B ' &
(b) BIYHBITABEASENEEEER
REIKEE -

Opportunities;

Employee Welfare and Engagement;

AEEE
AFEHE TEFR S
BEEEANRSH ;
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Subject Areas,

WESE

BRBIARE  #HE8RE
AR EESIRE RS @)

Aspects, General Relevant Chapter(s) or Page
Disclosures and KPIs Description Other References/Explanation Number
TEHE  EBEH -
—REER
BRENER it HEEHRESIE R =X
KPIB1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment  Social Performance 61
RARENM type, age group and geographical region #H&RIHE
EEB1 .1 RIER - EEER (MEBFRE) - T
ARkt EESNESHEH -
KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age Social Performance 61
AN group and geographical region. HERRE
151EB1.2 =R - FRARNRBLESI DK
BERKLLE -
Aspect B2: Health and Safety
[EHEB2 : REREZE
General Disclosure Information on: People Management; 53-54;
— R E (a) the policies; and Employee Well-being, 56-58
(b) compliance with relevant laws and Health and Safety
regulations that have a significant ABERE ;
impact on the issuer EE®EL -
relating to providing a safe working REEZZ
environment and protecting employees
from occupational hazards.
FRRHEZE2TIHFRERREREESRERE
EMREM
(@) BE &
(b) BFHBTABEARSENEREE
KRB ERL o
KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related Social Performance 58
BRENM fatalities. HERE
1618821 AT THABRLLEER -
KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Social Performance 61
BRER EIGIBAIERS - HERR
1E12B2.2
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and Employee Well-being, 56-58
REHEAE W safety measures adopted, how they are Health and Safety
1512823 implemented and monitored. EERAL -
BRI R RREZ 2R - Uk RERZE

HERTRERTE -

MIE(EB)BRAR | — B - —F 5,
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Subject Areas,

WESE

EBBTMEBE HERE
AW ERESIRNE RS @

Aspects, General Relevant Chapter(s) or Page
Disclosures and KPIs Description Other References/Explanation Number
TEHE  EBEH -
—RIEER
BRENER it HEAESRHE MR R =X
Aspect B3: Development and Training
[EMEB3 : #ERIZH
General Disclosure Policies on improving employees’ People Management; 53-54; 60
—RIE knowledge and skills for discharging Employee Development
duties at work. Description of training AEE®E
activities. EER
TRARAEEEIT TEBE M HHE R KA
HIBUER o HEFES -
KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained Social Performance 61
BAEER by gender and employee category #HEXRIR
$54EB3.1 (e.g. senior management, middle
management).
EMRREEEN(NSREERRE - P&
EERE)ESNZIEEBDL °
KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed Social Performance 61
RASREN per employee by gender and employee #HE&RXRIR
}51ZB3.2 category.
BMBIREEERNE S  BEEETHE
AT -
Aspect B4: Labour Standards
[ETEB4 @ & T2A|
General Disclosure Information on: People Management; 54-55
— R E (a) the policies; and Fair Labour Practices and Equal
(b) compliance with relevant laws and Opportunities
regulations that have a significant A&%E
impact on the issuer ’“’**EJJ;E§&5F£$§%Q
relating to preventing child and forced
labour.
BREFLEEIRRSE T :
(a) B s &
b) BFHBTABERLENMERE LR
REBIWER -
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review Fair Labour Practices and Equal 55
BABER employment practices to avoid child and  Opportunities
1E1EB4.1 forced labour. APHLETIEERPERS
BHmRREANEEARRE T R
FET o
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In d € X (continued)

Subject Areas,

BRBIARE  #HE8RE
AR EESIRE RS @)

Aspects, General Relevant Chapter(s) or Page
Disclosures and KPIs Description Other References/Explanation Number
TEHE EH
—REER
BERENIER it HEEHREMSIT e i
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate Fair Labour Practices and Equal 55
RS R such practices when discovered. Opportunities
151EB4.2 HMEBRRERBREREEBRAR QATFNEIERRTESHKS

Ry BR -
Operating Practices
&EEH
Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
MBS : HEREE
General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and  Supply Chain Management and 62; 63-64
—MRiEE social risks of the supply chain. Business Ethics;

BEMHERNIREREERMBEBUE Procurement Practices

HESEEMERER
REBIEH

KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical Procurement Practices 63-64
BARER region. RSB
1E1EB5.1 miEE D WHERHE -
KPI'B5.2 Description of practices relating Procurement Practices 63-64
RASRE N to engaging suppliers, number of EREBIEHI
FE4EB5.2 suppliers where the practices are being

implemented, how they are implemented

and monitored.

B B EFNES c aHEHITE

EEMNMHEREE  UREBEHTRE

BRIk e
KPI'B5.3 Description of practices used to identify Procurement Practices 63-64
RESRAE N environmental and social risks along $REEEHI
$E4EB5.3 the supply chain, and how they are

implemented and monitored.

H AR B RS AR NRIRE R

SRBWES  URBEBEHTRERS

& e
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Subject Areas,

WESE

BRBIARE  #HE8RE
AR EESIRE RS @)

Aspects, General Relevant Chapter(s) or Page
Disclosures and KPIs Description Other References/Explanation Number
FTEHE  EBE -
—REER
BEREANER Rt HEEHREMSIT e '
KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote Procurement Practices 63-64
REREM environmentally preferable products #REBEH|
fE1EBR5.4 and services when selecting suppliers,
and how they are implemented and
monitored.
B EREHEERREESARRERAR
IRIEHVED) - UIRMEERITRESRFE ©
Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
[ETHEB6 : EMEIE
General Disclosure Information on: Product Quality and Safety 64-65
—RIEE (a) the policies; and ERESHRY
(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
relating to health and safety, advertising,
labelling and privacy matters relating
to products and services provided and
methods of redress.
FRREERIRENERERZS
BE - BERABEEURBRGEN
(@) BR ' &
(b) BFEHBETABEARLENHEBER
REHINER -
KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or Product Quality and Safety 64-65
BRER shipped subject to recalls for safety and ERBEHZ2
151ZB6.1 health reasons.
EERCEXEMBHTEZEREREE
HmmARWHE DL o
KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related Product Quality and Safety 64-65
REIRER complaints received and how they are EREE2HZ2E
1515B6.2 dealt with.
BEEBRNERRBRBHIRFHE UREY
FE e
KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to Intellectual Property 67
BREN observing and protecting intellectual &% ERE
$51€B6.3 property rights.
M ERAERRRENBEEETBENED -
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Subject Areas,

WESE

BRBIARE  #HE8RE
AR EESIRE RS @)

Aspects, General Relevant Chapter(s) or Page
Disclosures and KPIs Description Other References/Explanation Number
TEHE  EBH -
—REER
BERENIER it HEEHREMSIT e i
KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process Product Quality and Safety 64-65
BREM and recall procedures. EmBEEHZY
161%B6.4 e ERTBRERERERER -
KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection Cyber Security and Data Privacy 67
BAREN and privacy policies, how they are HKRZ2EHEELE
}542B6.5 implemented and monitored.
HAE B EERRERALBEE - URME
BAEITRERFE ©
Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
[EHEB7 : RES
General Disclosure Information on: Supply Chain Management and 62; 63-64
—RIEE (a) the policies; and Business Ethics;
(b) compliance with relevant laws and Procurement Practices;
regulations that have a significant {HFESEEIBpREE ;
impact on the issuer RSB ;
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and
money laundering.
BELLHER - $R - MEFRIEREMN :
(@) BR : &
(b) BFEBTABERLENHEBER
REBHIER -
KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases Procurement Practices; 63-64
BAREN regarding corrupt practices brought #REEEH ;
$51EB7.1 against the issuer or its employees during
the Reporting Period and the outcomes of
the cases.

REZRHANEBRTASIEEERHICE
BNESRARMAFNEE RFRER

MIE(EB)BRAR | — B - —F 5,
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Subject Areas,

WESE

T

BRBIARE  #HERE
AR EESIRE RS @)

Aspects, General Relevant Chapter(s) or Page
Disclosures and KPIs Description Other References/Explanation Number
TEHE EH
—REER
BERENIER it HEEHREMSIT e i
KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and Procurement Practices 63-64
RASREN whistle-blowing procedures, how they are  EREE1E I
151ER7.2 implemented and monitored.

WL EE e REHREF 0 UREEHRT

REERFE -
KPI'B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training Employee Development 60
RAREN provided to directors and staff. EEERE
151EB7.3 HlOESKETRUENREITET -
Community
HE
Aspect B8: Community Investment
[EEBS : HEKRE
General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to  Community Investment 67-68
—RIEE understand the needs of the communities #E&RE

where the issuer operates and to ensure

its activities take into consideration the

communities’ interests.

FEUHEBEZHERTREEMEHEREER

MEREEKEDEZEEHLENRENK

x o
KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. Volunteering and Charitable 68-69
BESRE N education, environmental concerns, Activities
$51ZB8.1 labour needs, health, culture, sport). SRR EE T

EXEREBE(NHE REETH -HT

ERRBEE-BBE)
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Kwek Leng Hai

Aged 68, the Chairman of the Company since October 2006
and has been a Non-executive Director of the Company since
appointment to the Board in 1997. Mr. Kwek is also the Chairman
of Board Nomination Committee and a member of Board
Remuneration Committee of the Company.

Mr. Kwek is a director and shareholder of Guoline Capital Assets
Limited (“GCA"), the ultimate holding company of the Company.
He is the Executive Chairman of Guoco Group Limited (“GGL"),
a subsidiary of GCA and listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”). He is also
a Non-executive director of GuocolLand Limited (“GuocolLand”,
GGL's subsidiary listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities
Trading Limited (“SGX-ST")). He is the Non-executive chairman
of GL Limited (“GL", GGL's subsidiary) which was privatized and
delisted from the Official List of SGX-ST on 14 June 2021. He
serves as a Non-executive director of Hong Leong Bank Berhad
("HLBB", a listed subsidiary of Hong Leong Financial Group Berhad
("HLFG"), GGL's associated company listed on Bursa Malaysia)
and Bank of Chengdu Co., Ltd. which is an associated company of
HLBB and listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange.

Mr. Kwek qualified as a chartered accountant of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. He has extensive
experience in various business sectors, including but not limited
to finance, investment, manufacturing and real estate. He is the
brother-in-law of Dr. Whang Sun Tze, a Non-executive Director of
the Company.
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Wong Cho Fai

Aged 54, Group Managing Director and Executive Director of the
Company since appointment to the Board in July 2020.

Mr. Wong holds a bachelor’s degree in Social Science and a
master’s degree in Business Administration from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong. He also completed the General
Management Program in Harvard Business School.

Mr. Wong has more than 30 years of experiences in fast moving
consumer goods in USA, Asia and particularly China. Mr. Wong
has worked in several multinational Fortune 500 corporations,
including Campbell Soup, S.C. Johnson, Coca Cola and Colgate
Palmolive. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Wong served as the
President of Campbell Soup Greater China and the Managing
Director of S.C. Johnson Greater China.

Chew Seong Aun

Aged 57, Non-executive Director of the Company since
appointment to the Board in January 2021.

Mr. Chew is the Executive Director and the Group Chief Financial
Officer of GGL.

Mr. Chew is a director of GGL's key listed subsidiaries and
associated companies of the Company including as the non-
executive director of The Rank Group Plc (listed on the London
Stock Exchange) and Guocoland. He is also an executive director
of GL. Mr. Chew is the chairman of the board of directors of Hong
Leong Asset Management Berhad, a subsidiary of HLFG. Prior
to joining the Company, Mr. Chew had been the chief financial
officer of HLFG since 2006 and before that he had held various
senior banking positions in the Middle East and Asia for over 10
years.

Mr. Chew obtained a Bachelor of Science (Eng) degree in Civil
Engineering (Honours) in 1986 from Imperial College, University
of London and is a fellow member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales. He is also a member of Asian
Institute of Chartered Bankers in Malaysia. He has over 30 years of
experience in finance and banking.
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Whang Sun Tze ph.p.

Aged 77, Non-executive Director of the Company since
appointment to the Board in 1984.

Dr. Whang holds a Doctorate Degree in Chemical Engineering. He
is the brother-in-law of Mr. Kwek Leng Hai.

Lo Kai Yiu, Anthony

Aged 72, Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
since appointment to the Board in December 2008. He is the
Chairman of Board Audit and Risk Management Committee
and a member of Board Nomination Committee and Board
Remuneration Committee of the Company.

Mr. Lo is qualified as a chartered accountant with the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Ontario, Canada and a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Lo has
over 30 years of experience in banking, finance and investments.
He worked for a number of well-known financial institutions as
managing director.

Mr. Lo also holds other directorships in a number of listed
companies in Hong Kong including independent non-executive
director, the audit committee chairman and members of the
compensation and nomination committees of Playmates Holdings
Limited; independent non-executive director, audit committee
chairman and member of the remuneration committee of Tristate
Holdings Limited; and independent non-executive director, audit
committee chairman and member of the nomination committee of
Convenience Retail Asia Limited. He retired as independent non-
executive director of The Taiwan Fund, Inc., a company listed on
the New York Stock Exchange, in April 2018.
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Huang Lester Garson sgs, Jp

Aged 61, was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director
of the Company in November 2013. Mr. Huang is the Chairman of
the Board Remuneration Committee and a member of the Board
Audit and Risk Management Committee of the Company.

Mr. Huang is an independent non-executive director and a
member of both the board audit and risk management committee
and the board remuneration committee of GGL.

Mr. Huang is a practicing solicitor and notary public, and is
currently Managing Partner and Co-Chairman of P. C. Woo &
Co., a solicitor firm in Hong Kong. Mr. Huang became a qualified
solicitor of Hong Kong in March 1985 and has over 30 years
of post-qualification experience. Mr. Huang graduated with a
Bachelor of Laws degree from the University of Hong Kong in 1982
and a Master of Education from the Chinese University of Hong
Kong in 2006.

In 2002, the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region (“The Government of HKSAR") appointed Mr. Huang as
a Justice of the Peace. In July 2018, The Government of HKSAR
awarded him a Silver Bauhinia Star for his public services.

Mr. Huang is a non-executive director of the Securities and
Futures Commission (“SFC"). He also chairs the Investor and
Financial Education Council (a subsidiary of the SFC). Mr. Huang's
public roles also include serving as the Chairman of Council of
City University of Hong Kong and the Social Welfare Advisory
Committee of the Labour and Welfare Bureau. He is also a director
of Lei Foundation Limited (formerly known as “Faithful Servant
Charitable Foundation Limited”) since August 2019 and a Steward
of The Hong Kong Jockey Club since April 2020.

Mr. Huang was admitted to the Roll of Honour of the Law Society
of Hong Kong (“Law Society”) in May 2021. Previously, he was
the President of the Law Society from 2007 to 2009. He was also
a member of the Hospital Authority and the Hong Kong Monetary
Authority’s Exchange Fund Advisory Committee as well as a non-
executive director of the Urban Renewal Authority. He also served
as a member of the Standing Committee on Judicial Salaries and
Conditions of Service and other public positions.

Mr. Huang is an independent non-executive director, the
remuneration committee chairman, the audit committee member
and the nomination committee member of Kidsland International
Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange.
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Ho Yuk Wai, Joan

Aged 56, Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
since appointment to the Board in November 2019. She is
a member of both the Board Audit and Risk Management
Committee and the Board Nomination Committee of the
Company.

Ms. Ho is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a member of the Chartered Professional
Accountants of Canada. She is also a Chartered Financial Analyst
and a member of the CFA Institute. Ms. Ho graduated from
Queen’s University, Canada with a bachelor’s degree (with
honours) in Commerce.

Ms. Ho has over 30 years of experience in auditing and advisory
services. She was an audit partner of KPMG China financial
services group between 2000 and 2015 and was also in charge of
the firm’s internal audit, risk and compliance services for financial
institutions and the accounting advisory services. Ms. Ho has
extensive experience in capital market transactions and conducting
operational reviews of banks in Hong Kong and the People’s
Republic of China.

Ms. Ho also serves as a member for a number of regulatory review
tribunals and disciplinary panels.
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Corporate Governance Practices

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) has adopted
a Code of Corporate Governance Practices (the “CGP Code”),
which is based on the Corporate Governance Code set out in
Appendix 14 (the "HKEX Code”) to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”). The CGP Code is reviewed from time to time
and updated as appropriate to align with the revised provisions
of the HKEX Code. Continuous efforts are made to review and
enhance the Group’s risk management and internal controls and
procedures in light of changes in regulations and developments in
best practices.

The Board is pleased to report compliance with the HKEX Code for
the year ended 30 June 2021, except where otherwise stated.

Every director is subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years pursuant to the Articles of Association of the
Company and the CGP Code.

Despite non-executive directors were not appointed for a specific
term, they are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at
the annual general meetings of the Company, as stipulated by the
HKEX Code. As such, the Company considers that such provisions
are sufficient to meet the intent of the relevant provisions of the
HKEX Code.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company had adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) as the code of conduct
governing directors’ securities transactions.

All directors of the Company during the year, following specific
enquiry by the Company, have confirmed that they have complied
with the required standard set out in the Model Code throughout
the year.
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Board of Directors
Composition of the Board

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
hereof are set out in the Directors’ Report on page 106.

Board Meetings, General Meeting and Attendance

During the year, four board meetings and one general meeting

EEXg
EERER

RAFEARBIFBEERD  ARRAZES

ERECHNFI06EESEREER -

EXZE88  RRASRUEER

RAFER  HBFTOABEEEEER —ARR

were held. Details of individual attendance of directors at the RE - BREERTFERNLEEESERRR
board meetings and general meeting during the year are set out in RAREZHFBEHNT X :
the table below:
Board General
Meeting Meeting
Number of Number of
Attendance/ Attendance/
Number of Number of
Meeting Held Meeting Held
EEEEE BRAE
HERE HERE,
Name of Director BN HITEBRE SITEBARY
Chairman: E
Mr. KWEK Leng Hai ML 4/4 A
Group Managing Director: EEESAKHE
Mr. WONG Cho Fai E=EELSE 4/4 11
Non-Executive Directors: EHITESE .
Mr. CHEW Seong Aun (ote ) JERE 2 o A iz 1) 2/2 0/0
Dr. WHANG Sun Tze FLEEL 4/4 11
Mr. TAN Lim Heng (Mete2) 3R v 6 4 4 (Araz2) 2/2 171
Mr. TANG Hong Cheong ®ete 3 BOSE B 54 s 2/2 11
Independent Non-Executive Directors: BIFEHTES :
Mr. LO Kai Yiu, Anthony BRUBLE 4/4 11
Mr. HUANG Lester Garson ERALE 4/4 11
Ms. HO Yuk Wai, Joan MEEZ+ 4/4 1/1
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Board of Directors (continued)

Board Meetings, General Meeting and Attendance
(continued)

Notes:

1. Mr. CHEW Seong Aun (“Mr. Chew") was appointed as a Non-
executive Director with effect from 1 January 2021. Two board
meetings were held during the period from 1 January 2021 (date of
appointment of Mr. Chew) to 30 June 2021.

2. Mr. TAN Lim Heng (“Mr. Tan") retired as a Non-executive Director
after the conclusion of the annual general meeting held on 11
November 2020 (“2020 AGM"). Two board meetings and one
general meeting were held during the period from 1 July 2020 up
to the conclusion of the 2020 AGM (date of retirement of Mr. Tan).

3. Mr. TANG Hong Cheong (“Mr. Tang”) retired as a Non-executive
Director with effect from 1 January 2021. Two board meetings and
one general meeting were held during the period from 1 July 2020
up to 1 January 2021 (date of retirement of Mr. Tang).

Operations of the Board

The Board determines the corporate mission and broad strategies,
monitors and controls operating and financial performance and
sets appropriate policies to manage risks in pursuit of the Group'’s
strategic objectives. Decisions involving financial statements,
dividend policy, material contracts and major investments and
divestments are reviewed and subject to approval by the Board.
Other main roles of the Board are to review the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate governance and to ensure
that adequate risk management and internal control systems and
management information systems are in place, including being
in compliance with every aspect of the provisions of applicable
laws, regulations, rules, directives and guidelines to create value
for its shareholders and to ensure that the Company has adequate
management to achieve the Company’s strategic objectives.

The Board has delegated the day-to-day management and
operation of the Group’s businesses to management of the
Company and its subsidiaries.

Where appropriate, decisions are also taken by way of circulated
resolutions.

Board papers are circulated prior to board meetings on a timely
manner, which include, among others, financial and corporate
information, significant operational and corporate issues and
business performance of the Group as well as management
proposals which require the approval of the Board.

All directors have access to the advice and services of the company
secretary and internal auditors, and upon reasonable request,
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at
the Company’s expense, if any.
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Board of Directors (continued)

Independence of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors

The Company received confirmation of independence from each
of the independent non-executive directors (“INEDs"”) for the year
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Up to and as at the date
of this report, the Company considers that the INEDs continue to
be independent.

Relationship among the Members of the Board

The family relationships among the members of the Board are
disclosed under “Board of Directors and Senior Management” on
pages 81 to 85 of this annual report.

Directors’ Continuous Training and Development
Programme

Pursuant to the HKEX Code which took effect on 1 April 2012,
all directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
This is to ensure that their contribution to the board remains
informed and relevant.

The Company has put in place a training and development
programme for directors which includes (i) induction/
familiarisation programme for newly appointed directors; and (ii)
on-going training and professional development programme for
directors.

During the year ended 30 June 2021, all directors of the Company
namely, Messrs. KWEK Leng Hai, WONG Cho Fai, CHEW Seong
Aun (appointed on 1 January 2021), WHANG Sun Tze, LO Kai
Yiu, Anthony, HUANG Lester Garson, Ms. HO Yuk Wai, Joan,
Messrs. TAN Lim Heng (retired on 11 November 2020) and
TANG Hong Cheong (retired on 1 January 2021) received regular
briefings and updates on the Group’s business, operations, risk
management and corporate governance matters. Materials on new
or changes to salient laws and regulations, environmental, social
and governance matters applicable to the Group were provided to
the directors. They also attended regulatory update sessions and
seminars on relevant topics. All directors are requested to provide
the Company with their respective training record pursuant to the
CGP Code.
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Chairman and Group Managing
Director

The roles of Chairman and Group Managing Director (“GMD") are
segregated and are not held by the same person. Currently Mr.
KWEK Leng Hai is the Chairman and Mr. WONG Cho Fai is the
GMD of the Company.

The Chairman leads the Board and ensures its smooth and
effective functioning. The GMD is responsible for the vision and
strategic direction of the Group, implementing the policies and
decisions of the Board, initiating business ideas and corporate
strategies to create competitive edge and enhancing shareholder
wealth, setting the benchmark and targets for operating
companies, overseeing the day-to-day operations and tracking
compliance and business progress.

Non-Executive Directors

The non-executive directors were not appointed for a specific
term. However, they are subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the annual general meeting pursuant to the articles of
association of the Company and the CGP Code.

Board Committees

During the year, three board committees, namely, the Board
Remuneration Committee, the Board Audit and Risk Management
Committee and the Board Nomination Committee were in place
for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs pursuant
to the Listing Rules and the CGP Code.

The three board committees of the Company are established with
defined written terms of reference, approved by the Board, which
set out the Committees’ major duties. The terms of reference
now being posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company, are available to shareholders.

The majority of the members of each board committee are INEDs.
The list of the chairman and members of each board committee is
set out in the following board committee section.

The board committees are provided with sufficient resources
to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are
able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expense.
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Board Committees (continued)
Board Remuneration Committee (“BRC")

The Company established the BRC on 1 July 2005 with specific
written terms of reference in accordance with the requirements
of the Stock Exchange which deal clearly with its authority and
duties.

The principal role and functions of the BRC are to make
recommendations to the Board on its policy and structure for the
remuneration of directors and senior management, as well as to
determine the specific remuneration packages of all executive
directors and senior management, including benefits in kind,
pension rights and compensation payments, which may include
any compensation payable for loss or termination of their office or
appointment. Detailed terms of reference of the BRC are accessible
on the Company’s website and HKEX's website.

The BRC has adopted the approach under code provision B.1.2(c)(i)
of the HKEX Code to determine, with delegated responsibility
and authorisation by the Board, the remuneration packages of
individual executive directors and senior management.

During the year, the BRC comprised Messrs. HUANG Lester Garson
(Chairman of the BRC), KWEK Leng Hai and LO Kai Yiu, Anthony.
Mr. HUANG Lester Garson and Mr. LO Kai Yiu, Anthony are INEDs
of the Company whilst Mr. KWEK Leng Hai is the Chairman of the
Company.

During the year, two BRC meetings were held. The individual
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attendance of each member are as follows: HRELEEZBEREIAOT :
Number of
Attendance/
Number of
Meeting Held
HERE
Name of Director BEEHSZ HITEBRNHY
Mr. HUANG Lester Garson (Chairman) BRAfE (ZE) 2/2
Mr. KWEK Leng Hai S/ E 2/2
Mr. LO Kai Yiu, Anthony ERURLE 2/2
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Board Committees (continued)
Board Remuneration Committee (“BRC") (continued)
Work done for the financial year 2020/2021

- reviewed and recommended directors’ fees for non-
executive directors for the financial year 2019/2020;

- reviewed and approved the discretionary bonuses for
executive director and senior management for the financial
year 2019/2020;

- reviewed the remuneration packages of executive director
and senior management;

- reviewed the terms of reference of the BRC and remuneration
policy for directors and senior management; and

- deliberated the statement relating to the BRC for inclusion
in the Corporate Governance Report.

Level and Make-up of Remuneration

The Group’'s remuneration scheme for executive director and
senior management is linked to performance, service seniority,
experience and scope of responsibility and is based on the
provisions in the Group’s Human Resources Manual, which are
reviewed from time to time to align with market/industry practices.

The level of remuneration of non-executive directors reflects the
level of responsibilities undertaken by them.

The fees of directors, including non-executive directors, are
recommended and endorsed by the Board for shareholders’
approval at the Company’s annual general meeting.

Details of the remuneration of the directors for the year ended 30
June 2021 are provided in note 9 to the Financial Statements in
this annual report.

BEEZEE @
ExgyMEZEe((FMEEE]) (&)
R2020/20215F E <2 T1E

- HMEE-NCERCREEIHAUTE
BErHEMESSFEHEZRR |

= BRERMEBZE=ZT N —ZT=TF
E2HTEEREEBERBABZIRA

= BEARNTESRSEEEAEZHEE
B,

- BV HEESBESEURESM
BEEEASZHMEE &

- HEREXEARBRETEBFHEZES
YRR o

K FREE
FEBHATESRSEBEEAS ZHM IR
®E - BBFE  CREBESEET - TRE

REBANERFMA M - LAEFRRES
5 1THREH - EHRES o

FHTESZH MK FRBREBEKF -

EX(BEFUTES) 2HSHESTERRA
o ERRAARARREFES LA -

RBE_T_—FARA=THLFEZEEH:
B ERAF 3Rz B AR L o

92 Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited | Annual Report 2021



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREAWMES

Board Committees (continued)
Board Nomination Committee (“BNC")

The Company established the BNC on 1 April 2012 with specific
written terms of reference in accordance with the requirement
of the Stock Exchange which deal clearly with its authority and
duties.

The principal role of the BNC is to make recommendations to the
Board on the structure, size and composition of the Board, to
review the independence of INEDs, the suitability of directors who
will stand for re-election and directors’ continuous training and
development programme, to formulate, review and implement
a policy for the nomination of directors (including nomination
procedures) and to formulate a policy concerning board diversity,
monitor the implementation of such policy and to review the same,
as appropriate. Detailed terms of reference of the BNC is accessible
on the Company’s website and HKEX's website.

The BNC comprised Messrs. KWEK Leng Hai (Chairman of the
BNC), LO Kai Yiu, Anthony, and Ms. HO Yuk Wai, Joan. Mr. LO Kai
Yiu, Anthony and Ms. HO Yuk Wai, Joan are INEDs of the Company
whilst Mr. KWEK Leng Hai is the Chairman of the Company.

During the year, one BNC meeting was held. The individual
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attendance of each member is as follows: RELEEZBEREIAT :

Number of

Attendance/

Number of

Meeting Held

HERE,

Name of Director BEEHS HITEBRH
Mr. KWEK Leng Hai (Chairman) S/ EE(EE) 71
Mr. LO Kai Yiu, Anthony ERURLE iVAl
Ms. HO Yuk Wai, Joan MEE L 11
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Board Committees (continved)

Board Nomination Committee (“BNC") (continued)

Work done during the year

94

reviewed the suitability of a candidate to be appointed as
a non-executive director of the Company pursuant to the
process and criteria as set out in the nomination policy (the
“Nomination Policy”);

reviewed the structure, size, composition and diversity and
gender of the Board (including the mix of skills, knowledge,
experience, competences of directors, and the balance
between executive directors, non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors) annually and for
proposed changes of board composition;

reviewed and accessed the independence of independent
non-executive directors of the Company;

reviewed the profile of and participation in the Company’s
affairs of the directors who stood for re-election at annual
general meeting;

reviewed the continuous training and development
programmes undertaken by directors to ensure that an
appropriate program is in place;

reviewed the Board Diversity Policy, the terms of reference
of the BNC and reviewed and updated the Nomination
Policy; and

deliberated the statement relating to BNC for inclusion in
the Corporate Governance Report.
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Board Committees (continued)
Board Nomination Committee (“BNC") (continued)
Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted the Board Diversity Policy pursuant to
which the Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of
having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance.
The Company maintains that selection of candidates for Board
appointments will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service and the ultimate decision will be based on
merit and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to
the Board.

During the year, the assessment and selection of candidates for
appointment as a non-executive director was made pursuant to
the objectives of the Board Diversity Policy. While conscious efforts
are being taken to achieve board diversity, the new appointment
is ultimately made on a merit basis taking into account available
and suitable candidates. With a view to achieving a sustainable
and balanced development, the BNC has also reviewed the
structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board to ensure
that its composition complies with the Listing Rules and reflects an
appropriate mix of education disciplines, professional experiences
and skill set.

The BNC reviews annually the Board Diversity Policy to ensure its
effectiveness and application.

Nomination Policy

The Company has adopted the Nomination Policy which serves as
a guiding mechanism and framework for the BNC on the process
for new appointments and re-appointments of directors, Group
Managing Director and board committee members and their
annual assessment.

The BNC reviews annually the Nomination Policy to ensure its
effectiveness and application and will update, amend and modify
as appropriate to ensure it continues to be relevant to needs of
the Company and is consistent with regulatory and corporate
governance requirements.

The Nomination Policy is accessible on the Company’s website.
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Board Committees (continved)

Board Audit and Risk Management Committee
("BARMC")

The Company established the Board Audit Committee on 29
December 1998 with specific written terms of reference in
accordance with the requirements of the Stock Exchange which
deal clearly with its authority and duties. On 17 February 2016, the
Board has resolved to rename the Committee as Board Audit and
Risk Management Committee ("BARMC").

The BARMC oversees the financial reporting process, assesses
the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s system of
risk management and internal control, oversees the Company’s
environmental, social and governance (“ESG”) matters including,
among others, monitoring the ESG reporting progress and
reviewing the ESG report as well as the ESG-related risks and
issues. The BARMC meets with the Company’s external and
internal auditors, and reviews their audit plans, the internal audit
programmes, the results of their examinations as well as their
evaluations of the system of risk management and internal control.
It also reviews directors’ interests in contracts and connected
transactions. The BARMC reviews the Group’s and the Company’s
financial statements and the auditors’ report thereon and submits
its views to the Board. Detailed terms of reference of the BARMC
are accessible on the Company’s website.

During the year, the BARMC comprised Messrs. LO Kai Yiu,
Anthony (Chairman of the BARMC), HUANG Lester Garson and
Ms. HO Yuk Wai, Joan. Mr. LO Kai Yiu, Anthony, Mr. HUANG
Lester Garson and Ms. HO Yuk Wai, Joan are INEDs of the
Company.

During the year, five BARMC meetings were held. The individual
attendance of each member are as follows:
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Mr. LO Kai Yiu, Anthony (Chairman)
Mr. HUANG Lester Garson
Ms. HO Yuk Wai, Joan
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Board Committees (continved)

Board Audit and Risk Management Committee
("BARMC") (continued)

The following is a summary of the work performed by the BARMC
during the year:

- reviewed the nature and scope of external audit, the
independence of external auditor and effectiveness of the
audit process and approved the external audit fee and the
engagement terms;

- reviewed the interim financial report, the interim results
announcement, the annual accounts and the final results
announcement;

- reviewed the external auditor’'s management letter, any
material queries raised by the auditor to management
about accounting records, financial accounts or systems of
control, as well as management’s response thereto;

- reviewed and discussed with the management the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control system, including the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications, experience and training programmes;

- reviewed the Group's accounting policies and practices;

- reviewed and approved the annual internal audit plan;

- reviewed major findings of internal audit assignments and
the progress of implementation of remedial measures on

control issues identified;

- reviewed the effectiveness of the processes for financial
reporting and Listing Rule compliance of the Company;

- monitored the ESG reporting progress and reviewed the

ESG report of the Company as well as the ESG related risks
and issues;

- reviewed connected transactions entered into by the Group
or subsisting during the year;
- reviewed the terms of reference of the BARMC; and

- deliberated the statement relating to the BARMC for
inclusion in the Corporate Governance Report.
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Directors’ Responsibilities for
Preparing the Financial Statements

The directors of the Company have acknowledged their
responsibility for preparing the financial statements for the year.
There are no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in
the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 121 to 127 of this
annual report.

Auditors’ Remuneration

Auditors’ remuneration for the year is set out in note 7 to the
financial statements on page 172.

Risk Management and Internal
Control

The risk management and internal control system is designed to
facilitate the effectiveness and efficiency of operations, safeguard
assets against unauthorised use and disposition, ensure the
maintenance of proper accounting records and the truth and
fairness of the financial statements, and ensure compliance with
relevant legislation and regulations. It provides reasonable, but
not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss and
manages rather than eliminates risks associated with its business
activities.

The Board, recognising its responsibilities in ensuring sound
risk management and internal controls, has developed a set of
Enterprise Risk Management framework (“ERM framework”) for
the Group and set forth in its policy and procedures to assist in:

- identifying the enterprise risks faced by the Group in the
operating environment as well as evaluating the impact of
such risks identified;

- developing the necessary measures for managing these
risks; and

- monitoring and reviewing the effectiveness and adequacy
of such measures.
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Risk Management and Internal
Control (continued)

The ERM framework consists of interactive processes for each of
our business units to constantly identify and access risks in terms of
their potential impact and probability of occurrence, as well as to
establish and implement relevant procedures and internal controls
for risk mitigation, ongoing monitoring and periodic reporting by
management to ensure that residual risks after taking into account
risk mitigating measures fall within the risk appetite and tolerance
set by the Board.

The Board has entrusted the BARMC with the responsibility to
oversee the implementation of the ERM framework of the Group.
In discharging this responsibility, the BARMC, assisted by the
Group Internal Audit Department (“GIAD"):

- ensures that new and emerging enterprise risks are
promptly identified by management;

- assesses the adequacy of action plans and control systems
developed to manage these risks;

- monitors the implementation of the action plans and the
effectiveness and adequacy of the control systems; and

- ensures the Group’s risk register is up-to-date and risk
profile reports are furnished by management to the BARMC
review.

These on-going processes have been in place, and reviewed
periodically by the BARMC to ensure their effectiveness,
supplemented by the other reports from GIAD on the Group's
internal control and risk management findings.

The controls built into the risk management framework are
intended to manage and not expected to eliminate all risks of
failure to achieve business objectives. These controls provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement of management and financial information or against
financial losses and fraud.
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Risk Management and Internal
Control (continued)

The Board, through the BARMC, has conducted an annual review
on the Group’s risk management and internal control system and
considers that it is adequate and effective covering all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls,
with a view to ensuring that resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the Group’s
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions are
adequate. The Board is satisfied that the Group has fully complied
with the provisions on risk management and internal controls as
set out in the CGP Code.

Handling and Dissemination of Inside Information

The Company has established and implemented relevant
procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information, including restricting employee
access to inside information on a need-to-know basis and ensuring
that those who need to know understand the obligation of
keeping the information confidential. All inside information is
disclosed to the public pursuant to the requirements under the
Securities and Futures Ordinance and the Listing Rules and kept
strictly confidential before disclosure.

Shareholders’ Rights

The Company has only one class of shares, all shares have the same
voting rights and are entitled to the dividends declared.

(a) Rights and procedures for shareholders to
convene extraordinary general meetings
("EGM")

Subject to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Chapter
622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), the Directors shall on
the requisition of shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholder(s)”) representing at least 5% of the total
voting rights of all the shareholder(s) having a right to vote
at general meetings of the Company, forthwith proceed
duly to convene an EGM of the Company.

The requests must state the general nature of the business
to be dealt with at the meeting and may include the text
of a resolution that may properly be moved and is/are
intended to be moved at the meeting. The request must be
signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the registered
office of the Company for the attention of the Company
Secretary in hard copy form.
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Shareholders’ Rights (continued)

(b)

Rights and procedures for shareholders to make

proposals at general meetings

(i)

(ii)

Rights and procedures for a shareholder to
propose a person for election as a director are
as follows:

Pursuant to Article 86 of the Company’s Articles
of Association, shareholder(s) may send a notice
in writing of the intention to propose a person for
election as a director and notice in writing by that
person of his willingness to be elected shall have
been delivered to the Company’s registered office
provided that the minimum length of the period
during which such notices are given, shall be at least
seven days and that the period for lodgement of the
notices shall commence no earlier than the day after
the despatch of the notice of the meeting appointed
for such election and end no later than seven days
prior to the date of such meeting.

Rights and procedures for proposing resolution
to be put forward at a general meeting:

Shareholder(s) can submit a written requisition to
move a resolution at an annual general meeting
("AGM") if they:

- represent at least 2.5% of the total voting
rights of all shareholders who have a right to
vote on the resolution at the AGM; or

- at least 50 shareholders who have a right to
vote on the resolution at the AGM.
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Dividend Policy

The Board has adopted the Dividend Policy which sets out the
guiding principles with aims to create long term value for its
shareholders through maintaining a balance between dividend
distribution, preserving adequate liquidity and reserve to meet
its working capital requirements, and capturing future growth
opportunities.

Pursuant to this, the Board may propose/declare the payment
of dividend(s) after taking into account the current financial
performance of the Company, the future financial requirements of
the Company and any other factors the Board may deem relevant.

The Board may also decide on the frequency of dividend payment
and further declare/recommend any special distributions.
Dividend(s) may be in the form of cash, shares, distribution in-
specie or any other form as the Board may determine.

The Board may review the Dividend Policy from time to time and
update, amend, modify and/or cancel the Dividend Policy at any
time in the interest of the Company and its shareholders.

Communication with Shareholders

The Company uses a range of communication tools to ensure its
shareholders are kept well informed of key business imperatives.
These include annual general meeting, annual report, interim
report, various notices, announcements and circulars.

The Company shall communicate other information to
Shareholders on a need basis by way of announcement which will
be posted on the websites of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing
Limited and the Company. Other than AGM, EGM shall be held
pursuant to relevant rules and regulations if required. Shareholders
shall receive explanatory circulars and proxy forms relating to the
EGMs. Proxy arrangements for the general meetings are in place
for shareholders who are unable to attend the meetings in person.
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Communication with Shareholders

(continued)

Shareholders and the investment community shall be provided
with designated contacts, email addresses and enquiry lines of the
Company, which are available on the Company’s website, in order
to enable them to make any query in respect of the Company or to
make a request for the Company’s information to the extent such
information is publicly available.

Shareholders’ questions about their shareholdings should be
directed to the Company’s Share Registrar, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Rooms 1712-1716, 17/F,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

Investor Relations

In order to enhance communication between the Company
and investors/analysts, senior management members will hold
meetings with investors/analysts upon request as and when the
need arises.

Investors are welcome to send email directly to the Company
Secretary’s email at comsec@lamsoon.com or browse the
Company’s website for the latest release and financial
information.

A dedicated Investor Relations section is available on the
Company’s website (http://www.lamsoon.com). Information on
the Company’s website is updated on a regular basis.
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The directors submit their annual report together with the
audited financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 30 June 2021.

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment holding company and the principal
activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out on pages 233 to
235.

Principal Subsidiaries

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out on
pages 233 to 235.

Business Review

The business review of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2021
are provided in the Chairman’s Statement, Review of Operations
and Environmental, Social and Governance Report of this annual
report.

Financial Statements

The profit of the Group for the year, the state of affairs of the
Company and of the Group as at 30 June 2021 and the Group’s
cash flows and statement of changes in equity for the year ended
are set out in the financial statements on pages 128 to 232.

Dividends

The Directors are recommending to the shareholders for approval
at the forthcoming annual general meeting to be held on
Wednesday, 10 November 2021 a final dividend of HK$0.33 per
share totaling approximately HK$80,307,000. This, together with
the interim dividend of HK$0.15 per share paid on Tuesday, 23
March 2021, will amount to a total dividend of HK$0.48 per share
for the year (2020: interim dividend of HK$0.14 and final dividend
of HK$0.31 per share). Subject to shareholders’ approval, the final
dividend will be payable on Wednesday, 1 December 2021 to the
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members on
Friday, 19 November 2021.
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Closure of Register of Members

For ascertaining shareholders’ right to attend and vote at the
forthcoming annual general meeting:

Closure dates of Register of Members
(both days inclusive)

5 November 2021 (Friday) to

10 November 2021 (Wednesday)
Latest time to lodge transfers 4:30 p.m. on 4 November 2021
(Thursday)

Record date 10 November 2021 (Wednesday)

Annual General Meeting 10 November 2021 (Wednesday)

For ascertaining shareholders’ entitlement to the proposed final
dividend*:

Closure dates of Register of
Members (both days inclusive)

18 November 2021 (Thursday) to

19 November 2021 (Friday)

Latest time to lodge transfers 4:30 p.m. on 17 November 2021

(Wednesday)

Record date 19 November 2021 (Friday)

Proposed final dividend
payment date

1 December 2021 (Wednesday)

(*subject to shareholders’ approval at the annual general meeting)

During the periods of the closure of Register of Members, no
share transfers will be registered. For registration, all transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company’s Share Registrars and Transfer
Office — Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at
Rooms 1712-1716, 17/F, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong before the relevant latest time to lodge
transfers.

Share Capital

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in Note 21 to the financial statements.

Equity-Linked Agreements

Other than the Executive Share Option Scheme 2013 of the
Company as disclosed in this Directors’ Report, no equity-linked
agreement was entered into by the Company subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year ended 30 June 2021.
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Directors
The directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:

KWEK Leng Hai, Chairman*
WONG Cho Fai, Group Managing Director**
CHEW Seong Aun*
— appointed on 1 January 2021
WHANG Sun Tze, Ph.D.*
LO Kai Yiu, Anthony*
HUANG Lester Garson, SBS, JP*
HO Yuk Wai, Joan*
TAN Lim Heng*
— retired as Non-executive director after the conclusion of the
annual general meeting held on 11 November 2020
TANG Hong Cheong*
— retired as Non-executive director with effect from 1 January
2021

w Non-executive director
it Executive director
# Independent non-executive director

In accordance with Article 84 of the Company’s articles of
association and Code A.4.2 of the Code of Corporate Governance
Practices (the “CGP Code"”) of the Company, Messrs. KWEK Leng
Hai, LO Kai Yiu, Anthony and HUANG Lester Garson shall retire
from office by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting
("AGM") and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election
at the AGM.

In accordance with Article 89 of the Company’s articles of
association and Code A.4.2 of the CGP Code of the Company, Mr.
CHEW Seong Aun shall hold office until AGM and, being eligible,
will offer himself for re-election at the AGM.
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Directors (continued)
Directors of Subsidiaries

The names of all directors who have served on the boards of
the subsidiaries of the Company during the financial year ended
30 June 2021 or during the period from 1 July 2021 up to
the date of this report is available on the Company’s website
(http://www.lamsoon.com).

Directors’ Service Contracts

No director proposed for re-election at the AGM has a service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries, within
one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

Directors’ Interests in Transactions,
Arrangement or Contracts

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to which
the Company or any of its holding company, subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party, and in which a director of the Company
or an entity connected with a director had a material interest,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Permitted Indemnity

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, every director
of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the
assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities which he may
sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his office
or otherwise in relation thereto. The Company maintains directors
and officers liability insurance, which gives appropriate cover for
any legal action brought against its directors. The level of the
coverage is reviewed annually.
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Connected Transactions
Master Services Agreement

A master services agreement (the “Master Services Agreement”)
dated 3 July 2020 was entered into by Lam Soon (Hong Kong)
Limited (the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the
“Group”) with GuoLine Group Management Company Pte. Ltd.
("GGMC™") for the provision by the latter of management services
including, among other things, overview and/or oversight of
businesses and operations, investment management and financial
management disciplines, treasury and risk management, key
managerial recruitment and retention as well as other operating
practices and procedures, accounting, corporate advisory, legal,
company secretarial and other services (the “Services”).

GGMC or other Hong Leong Company (Malaysia) Berhad
("HLCM") and its subsidiaries (the “Hong Leong Group
company(ies)”) as may be agreed by the parties from time to
time are referred to as “Service Provider”; the Company and its
subsidiaries are referred to as “Services Recipients”.

The Master Services Agreement is for a term of three financial
years from 1 July 2020 to 30 June 2023.

The fee payable under the Master Service Agreement comprise:

1. a monthly fee (the “Monthly Fee”) as agreed from time
to time between such Service Recipient and the Service
Provider and is currently agreed to be approximately
HK$100,000 per month; and

2. an annual fee (the “Annual Fee”) equal to 3% of the annual
profit before tax of such Service Recipient as shown in its
audited profit and loss account for the relevant financial
year, subject to appropriate adjustment (for example, to
avoid double counting of profit, if any).

The yearly total fees, being the sum of the Monthly Fee, the
Annual Fee and the total amounts of any fees paid or payable by
the Group to any Hong Leong Group companies for services of a
similar nature as the Services, are subject to annual cap of HK$28
million (the “Annual Cap”) for each of the three financial years
ending 30 June 2023.
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Connected Transactions (continued)
Master Services Agreement (continued)

As at the date of the announcement of the Company made on
3 July 2020 (the “July 2020 Announcement”) relating to the
Master Services Agreement, GGMC, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of Guoline Capital Assets Limited (“GCA"), was indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of HLCM, the ultimate holding company and
a substantial shareholder of the Company at the time, and thus
GGMC was associate of a connected person (as defined under the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”)) of the Company
under the Listing Rules. On 16 April 2021, GCA replaced HLCM
to become the ultimate holding company and a substantial
shareholder of the Company following the completion of an
internal restructuring exercise (“Internal Restructuring”) with no
change of ultimate beneficial owners, and thus GGMC remains
as an associate of a connected person of the Company under the
Listing Rules during the year. The transactions under the Master
Services Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions
for the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company had
reviewed the transaction under the Master Services Agreement
during the year and confirmed that:

(1) the transaction under the Master Services Agreement for
the year was entered into:

- in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

- on normal commercial terms or better; and

- according to the agreement governing them and
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a
whole.

(2) the aggregate services fees paid and payable by the
Group under the Master Services Agreement for the year
amounted to approximately HK$13,823,000 which did not
exceed the Annual Cap of HK$28 million as disclosed in the
July 2020 Announcement.
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Connected Transactions (continued)
Master Distribution Agreement

On 27 March 2020, a master distribution agreement (the “Master
Distribution Agreement”) was entered into by Lam Soon (Hong
Kong) Limited (“LSHK"”, together with its subsidiaries, the “LSHK
Group”) with Manuka Health New Zealand Limited (“MHNZ",
together with its subsidiaries, the “MH Group”) pursuant to
which MH Group companies may during the term of the Master
Distribution Agreement agree to specific appointments of LSHK
Group companies to be the distributor(s) of the full range of
products of the MH Group (the “Products”) in the People’s
Republic of China and such other jurisdictions as the parties may
agree to be included from time to time.

The Master Distribution Agreement is for a term from 27 March
2020 to 30 June 2022.

As at the date of the announcement of the Company made on 27
March 2020 (the “March 2020 Announcement”) relating to the
Master Distribution Agreement, MHNZ was an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of Guoco Group Limited (“GGL") which was
an indirect subsidiary of HLCM, the ultimate holding company
and a substantial shareholder of the Company at the time,
and thus MHNZ was an associate of a connected person of the
Company under the Listing Rules. Upon completion of the Internal
Restructuring. GCA replaced HLCM to become the ultimate
holding company and a substantial shareholder of the Company
and GGL, and thus MHNZ remains as an associate of a connected
person of the Company under the Listing Rules during the year.
The transactions under the Master Distribution Agreement
constitute continuing connected transactions for the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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Connected Transactions (continued)
Master Distribution Agreement (continued)

The independent non-executive directors of the Company had
reviewed the transaction under the Master Distribution Agreement
during the year and confirmed that:

(1) the transaction under the Master Distribution Agreement
for the year was entered into:

- in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

- on normal commercial terms or better; and

- according to the agreement governing them and
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a
whole.

(2) the total amount of purchases of Products paid and
payable by the LSHK Group under the Master Distribution
Agreement for the year amounted to approximately
HK$34,745,000 which did not exceed the Annual Cap
of HK$120 million as disclosed in the March 2020
Announcement.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Company’s
auditors were engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions regarding the Master Services Agreement
and the Master Distribution Agreement mentioned above in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or
Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 "Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditors
have issued an unqualified letter containing their findings and
conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed above in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing
Rules. A copy of the auditors’ letter has been provided by the
Company to The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
"Stock Exchange”).

Save as disclosed above, there are no other transactions of
the Company which require disclosure in the annual report in
accordance with the Listing Rules.
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Management Contracts

Except for the Master Services Agreement disclosed in the section
of “Connected Transactions” above, no contract concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the business of the Group was entered into or subsisted
during the year.

Directors’ Interests in Competing
Business

None of the directors is interested in any business apart from the
Group’s business, which is likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Group.

Directors’ Interests in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures

As at 30 June 2021, the directors of the Company have the
following interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model Code”) set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules:
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MEH -

EERBFEE 2B

BEESREAEEXBEEEIBERTH
BRHFAREEER D EEE MRS -

EERKG - HERGRE
5 2 s

RZEBEZ—FXA=1+H FEERARQAH
HEMBELIE(EZRESRBEHRHN(ES
RHEGRAE D EXVR)BEEAREZESRBEE
RBIZEIS2EREMR 2 B AP FE 2B’
BREBRAPZXERSG - HERORES
ZHEZEBREBELTRAZ LT ATRESETHE
SRGWELEFA([ZEFA D AMNERQF
RBRFzERNT :
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Directors’ Interests in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures

(continued)

(A)

EECHES

EERRG - HERGORE
FZER @

The Company (A) EQH
Long positions in shares/underlying shares B KRG A
Approximate
percentage of
total number of
Number ordinary shares
of shares/ of the Company
underlying in issue
Nature of shares held HAQRE BT
Name of director interest BERG, Total TERAE
EEgE EEME HERG A BEt BABED T
KWEK Leng Hai Personal 2,300,000 2,300,000 0.95%
HTHE A
WHANG Sun Tze Personal 27,523,743
BEEE fEA
Corporate 19,326 Note 27,543,069 11.32%
NG HfaE
LO Kai Yiu, Anthony Personal 200,000 200,000 0.08%
& RUE &A
HUANG Lester Garson Family 150,000 150,000 0.06%
Note: Kzt :

The interests disclosed represent the corporate interests of Dr.
WHANG Sun Tze in 18,457 ordinary shares and 869 ordinary
shares in the Company held by SGR Investment Company,
Limited (“SGR") and T.C. Whang & Company (Private) Limited
("T.C. & Co.") respectively. Dr. WHANG Sun Tze holds 95.41% and
59.52% interests in SGR and T.C. & Co. respectively.

MIE(EB)ARQR | =

=

FIEBE2ERRELEBF L EBSGR
Investment Company, Limited([SGR) & T.C.
Whang & Company (Private) Limited([T.C. &
Co. DD BIFBEARAT 18,457 EL B S69
BEBR 2R ELEFLIESGRRT.C. &
Co. D BIFFH95.41% K& 59.52% 2 A% o
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Directors’ Interests in Shares,

Underlying Shares and Debentures

(continued)

(B)

114

EECHES

EERRG - HERORE
FZER @

Associated corporations (B) #EELEE
Long positions in shares/underlying shares BR&GIHEBRGZ A
Approximate
percentage of
total number
of ordinary
Number shares of
of shares/ associated
underlying corporation
shares in issue
Name of associated Name of Nature of held B EEE BT
corporation director interest EER®%/ Total TERAE
HEZEAE BEEn EEtE HEROEHE FoH BREDE
Guoline Capital Assets KWEK Leng Hai Personal 841,000 841,000 2.62%
Limited $2E A
Guoco Group Limited  KWEK Leng Hai Personal 3,800,775 3,800,775 1.16%
BEEEBRATE BLE @A
Guocoland Limited KWEK Leng Hai Personal 35,290,914 35,290,914 2.98%
BEREtERRLAT HIE BA
WHANG Sun Tze Family 66,600 66,600 0.01%
BLE Rik
Hong Leong Financial ~ KWEK Leng Hai Personal 2,526,000 2,526,000 0.22%
Group Berhad $2E BA
("HLFG")
WHANG Sun Tze Family 534,092 534,092 0.05%
BLE Rk
CHEW Seong Aun Personal 1,400,000 Note 1,400,000 0.12%
ARz fBA HtsE
Guocoland (Malaysia) KWEK Leng Hai Personal 226,800 226,800 0.03%
Berhad BLE A
The Rank Group Plc KWEK Leng Hai Personal 1,026,209 1,026,209 0.26%
RSB A
Note: Kzt :

The interests of 1,400,000 is an option of underlying shares of

HLFG.

1,400,000 88 RHLFGHEB IR 7 )3 B R iE HEFE

éo
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Directors’ Interests in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures

(continued)
(B) Associated corporations (continued)

Save as disclosed herein, none of the directors of the
Company had any interests or short positions in any shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be
kept under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.

Share Options

Executive Share Option Scheme 2013 (“ESOS 2013")

ESOS 2013 was approved by the shareholders of the Company at
the extraordinary general meeting held on 23 April 2013 and took
effect on 25 April 2013 (“Adoption Date”). Summary of details of
the ESOS 2013 is set out below:

The purpose of the ESOS 2013 is as follows:

(i) to align the long term interests of any executive or director
of the Group, who is eligible to participate in the ESOS
2013 ("Eligible Executives”) with those of the Shareholders
and encourage Eligible Executives to assume greater
responsibility for the performance of the business that they
manage;

(ii) to motivate Eligible Executives towards strategic business
objectives;

(iii)  to reward Eligible Executives with an equity stake in the
success of the Group; and

(iv)  to make the total compensation package more competitive
in order to attract, retain and motivate high caliber
executives.

EERRG - HERORE
FZER @

(B) REOEE (#F)

BRAXFKEEN  BEETAAQFAE
ERAQARAEEMEEEE(RER
ZRPERGIEXVIZER) BEAR
BESZRPEFRPIEI2RB[EMR Z
B AEzROIEERA D 2
KER®D - HERORESRRERE
SFAAMEARRRBRA 2 EE o

R

20131THIA ER PR BREFTEI([ 20138k 5
FEETE )

2003 RBETER-_ZE—=FNA=-+=
HRBRESIASLERRILE YR =-F
—=FMAZ+EHB(HRHBE ] E 2013
R RBRETEZFROT ¢

2013 M RBETENENOT ¢

(i) ERERAFEEHRSE013RMDZDERE
FEIZITHRAERES(GERITHA
ENWREMNSERR - ASBS
ERTBRABHESESMEEZEBHE
RAREREE

(i) HEHEERTHRABSEERBERLE
3

(iiiy BB ANHE 2% 52 B ¥ 5= [ 49 A 2h AF th B RK
ZRERITBAE &

(iv) FEREHFMSBERS - UEE - B®E
REBSEZNTHAS °
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Share Options (continued)

Executive Share Option Scheme 2013 (“ESOS 2013")
(continued)

To be eligible for participation in the ESOS 2013, a person must be
at least eighteen (18) years of age and:

(i) be an executive of a member of the Group and has been
confirmed in service; or

(ii) be a director of member of the Group.

The Board may at its absolute discretion select and identify suitable
Eligible Executives to be offered options.

The total number of shares which may be issued and/or transferred
by the Trust upon exercise of all options to be granted under
the ESOS 2013 and any other share option scheme shall not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the Company’s total number of shares
in issue at the Adoption Date of the ESOS 2013.

The maximum entitlement for any eligible executive in respect of
the total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
options granted and to be granted in any 12 months period does
not exceed 1% of the Company’s total number of shares in issue.

The Board may at its discretion determine the exercise price of an
option under the ESOS 2013 provided that the exercise price so
fixed shall not be less than greatest of (a) the average closing price
of a share as stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by the
Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding
the day of offer of such option; (b) the closing price of a share as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the day
of offer of such option, which must be a business day; and (c) the
nominal value of a share ote V),

A nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable on acceptance of
the share option within 30 days (or such longer period of time as
may be permitted by the Board at its discretion) from the date of
making such offer.

The ESOS 2013 will remain in force for a period of 10 years
commencing on 25 April 2013.

Note:

1. The concept of par value of a share was abolished with effect from
3 March 2014 pursuant to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

R EBRE =)

20131T A ERR DR BB RESTEI([ 2013 17
REETE ) (#')

HEEKRSHE2013RDABRETE 2 A T 4E
FmTN18)EmE -

(i) AEERERAZITHRABYLC KRR
REBERS R

(i) AREBHERARZES-

ETURHEYPIFRRERERESZS
BRITBRABRTREBE -

RIF2013R D ZBBE BN AR R IEE
SEIT TR AR BEETER - BT
R/FEEHEITEREIROLE  &HF
EEBARARKABHERTROBEZ
10% °

REM+ZEAHE  EHEERTHRAER
TEERHERERH:ABERCRITREE
TROKE RZSTEERBERTROKLEZ
1% °

EESURANBRERESRN2013RHRAE
BB TRE 2RBEZTEE - EREERE
MITEEEZLRTINERSE © (RERY
ZRBEZANLEEXABRXMzEARE
RFFBERZBRROFIHRHE S (0)RHEZR
BEERLWEREXR)BXMZEARESR
FrEER 2 B8RBROBHEROBREE®)

REHEHEFN=THER(REESSRER
BREAFN—ERRNE)  ERRBEAIY
REBEE T -

2013 A RBEH B ENARE=—F— =6
M=+ R+ -

HraE -

1. RIZEEE R TIRG > REEELHSE HE
B H-—FE—-WE=ZF =L -
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Share Options (continued)

Executive Share Option Scheme 2013 (“ESOS 2013")
(continued)

As at 1 July 2020, there were no outstanding options pursuant to
the ESOS 2013.

During the year, no share options were granted, vested, exercised,
lapsed or cancelled under the ESOS 2013. Accordingly, there were
no outstanding options at 30 June 2021.

Save for above, certain other subsidiaries of HLCM and GCA, the
ultimate holding companies of the Company at the respective time
during the year (see note 28 to the financial statements on page
231), maintain share option schemes or plans or arrangements
which subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year, under which eligible directors of the Company may be granted
share options for acquisition of shares of respective companies
concerned.

Apart from above, at no time during the year was the Company,
its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party
to any arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to
acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in or debentures
of the Company or any other body corporate.

R EBRE =)

20131T A BB B RESTEI([ 2013 17
REERTE ) (#')

RZBE-EFE+LHA—H - RIE2013RMDRERE
s8] WS KRITEZDBRE -

RAFER » F2013RHOABEET - LR
RODBEERIRE - BB - 1T/ - AR
BE Bt REZF--—FXA=+H AHE
6 RATEE 2RI HE o

bt E SN  HHCMR GCA(RAFESZH
HERAARQA 2&EAERAT)(R2318
2 IEMERMFE28) 2 & T HAK B D B AL
EHRNFEANEMFECRILNRDREES
EHARRLH Bt AATEBEREST
ERRBEEQTRMD 2RHODEE -

Br EXCFRLE SN MAFER  ADQF -~ £
BRAF -~ HEQBRNERMNEA R EEMER
BEXBEMNZHEZTNE  UBEALTES
AREWBAQAREMEMEE 2RO RNES
ESRS -
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests

As at 30 June 2021, the following shareholders (other than
directors of the Company whose interests or short positions in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company as disclosed above)
had interests or short positions in the shares and underlying shares
of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

FTERRZIERER

RZZBZ-FXA=1H REFHFRPEK
PIE336 M EMR BT EMPAE - T3
BRERREXFAARBDESAFBEARAR T ZR
DRBBRD D ZXRRG RAAERD 2 EH)
FAERRARDBEERA P LB RO KA
BARRAD 2 s -

Approximate

Number of percentage

shares held of interest

BFEZROAEE #zzBNasH

Guoline Capital Assets Limited (“GCA") 156,114,659 64.15%
QUEK Leng Chan ZB< & 156,114,659 64.15%
Hong Leong Investment Holdings Pte Limited (“HLIH") 156,114,659 64.15%
Davos Investment Holdings Private Limited (“Davos”) 156,114,659 64.15%
KWEK Leng Kee 156,114,659 64.15%

Note:

The interests comprised (i) 140,008,659 ordinary shares in the Company
held by Guoline International Limited (“GIL"); (ii) 6,781,000 ordinary
shares in the Company held by Richly Choice Development (PTC) Limited,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company; and (iii) 9,325,000 underlying
shares of the Company of other unlisted derivatives held by Oceanease
Limited.

GIL was a wholly-owned subsidiary of GCA. Oceanease Limited was a
wholly-owned subsidiary of GuocoEquity Assets Limited which in turn was
a wholly-owned subsidiary of GGL. GGL was 71.88% owned by Guoline
Overseas Limited (“GOL") which in turn was a wholly-owned subsidiary
of GCA. By virtue of Section 316(2) of the SFO, Mr. QUEK Leng Chan
held 49.11% interest in GCA. HLIH held 34.49% interest in GCA. Mr.
KWEK Leng Kee held 41.92% interest in Davos which in turn held 33.59%
interest in HLIH.

All the interests disclosed under this section were long positions in
the ordinary shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed herein, no other person (other than directors of
the Company) has an interest or a short position in the shares and
underlying shares as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

HraE -

ZHEZSEHE() Guoline International Limited ([ GILJ)
BAERARRQT 140,008,659 B 2 X 5 (DR
Tz 2 EK B2 FRichly Choice Development (PTC)
LimitedFBERA LD T6,781,000REBER 2R &
(iii) Oceanease LimitedZEBHAMF EHITETAEEE
ZN/A7]9,325,000 X BB IR 1D 2 % ©

GILAGCAZZE M B QX & o Oceanease Limited
AEERANEEBRATRZEZENBLAT » BEAR
HEREEWB AT B Z71.88% & HGuoline
Overseas Limited([ GOL]) #H& - MGOLAGCAZE
EWEAT - RIBEEFRPEKRHIEI6Q)IFEHRE
PLIBEAEIFAGCA 49.11% 2 ° HLIHEBGCA
34.49% Z #E# o KWEK Leng Kee % 4 3% & Davos
41.92% 2 %% » MDavosBl3F A HLIH 33.59% 2 &
# o

MO BECIERRERBAELRARARGFRE
BRARAD ©

BRANAEEEN  REJFLERPERME
336fRMaR < & MR E - WEAMA L+ (R
RAEBRINBFERRTARDIEERES 2
KRR KBRS o

118 Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited | Annual Report 2021



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHEE

Update on Director’s Information

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes in
information on the Company’s directors are set out below:

For Mr. Chew Seong Aun

o Appointed on 10 December 2020 as a non-executive
director of The Rank Group Plc, an associated company of
the Company and listed on the London Stock Exchange.

° Appointed on 8 January 2021 as a non-executive director
of Guocoland Limited, an associated company of the
Company and listed on the Singapore Stock Exchange.

For Mr. Huang Lester Garson SBS, JP

o Ceased to be a chairman of the Standing Committee
on Language Education and Research and an ex-officio
member of the Education Committee on 1 July 2021.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the
Company’s Listed Shares

During the year, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as
the trustee for a trust set up for the purpose of acquiring shares
of the Company to satisfy the exercise of options which may be
granted to the Executive Share Option Scheme adopted on 23 April
2013, purchased 1,145,000 shares of the Company on the Stock
Exchange at a total consideration of HK$15,452,000.

Save as disclosed above, during the year, the Company did not
redeem any of its listed shares and neither did the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries purchase or sell any of the Company’s listed
shares.

EEEREN

BEFTHRNEI13S5IBNE  KATESER
BT :

AR LE

. R-ZZZZEF+ZA+THEBEZES
Rank Group Plc. ZHHITEE - %A A
ARDNTRZHERARNURRBEESR
ZFTLET o

. N—E-—-F-AN\BEBZERBEE
FHEBRARZFHTES - AT
RA DB ZBE DB AR I 5
REFE -

BERMLE  REFAEE XFPHL

¢ REB--FLA-ARTBEEHAX
HERHREBEEREEARBAL
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BE HEFNEEAQXFZ
L

RAFER ARABZE2ENRBAR (EE—
BEAZZTIA ZERADAKREBEAATZ
BHOMEY  ELUBTRERAQATIR=ZZ—=
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SRR c RO RBRETE) BB
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Major Customers and Suppliers

Total sales to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for less
than 30% of the Group’s revenue for the year.

Total purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted
for less than 30% of the Group’s purchases for the year.

Sufficiency of Public Float

At all times during the year and up to 23 August 2021, the
Company has maintained the prescribed public float under the
Listing Rules, based on the information that is publicly available to
the Company and within the knowledge of the directors.

Auditors

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as
auditors of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

By Order of the Board
KWEK Leng Hai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 August 2021

TEFEFRHER

FEEETFTHRANBLUTFNWBRAREERE
EARFEHERDINI0% °

AEEBASANERUHERNBERGR
SEXFEBERBTEINI0% °

BRAZABEFERE

ERARARARAERcENRBESA
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KPMG

Independent auditor’s report
to the members of Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Lam
Soon (Hong Kong) Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries
(“the Group”) set out on pages 128 to 232, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June 2021,
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 30 June 2021 and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“the Code”) and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

BYRBEERE
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Key audit matters

FAREFSE

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional EEETEEERERPANEZALE  AEEAR
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the B ARV ETRAEEMNSIE - &=
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These EEARME TR ESBRREEEZRE
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the EITEEY BRETSHESEEEEHERNES
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our =

opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.

Revenue recognition

Refer to note 5 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 158 to 160

The Key Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Sales of flour, edible oil and home care products are
recognised as revenue when the control of the products
are transferred to the Group’s customers according to
the terms of the sales and purchase agreements entered
into between the Group and its customers.

Generally, management considers the control of the
products are transferred to the Group’s customers when
the goods are delivered to the customers’ premises.

The Group trades mainly with distributors and
supermarkets and has a large volume of individual
transactions which increases the risk of error in
recognising revenue.

We identified revenue recognition as a key audit
matter because revenue is one of the key performance
indicators of the Group which could create an incentive
for management to record revenue inappropriately to
meet targets or expectations and because the large
transaction volume increases the possibility of errors in
recognising revenue.

Our audit procedures to assess the recognition of revenue
included the following:

o gaining an understanding of and assessing the
design, implementation and operating effectiveness
of key internal controls over the completeness,
existence and accuracy and timing of revenue
recognition;

o challenging the revenue recognition policies
adopted by the Group by making inquiries of
management and inspecting a sample of sales and
purchase agreements to understand the terms of the
transactions with reference to the requirements of
the prevailing accounting standards;

o assessing the existence and identity of a sample
of new customers of the Group during the year
by performing background searches on these
customers;

o comparing sales records for a sample of sales
transactions recorded during the year with relevant
underlying documentation, which included sales
invoices and goods delivery notes with evidence of
the customers’ receipt of the goods and the date of
receipt of the goods by the customers;

o identifying significant sales returns from the sales
ledger after the year end and inspecting the
underlying documentation in relation to these
sales returns to assess if the related adjustments to
revenue had been accounted for in the appropriate
accounting period;
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Key audit matters (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

FARENTEE @

Refer to note 5 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 158 to 160 (continued)

The Key Audit Matter (continued)

How the matter was addressed in our audit (continued)

Our audit procedures to assess the recognition of revenue
included the following: (continued)

o assessing, on a sample basis, whether specific
revenue transactions around the financial year end
had been recognised in the appropriate financial
period in accordance with the terms of sale as
set out in the sales and purchase agreements by
comparing details of these transactions with sales
invoices and goods delivery notes with evidence of
the customers’ receipt of the goods and the date of
receipt of the goods by the customers; and

o selecting a sample of journal entries affecting
revenue recognised during the year, adopting
specific risk-based criteria, and comparing the details
of these adjustments with the related underlying
documentation.
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Key audit matters (continued)

LON G-

FARENTEE @

BRI A AN ERE 158 160 B RS 7T BE ()

REZ

GERESEG

RMHFEH MR Z B ()

EAFHERARRETNEARFEENT - (&)

Information other than the
consolidated financial statements
and auditor’s report thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual
report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYRHBENHRE S

Responsibilities of the directors
for the consolidated financial
statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Board Audit and Risk
Management Committee in discharging their responsibilities for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial
statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

EENSRSMBRRARE
MEE

ESARERETBETMASRMAN(EBY
BHREZ) REB(ABAROAD BREREME
HEEMBHRE - UHHARRREGRESMBHRE
HEE T FERRKGFRERMERNERER
BRALFENAIPEHEE -

ERBFESHBHRRE  EFEBTHERER
BEameEy  TEERBR THREREESE
BENEE  UREAFELSLERSTER &
FESARHKEREBRIFLEYE  HFIEA
ERHNERTE -

BERRAREERES SR ESRTEEERE
M HHREBRENEE

BB B RS M ®R
AENEE

EMHER  RHGSMBRREBRETHFE
MR ERM BN ERERRAEISSE
R - HASERFASRNORBERE - K
RERREB (ARG FASIRNRE - ERE
BERERE ° BRI - HANRETTRER
AR - RFIMTIRARENANE - HEFTEM
ATEEIFEREERESE -

BERBRSKTHRE  ETRFRERR(E
BEERDETHFN AR -BERERRML
TFIERFARREERIR - SEERMBRL 7] LA ERFF R84 R 5
g MRESERHTCMERERERATESE
FREMBRREREREM BRI AMELNEE
RE - BIEBRIRSRBUL AT RAREE K o

MIE(ER)BRAR | B - —F 5, 125



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

BYZBMHRES

Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial
statements (ontinuead)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

126

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's
internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in @ manner that achieves fair presentation.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYRHBENHRE S

Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial
statements (ontinued)

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Board Audit and Risk Management
Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide the Board Audit and Risk Management Committee
with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence and communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence and, where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Board Audit and Risk
Management Committee, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter
or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected
to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Yip Ka Ming, Alice.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

23 August 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
PROFIT OR LOSS

mEEER

For the year ended 30 June 2021 BE—Z=-—H X A=1+HILEE

2021 2020

—E-—& it 33

Note HK$'000 HK$°000

Hiat B FT JBEF T

Revenue WA 5 5,761,248 5,119,437

Cost of sales SHEMA (4,476,856) (3,925,837)

Gross profit EF 1,284,392 1,193,600

Other income HAtng A 6 45,966 67,793

Selling and distribution expenses HENDHEEBR (711,441) (661,831)

Administrative expenses THEHR (197,881) (199,692)

Profit from operations KRR 421,036 399,870

Finance costs BhE KA 7 (283) (238)

Profit before taxation RRBEAT SRR 7 420,753 399,632

Taxation 18 8(a) (63,055) (82,743)

Profit for the year REEREF 357,698 316,889
Earnings per share BREF

Basic and diluted BEARREE 117 HK$E¥1.517t HK$HBHE1.347T

PINE136 2232 A 2 BIAME AR
BR2—8B0 - B TARRARREMS
REEBFIREZFBEHIIRMFE0 -

The notes on pages 136 to 232 form part of these financial
statements. Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of
the Company attributable to the profit for the year are set out in
note 10.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
mERmkHEMEERER

For the year ended 30 June 2021 BE—Z=-—HA=1+HLEE

2021 2020
—s-—% —E-Ef
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BEF T
Profit for the year REEEF 357,698 316,889
Other comprehensive income for AEEHMEEKE (HBRERE
the year (net of nil tax and REH S ERAER)
reclassification adjustments)
Item that will not be reclassified to BrEEFsEERRKR2ER
profit or loss:
Equity investments at FVOCI — net RAVEES AR 2 ERE N RE
movement in fair value reserve RE- LNV EEREZESFERE
(non-recycling) (FegEmE) (5,079 - |
Items that may be reclassified HEeEnEHsEEBARkoEA ¢
subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translation of BEFBLUINAB A T8 EIRE
financial statements of subsidiaries FIEECERESE
outside Hong Kong 175,805 (64,048)
Exchange reserves reclassified to profit MEBARBEELREENSEE
or loss upon liquidation of a subsidiary BRI = (595)
ioimtay . (64.643)
Other comprehensive income rEEHMEHEEE
for the year RN | (04.643)
Total comprehensive income AEEZHERGZHELE
for the year 528,424 252,246

The notes on pages 136 to 232 form part of these financial FIREE136E2NH 2 R EMTARTHREK 2
statements. — &7 o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION
e MR R

At30June 2021 R=ZT=—F<A=1H

2021 2020
—E=-—% —E-EF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B BT JBEF T
Non-current assets FREBEE
Leasehold land and property, HET R YE -
plant and equipment BEREE 12 824,301 668,030
Intangible assets and goodwill B EENDE 13 5,199 6,862
Other financial assets HihemEE 14 82,760 772
Deferred tax assets IEIERIIBEE E 20 672 26
Other non-current assets HibEREEE 4,250 16,512
917,182 692,202
Current assets REEE
Inventories =ZE 15(a) 849,824 646,073
Trade and other receivables B REMEWERR 16 355,390 346,632
Other financial assets HihemEE 14 67,669 584
Cash and short term funds ReEREHES 17 1,485,477 1,529,608
2,758,360 2,522,897
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 R HEAESIRR 18(a) 726,111 639,793
Contract liabilities AEAEE 18(b) 35,536 39,369
Tax payables FEATRL TR 8(c) 12,772 35,146
Lease liabilities HERE 19 3,365 2,767
777,784 717,075
Net current assets BREBEE 1,980,576 1,805,822
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBERE 2,897,758 2,498,024
Non-current liabilities ERBAE
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEEE 20 15,246 19,543
Lease liabilities HEERE 19 1,847 1,584
17,093 21,127
NET ASSETS BEE 2,880,665 2,476,897
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION
e B IR R

At30June 2021 R=ZT=—F<A=1H

2021 2020
—EB-—F —E-EF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B BT JBEF T

CAPITAL AND RESERVES EEREE
Share capital %N 21(a) 672,777 672,777
Reserves & 2,207,888 1,804,120
TOTAL EQUITY Pl 2,880,665 2,476,897

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on KHEEER_Z-—FNA-+=A#ERRE

23 August 2021. FET3E o
WONG Cho Fai HEE CHEW Seong Aun BHZ
DIRECTOR EE DIRECTOR EZE

The notes on pages 136 to 232 form part of these financial FIREE136E2NH 2 B EMTARTHIREK 2
statements. — &7 o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 30 June 2021 BE—Z=-—H X A=1+HILEE

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

AARRRERL
Fair value
Share Surplus ESOP  Exchange reserve Revenue
capital reserves reserve reserve (non-recycling) reserve Total
fiBAE
iES 1 AVEERS

B BuRG hERE Enfe  (fudm) Wit ait
Note HKS000 HK§'000 HK$000 HKS000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS'000
b Brn  BRFn BMTn B B BRFn BTx

At 1 July 2020 RIEZEELA-A 672,777 161,567 (53,094) (98,147) - 119379 2,476,897

Profit for the year REERF = - - i

357,698 357,69

Equity investments at FVOCI - net ROVEES AL ENE
movement in fair value reserve MRERE-NTEERRE

(non-recycling) EYHTE(TIER) - - - - (5,079) - (5,079)
Transfer of loss on disposal of equity ~~ ERTERATEEHAZE

investments at FVOCl to revenue reserve  ESREREVER - - - - 9 ) =
Bichange differences on translation of ~ BEEBMNIBAF

financial statements of subsidiaries HESREEL

outside Hong Kong ERZR - - - 175,805 - - 175,805
Total comprehensive income for the year  AEE2EMRESE - = - 175,805 (5,070) 357,689 528,424
Purchase of ordinary shares of ERNEL L HEC]

the Company for share option scheme AR EZEER 1) - - (15,452) - - - (15.452)
Transfer from revenue reserve to surplus  EIEEAEERERMEE

reserve - 12,465 - - - (12,465) -
Utilisation of discretionary surplus reserve  EEREREHE - (250) - - - - (250)
Final dividend paid in respect of prior year RAFECHFEHRE 10b) - - - - - (73.461) (73.461)
Interim dividend paid in respect of AAEECATERE

current year 1003) - - - - - (35,493) (35,493)

- 12,215 (15,452) - - (121,419) (124,656)

At 30 June 2021 RZEZ-EXB=1H 672,777 173,782 (68,546) 71,658 (5,070) 2,030,064 2,880,665
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 30 June 2021 BE—Z=-—HA=1+HLEE

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

RDFRRRAE
Share Non-
Share Surplus £SOP option  Exchange  Revenue controlling Total
capital  reserves reserve reserve reserve reserve Total  interests equity
HAE

RiiRER ki
Ba BHEE  hRBE GRERE  ERBRE GGk ai FEMER R
Note ~ HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000 — HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Wi ERfn EETn ERn ERin B¥n E¥Tn BRTn ERTx BT

At 1 July 2019 W-2-1EtA-A 672,777 156399 (52.978) 1072 (33,504) 1,580,064 2,323,830 10713 2,334,543

Profit for the year RERER - - - - - 36889 316,889

316,889

Bichange differences on translation  BEEBNMNHEAF
of financial statements of HERRfEL

subsidiaries outside Hong Kong B3 288 - - - - (640 - (64049 - (640
Eichange reserves reclassfiedto ~ WEATERZES

profit or loss upon liquidation of ~ EHABZERE

a subsidiary - - - - (595) - (595) - (595)
Total comprehensive income for ~ AEE2ENHAE

the year - - - - (64,643) 316,389 252,246 - 25,246
Exercise of share options T RREE - - 9,186 (1,150) - (3,078) 4,958 - 4,958
Equity settled share-based REREEZNRHA

transactions ERRS - - - 78 - - 78 - 78
Purchase of ordinary shares of FRONEETERE

the Company for share option ALEZERR

scheme 21(6) - - (9.302) - - - (9,302) - (9,302)
Transfer from revenue reserve o AMAEEERERSGE

surplus reserve - 6,497 - - - (6,497) - - -
Liquidation of a subsidiary vith ~ BREHFEHER

non-controling interests HEAT - - - - - 10,713 10,713 (10,713) -
Utilisation of discretionary surplus ~ EBEEREkRE

reserve - (1329) - - - - (1329 - (1,329
Final dvidend paid in respectof  FAEETARHRE

prior year 10(b) - - - - - (mom (71,07 - (71.077)
Interim dividend paid inrespect of ~ HAEERHRHRE

current year 10(3) - - - - - (332200 (33,220) - (33,220)

- 5,168 (116) (1.072) - (103,159 (99,179)  (10.713)  (109,892)

At 30 June 2020 R-E-EEAR=TR 672,711 161,567 (53,094) - (98,147) 1,793,794 2,476,897 - 2,476,897

The notes on pages 136 to 232 form part of these financial FIREE136E2NH 2 B EMTARTHIREK 2
statements. — &7 o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS
mERERER

For the year ended 30 June 2021 HEZZE=-—HAXB=1HILEE

2021 2020
—s-—% —E-Ef
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
BtaE BT T BT T
Operating activities RETEE
Profit before taxation FRE AT R A 420,753 399,632
Adjustments for: FHE
Depreciation and amortisation E R 7 62,914 68,381
Write-down of inventories FERE 15(b) 3,816 2,433
Loss allowance recognised for trade BSEWERRZ
receivables EEREER 7 2 93
Finance costs A& R AR 7 283 238
Interest income on financial assets REERATESREE
measured at amortised cost 2R B A 6 (26,764) (32,140)
Dividend income from equity securities RRFZREWA 6 (3,535) -
Net unrealised (gain)/loss on club U RBIRFE
membership (W), B8 6 (43) 143
Net losses on disposal of property, HENE BMERREZ
plant and equipment FEER 6 2,608 8,499
Government grants related to relocation  FiiRB—EEBKE 2
of a flour mill plant BAFE AL 6 = (11,751)
Share-based payment expenses REXNER 7 - 78
Net unrealised exchange (gains)/losses REHELFE
(W), B8 (6,169) 3,645
Changes in working capital: EESSHEE
Increase in inventories FEZEM (147,016) (43,916)
Decrease in trade and other receivables B REMEWRRZ
B 9,232 39,519
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other B REMENERERZ
payables 21, OB2) 15,227 (3,856)
(Decrease)/increase in contract liabilities &E&&2
R,/ 18N (7,469) 12,285
Cash generated from operations RELBABNRE 323,839 443,283
Taxation: B ¢
Hong Kong Profits Tax (paid)/refunded (B, BEEBFEHR (4,377) 697
Tax paid outside Hong Kong 2AEEBUINLIE (88,818) (53,553)
Net cash generated from operating KEETHFBESFEE
activities 230,644 390,427
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS
HERERER

For the year ended 30 June 2021 HEZZE=-—HAXB=1HILEE

2021 2020
—E—F —ERIERF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
BtaE BEFT BEFTT
Investing activities REEH
Increase in fixed deposits held at banks FEERZIAEA=EA L
with original maturity over three months L HYSR{TEEIER 21N (15,875) (192,272)
Payment for the purchase of leasehold BERASLHEYE  BE
land and property, plant and equipment  RREUREBIEEZ
and intangible assets (NES (140,136) (92,904)
Net proceeds from disposal of property,  HEY¥ - MERRE
plant and equipment F)’T?%?T\IE‘E%E 320 1,039
Payment for purchase of: BERIE
— debt securities —133% &5 (67,722) -
— equity securities -BREXS (91,261) -
Proceeds from sales of equity securities HEREZSREE 4,237 -
Interest received SR E 29,781 30,211
Dividends received from investment in REREFRFESWRE
equity securities 2,130 -
Cash compensation received related to WEI B EIHE — EED R E
relocation of a flour mill plant Fr8EeHE = 36,359
Net cash used in investing activities BRETEHFARES SR (278,526) (217,567)
Financing activities REEE
Purchase of ordinary shares of R REETEIEE
the Company for share option scheme RATZ2EBR 21(a) (15,452) (9,302)
Proceeds from exercise of share options T 2 IR 2B HE
FriEsia - 4,958
Capital element of lease rentals paid EHERS 2 EREH 17(b) (4,497) (3,642)
Interest element of lease rentals paid S2fHEERE 2 FEEH 17(b) (283) (238)
Dividends paid to equity shareholders of {fFARATRERZKE
the Company (108,954) (104,297)
Net cash used in financing activities BEEBHMAREEE (129,186) (112,521)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and iﬁﬁ}iﬁﬁ%gﬁﬁgﬁ
cash equivalents W) (177,068) 60,339
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 July RER—BZEER
RE%H 1,337,336 1,317,927
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [ER# 5> & 117,062 (40,930)
Cash and cash equivalents at 30 June RAXA=1tTHZRER
RE%H 17(a) 1,277,330 1,337,336
The notes on pages 136 to 232 form part of these financial SN E136E 232 B 2 R 1B 5T A AN &
statements. k2 —Eb D ©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2021 HEZZE=-—HAXB=1HILEE

General Information

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited (the “Company”) is a
limited liability company incorporated in Hong Kong. The
registered office and the principal place of business of the
Company is located at 21 Dai Fu Street, Tai Po Industrial
Estate, Tai Po, New Territories, Hong Kong.

The Company is a holding company and its principal
activity is investment holding. The principal activities of
the Company’s subsidiaries include manufacturing, trading
and processing of edible oil, flour products and home care
products in Hong Kong, the People’s Republic of China
("PRC") and Macau.

Significant Accounting Policies
(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"), which
collective term includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”). Significant accounting policies
adopted by the Company and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as the “Group”) are disclosed
below.

The HKICPA has issued certain amendments to
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for
early adoption for the current accounting period
of the Group. Note 2(c) provides information on
any changes in accounting policies resulting from
initial application of these developments to the
extent that they are relevant to the Group for the
current accounting period reflected in these financial
statements.

1.

—RE#

MIE(EB)ERQBA(ARF BB
REBEMEUINBRAT - ARAH
AMREER EELEMBURNEBH
RABARBIENKEH T -5 -

ARABAR—BERAT  TEZXEBAR
BER - ARAZHBRARZERER
ERER - PEARAMB(HED R
REAREERH  ANERRREER
EmNEE - BZNREE -

BEESTTEE
(a) EFEH

L BHRCRETBETMQ
S(ERETMIE]) EMZ
FrEERCE BB HREED)
(TERMBREER]) - LEBE
BEREERZERCE B HR
HEAD - (BBEFTEANTEE
SRR RZRE  EEBEER
RETRAREB(RERG) 2
BREREMMRE - AP BHRKRIL
HEBEBBEXZMARQAR
FEWRA(T ETRB D ZER
BERIRE - TXHEARF
REMBLR (S8 [ AEE )R
Mz ERETBORME -

RS ASCHEME TRA
EEASTHBEERERRAH
REFMANEBMBERELEZ
1ERT  ME20RHEBAKREE
AEst Bz BR/REREIDRH
THERAMKBONSEBEE -
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2.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2021 HEZZE=-—HAXB=1HILEE

BEESTBE @

Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 30 June 2021 comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries.

The measurement basis used in the preparation
of the financial statements is the historical cost
basis except that the following assets and liabilities
are stated at their fair value as explained in the
accounting policies set out below:

- club membership;

- investments in equity securities (see note
2(f)); and

- derivative financial instruments (see note
2(9)).

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires management
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the
financial statements and major sources of estimation
uncertainty are discussed in note 3.
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For the year ended 30 June 2021 HEZZE=-—HAXB=1HILEE

Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(c)

(d)

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments
to HKFRSs that are first effective for the current
accounting period of the Group.

None of these developments have had a material
effect on how the Group’s results and financial
position for the current or prior periods have been
prepared or presented. The Group has not applied
any new standard or interpretation that is not yet
effective for the current accounting period.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When assessing
whether the Group has power, only substantive
rights (held by the Group and other parties) are
considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and cash
flows and any unrealised profits arising from intra-
group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains
but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to
the Company, and in respect of which the Group has
not agreed any additional terms with the holders of
those interests which would result in the Group as
a whole having a contractual obligation in respect
of those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability.

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited | Annual Report 2021

2.

BEESTBE @

()

(d)

B BERNEH

BEBEMASEMT ZERAE
EEENESPBARERNE
AR EERMERT A o

ZERRGEHAEEARAYBY
BEBEZEEARVBERRFR
FEINATRNEREATE - I %
B ARRAS B EMA R RE
B2 AEMHRT ERIRRIE o

Cope PNGIDSE Sl £

MEARRAREREH 2B
B BXrEENSRAEBEE X
BESAERESTEZEE R
BREMEHERTELEIMSY
BZEEH AAEEZHZ
BE B AKERSEED
i REEAREN(AREER
Hib ALHE) ©

RBB LR 2 RENEREHIE
BHEREHEREMHRE -
HEZEHELRLAL - KER
MERzEE X5 RERE
REARBERRZMEE ZEM
REBEF - IRREESUH
BREZHIEE - TEEBRRE
ZBERT  KERABREMELE
ZREBEREE  SRERBHRER
MABRE 2 A -

FETREELFHA AT EE
HEEEREEGKHEQTNE
& MAKEREZSERNE
BERREAEIMERM S ARE
EERBUZERREENEER
BENERNESNELE -



2.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2021 HEZZE=-—HAXB=1HILEE

BEESTBE @

Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to
the equity shareholders of the Company. Non-
controlling interests in the results of the Group are
presented on the face of the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income as
an allocation of the total profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between non-
controlling interests and the equity shareholders of
the Company.

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made
to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling
interests within consolidated equity to reflect the
change in relative interests, but no adjustments are
made to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained
in that former subsidiary at the date when control
is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a
financial asset (see note 2(f)) or, when appropriate,
the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or a joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,

an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see note 2(k)(ii)).
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For the year ended 30 June 2021 HE=-Z=—

Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(e)

(f)

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of (i) the aggregate
of the fair value of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the fair value of the Group's previously
held equity interest in the acquiree; over (ii) the net
fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and
liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a gain on
a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill arising on a business
combination is allocated to each cash-generating
unit, or groups of cash generating units, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination and is tested annually for impairment
(see note 2(k)(ii)).

On disposal of a cash-generating unit during the
year, any attributable amount of purchased goodwill
is included in the calculation of the profit or loss on
disposal.

Other investments in debt and equity
securities

The Group's policies for investments in debt
and equity securities, other than investment in
subsidiaries, are set out below.

Investments in debt and equity securities are
recognised/derecognised on the date the Group
commits to purchase/sell the investment. The
investments are initially stated at fair value plus
directly attributable transaction costs, except for
those investments measured at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVPL") for which transaction costs
are recognised directly in profit or loss. For an
explanation of how the Group determines fair
value of financial instruments, see note 24(f). These
investments are subsequently accounted for as
follows, depending on their classification.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2021 BE—Z=-—HA=1+HLEE

BEESTBE @

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(f) Other investments in debt and equity
securities (continued)

(i)

Investments other than equity
investments

Non-equity investments held by the Group
are classified into one of the following
measurement categories:

- amortised cost, if the investment is
held for the collection of contractual
cash flows which represent solely
payments of principal and interest.
Interest income from the investment is
calculated using the effective interest
method (see note 2(t)(iv)).

- fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVOCI") — recycling, if
the contractual cash flows of the
investment comprise solely payments
of principal and interest and the
investment is held within a business
model whose objective is achieved by
both the collection of contractual cash
flows and sale. Changes in fair value
are recognised in other comprehensive
income, except for the recognition in
profit or loss of expected credit losses,
interest income (calculated using
the effective interest method) and
foreign exchange gains and losses.
When the investment is derecognised,
the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income is recycled
from equity to profit or loss.

- fair value through profit or loss
("FVPL") if the investment does not
meet the criteria for being measured
at amortised cost or FVOCI (recycling).
Changes in the fair value of the
investment (including interest) are
recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 30 June 2021 BE—Z=-—H X A=1+HILEE

Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(f)

(9)

Other investments in debt and equity
securities (continued)

(i)

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified
as FVPL unless the equity investment is not
held for trading purposes and on initial
recognition of the investment the Group
makes an irrevocable election to designate
the investment at FVOCI (non-recycling) such
that subsequent changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Such elections are made on an instrument-
by-instrument basis, but may only be made if
the investment meets the definition of equity
from the issuer’s perspective. Where such an
election is made, the amount accumulated
in other comprehensive income remains in
the fair value reserve (non-recycling) until
the investment is disposed of. At the time of
disposal, the amount accumulated in the fair
value reserve (non-recycling) is transferred
to revenue reserve. It is not recycled through
profit or loss. Dividends from an investment
in equity securities, irrespective of whether
classified as at FVPL or FVOCI, are recognised
in profit or loss as other income in accordance
with the policy set out in note 2(t)(iii).

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised
at fair value. At the end of each reporting period

the fair value is remeasured. The gain or loss

on remeasurement to fair value is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 30 June 2021 HEZZE=-—HAXB=1HILEE

BEESTBE @

Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(h)

Property, plant and equipment

Right-of-use assets arising from leases over
leasehold properties where the Group is not the
registered owner of the property interest and items
of property, plant and equipment, including right-
of-use assets arising from leases of underlying plant
and equipment, are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see note
2(k)(ii)). The cost of an asset comprises its purchase
price and any directly attributable costs of bringing
the asset to its present working condition and
location for its intended use. Expenditure incurred
after an item of property, plant and equipment
has been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss in
the period in which it is incurred. In situation where
it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure
has resulted in an increase in the future economic
benefits expected to be obtained from the use of
the property, plant and equipment, the expenditure
is capitalised as an additional cost of the property,
plant and equipment.

Construction in progress is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see note 2(k)(ii)). Cost comprises
direct costs of construction, capitalised borrowing
costs and exchange differences to the extent that
it is an adjustment to borrowing costs during
the periods of construction and installation.
Capitalisation of these costs ceases and the
construction in progress is transferred to property,
plant and equipment when substantially all the
activities necessary to prepare the assets for their
intended use are completed. No depreciation is
provided for in respect of construction in progress
until it is completed and ready for its intended use.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or
disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment
are determined as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
item and are recognised in profit or loss on the date
of retirement or disposal.
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Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(h)

()

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment, less their
estimated residual value, if any, using the straight-
line method over their estimated useful lives as
follows:

Leasehold land is depreciated over the unexpired
term of lease.

Buildings and leasehold 2-25 years
improvements
Machineries, equipment, 3-20 years

furniture and motor vehicles

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of the
item is allocated on a reasonable basis between the
parts and each part is depreciated separately. Both
the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if
any, are reviewed annually.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation (where
the estimated useful life is finite) and impairment
losses (see note 2(k)(ii)). Expenditure on internally
generated goodwill and brands is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful
lives is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the assets’ estimated useful lives. The
following intangible assets with finite useful lives are
amortised from the date they are available for use
and their estimated useful lives are as follows:

Enterprise planning resources 5 years
system ("ERP")
Trademarks 5 years

Both the period and method of amortisation are
reviewed annually.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2021 HEZZE=-—HAXB=1HILEE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

()

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses
whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration. Control is conveyed where the
customer has both the right to direct the use of the
identified asset and to obtain substantially all of the
economic benefits from that use.

(i) As a lessee

At the lease commencement date, the
Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a
lease liability, except for short-term leases
that have a lease term of 12 months or less
and leases of low-value assets. When the
Group enters into a lease in respect of a
low-value asset, the Group decides whether
to capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease
basis. The lease payments associated with
those leases which are not capitalised are
recognised as an expense on a systematic
basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease
liability is initially recognised at the present
value of the lease payments payable over the
lease term, discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot
be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. After initial
recognition, the lease liability is measured
at amortised cost and interest expense
is calculated using the effective interest
method. Variable lease payments that do not
depend on an index or rate are not included
in the measurement of the lease liability and
hence are charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.
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Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)
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2.

BEESTBE @

Leased assets (continued)

(i)

As a lessee (continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a
lease is capitalised is initially measured at
cost, which comprises the initial amount of
the lease liability plus any lease payments
made at or before the commencement
date, and any initial direct costs incurred.
Where applicable, the cost of the right-of-
use assets also includes an estimate of costs
to dismantle and remove the underlying
asset or to restore the underlying asset or
the site on which it is located, discounted
to their present value, less any lease
incentives received. The right-of-use asset is
subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see
notes 2(h) and 2(k)(ii)).

The lease liability is remeasured when there
is a change in future lease payments arising
from a change in an index or rate, or there
is a change in the Group’s estimate of the
amount expected to be payable under a
residual value guarantee, or there is a change
arising from the reassessment of whether the
Group will be reasonably certain to exercise
a purchase, extension or termination option.
When the lease liability is remeasured in this
way, a corresponding adjustment is made to
the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset,
or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset has been
reduced to zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured when
there is a change in the scope of a lease
or the consideration for a lease that is not
originally provided for in the lease contract
("lease modification”) that is not accounted
for as a separate lease. In this case the lease
liability is remeasured based on the revised
lease payments and lease term using a revised
discount rate at the effective date of the
modification.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2021 BE—Z=-—HA=1+HLEE

Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(j) Leased assets (continued)

(i)

(ii)

(k)

(i)

As a lessee (continued)

In the consolidated statement of financial
position, the current portion of long-term
lease liabilities is determined as the present
value of contractual payments that are due
to be settled within twelve months after the
reporting period.

As a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it
determines at lease inception whether each
lease is a finance lease or an operating
lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease
if it transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to the ownership of an
underlying assets to the lessee. If this is
not the case, the lease is classified as an
operating lease.

When a contract contains lease and non-
lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each
component on a relative stand-alone selling
price basis. The rental income from operating
leases is recognised in accordance with note

2(t)(ii).

Credit losses and impairment of assets

Credit losses from financial assets

The loss allowance of trade receivables is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime
expected credit losses (“ECLs"), which are
those losses that are expected to occur over
the expected life of the trade receivables. The
loss allowance is estimated using a provision
matrix based on the Group's historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors and an assessment
of both the current and forecast general
economic conditions at the reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2021 BE—Z=-—H X A=1+HILEE

Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial assets
(continued)

For other financial assets measured at
amortised cost (including cash and short
term funds, investments in debt securities
and other receivables), the Group recognises
a loss allowance equal to 12-month ECLs
unless there has been a significant increase in
credit risk of the financial assets since initial
recognition, in which case the loss allowance
is measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs.

Other financial assets measured at fair value,
including club membership, investments
in equity securities and derivative financial
assets, are not subject to the ECL assessment.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting
date with any changes recognised as an
impairment gain or loss in profit or loss. The
Group recognises an impairment gain or
loss with a corresponding adjustment to the
carrying amount of financial assets through a
loss allowance account.

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset
is written off (either partially or in full) to the
extent that there is no realistic prospect of
recovery. This is generally the case when the
Group determines that the counterparties
does not have assets or sources of income
that could generate sufficient cash flows to
repay the amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognised as a
reversal of impairment in profit or loss in the
period in which the recovery occurs.
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Significant Accounting Policies

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(continued)

(k)

R R E S

For the year ended 30 June 2021 BE—Z=-—HA=1+HLEE

BEESTBE @

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(continued)

(ii)  Impairment of other non-current assets

Internal and external sources of information
are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to identify indications that the
following assets may be impaired or, except
in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may
have decreased:

leasehold land and property, plant and
equipment (including construction in
progress and right-of-use assets);

intangible assets;
goodwill; and
investments in subsidiaries in the

Company’s statement of financial
position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. In addition,
for goodwill, intangible assets that are not
yet available for use and intangible assets that
have indefinite useful lives, the recoverable
amount is estimated annually whether or not
there is any indication of impairment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2021 BE—Z=-—H X A=1+HILEE

Significant Accounting Policies
Credit losses and impairment of assets

Impairment of other non-current assets
(continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset
is the greater of its fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific
to the asset. Where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group
of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating
unit (“CGU")).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in
profit or loss if the carrying amount
of an asset, or the cash-generating
unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the cash-
generating unit (or group of units)
and then, to reduce the carrying
amount of the other assets in the
unit (or group of units) on a pro rata
basis, except that the carrying value
of an asset will not be reduced below
its individual fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable) or value in use
(if determinable).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R R E S

For the year ended 30 June 2021 BE—Z=-—HA=1+HLEE

Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(k)

U

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(ii)  Impairment of other non-current assets
(continued)

- Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than
goodwill, an impairment loss is
reversed if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill
is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is
limited to the asset’s carrying amount
that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised
in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or loss
in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is calculated using the
weighted average cost formula and comprises all
costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition. In the case of work
in progress and finished goods, cost comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an attributable
proportion of production overheads.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2021 HEZZE=-—HAXB=1HILEE

Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

0]

(m)

(n)

Inventories (continued)

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised.
The amount of any write-down of inventories to
net realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-
down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal
of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised
as an expense in the period in which the reversal
occurs.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when the customer
pays non-refundable consideration before the
Group recognises the related revenue (see note
2(t)). A contract liability would also be recognised
if the Group has an unconditional right to receive
non-refundable consideration before the Group
recognises the related revenue. In such cases, a
corresponding receivable would also be recognised
(see note 2(n)).

For a single contract with the customer, either a net
contract asset or a net contract liability is presented.
For multiple contracts, contract assets and contract
liabilities of unrelated contracts are not presented on
a net basis.

When the contract includes a significant financing
component, the contract balance includes interest
accrued under the effective interest method
(see note 2(t)(iv)).

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right
to receive consideration is unconditional if only the
passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less allowance for credit
losses (see note 2(k)(i)).
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R R E S

For the year ended 30 June 2021 BE—Z=-—HA=1+HLEE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(o)

(p)

(a)

Cash and short term funds

Cash and short term funds comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liguid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value. Cash and short
term funds are assessed for ECL in accordance with
the policy set out in note 2(k)(i).

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at
fair value and are subsequently stated at amortised
cost unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Employee benefits

(i) Short term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual
leave, contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans and the cost of non-
monetary benefits are accrued in the year in
which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement
is deferred and the effect would be material,
these amounts are stated at their present
values.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2021 HEZZE=-—HAXB=1HILEE

Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(a)

Employee benefits (continued)

(i)

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee
cost with a corresponding increase in share
option reserve within equity. The fair value
is measured at grant date using the Black-
Scholes model, taking into account the terms
and conditions upon which the options
were granted. Where the employees have
to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the options, the
total estimated fair value of the options is
spread over the vesting period, taking into
account the probability that the options will
vest.

During the vesting period, the number of
share options that is expected to vest is
reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to the
cumulative fair value recognised in prior years
is charged/credited to the profit or loss for
the year of the review, unless the original
employee expenses qualify for recognition as
an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to
the share option reserve. On vesting date, the
amount recognised as an expense is adjusted
to reflect the actual number of options
that vest (with a corresponding adjustment
to the share option reserve) except where
forfeiture is only due to not achieving vesting
conditions that relate to the market price of
the Company’s shares. The equity amount is
recognised in the share option reserve until
either the option is exercised (when it is
included in the amount recognised in share
capital for the shares issued) or the option
expires (when it is released directly to revenue
reserve).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2021 HEZZE=-—HAXB=1HILEE

BEESTBE @

Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(a)

(r)

Employee benefits (continued)

(iii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the
earlier of when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and
when it recognises restructuring costs
involving the payment of termination
benefits.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that they related to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect
of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax
assets also arise from unused tax losses and unused
tax credits.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2021 HEZZE=-—HAXB=1HILEE

Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(r)

Income tax (continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred
tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may support
the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those
that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable
temporary differences, provided those differences
relate to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary difference or in periods into
which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset
can be carried back or forward. The same criteria are
adopted when determining whether existing taxable
temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses
and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to
reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss
or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred
tax assets and liabilities are those temporary
differences arising from goodwill not deductible
for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets or
liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profit (provided they are not part of a business
combination), and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in
the case of taxable differences, the Group controls
the timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future,
or in the case of deductible differences, unless it is
probable that they will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R R E S

For the year ended 30 June 2021 HEZZE=-—HAXB=1HILEE

BEESTBE @

Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(r)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such
reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when the
liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separated from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company
or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and the following additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Company or the Group intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and
liabilities, if they relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either:

= the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in
each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current
tax assets and settle the current tax
liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.

MIE(EB)BRAR | &

2.

(r)

FFHR

FRi&% (&)

AEERSHREDR AEHNERH
EEFIREEMNIREE - RS
THBUEAEHERBERNUE
REERBARNELERIBEE
FLHRM - ERERAREHE RN
MERBUEFE - AIAEBINRET
LA o

REIRKRE FrELENTEITEHR
REA BRSNS E

N
£

ENMEHERRIELRAEHA
BRESBHESOMIIR X H
TTHEE  BRRELEFREHE
EESEARAIAEEBEEE
TEEUENMEHEEREE
HREHas LAFESUTH
TR BERT » A A A2 B
HERRIELERSHAE

- EMFAREERAR:
AR TSR S E T B F
FEELE  ARBER
DABNGERAE

-  EEMSHEERER:
ELEEHREEXARF
— BB LT i —
WSS ER

- B-ERRER
%

- TREANERKRE
o ELERTE
kEHESEETE
REELEFRBERE
BEFEEERKRE
EEFSHEET
AR EIHY R A
RFBEEEER
EMEHREEM
REEHFREHRE
& RNEFERZ
BENGEZAE -

157



2.

158

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2021 HE=-Z=—

Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(s)

(t)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when
it arises from the sale of goods, the provision of
services or the use by others of the Group’s assets
under leases in the ordinary course of the Group's
business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product
or service is transferred to the customer, or the
lessee has the right to use the asset, at the amount
of promised consideration to which the Group is
expected to be entitled, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is
after deduction of any trade discounts.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2021 BE—Z=-—HA=1+HLEE

Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(t)

Revenue and other income (continued)

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other
income recognition policies are as follows:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Sale of goods

Sales of the Group’s products are recognised
when the customer takes possession of and
accepts the products. If the products are a
partial fulfilment of a contract covering other
goods and/or services, then the amount
of revenue recognised is an appropriate
proportion of the total transaction price
under the contract, allocated between all
the goods and services promised under the
contract on a relative stand-alone selling price
basis.

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating
leases is recognised in profit or loss in equal
instalments over the periods covered by the
lease term.

Dividends
Dividend income from listed investments

is recognised when the share price of the
investment goes ex-dividend.
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For the year ended 30 June 2021 BE—Z=-—H X A=1+HILEE

Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(t)

Revenue and other income (continued)

(iv)

(v)

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues
using the effective interest method using
the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life
of the financial asset to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset. For financial
assets measured at amortised cost or FVOCI
(recycling) that are not credit-impaired, the
effective interest rate is applied to the gross
carrying amount of the asset. For credit-
impaired financial assets, the effective
interest rate is applied to the amortised
cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of loss
allowance) of the asset (see note 2(k)(i)).

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position
initially when there is reasonable assurance
that they will be received and that the Group
will comply with the conditions attaching to
them. Grants that compensate the Group
for expenses incurred are recognised as
income in profit or loss on a systematic basis
in the same periods in which the expenses
are incurred. Grants that compensate the
Group for the cost of an asset are deducted
from the carrying amount of the asset and
consequently are effectively recognised in
profit or loss over the useful life of the asset
by way of reduced depreciation expense.
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For the year ended 30 June 2021 HEZZE=-—HAXB=1HILEE

BEESTBE @

Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(u)

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of
the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates
the fair value was measured.

The results of operations outside Hong Kong are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rates approximating the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the transactions. Statement of
financial position items, including goodwill arising
on consolidation of operations outside Hong Kong
acquired on or after 1 January 2005, are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the closing foreign
exchange rates at the end of reporting period.
The resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the exchange reserve.
Goodwill arising on consolidation of an operation
outside Hong Kong acquired before 1 January
2005 is translated at the foreign exchange rate that
applied at the date of acquisition of the operation
outside Hong Kong.

On disposal of an operation outside Hong Kong,
the cumulative amount of the exchange differences
relating to that operation outside Hong Kong is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the
profit or loss on disposal is recognised.
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For the year ended 30 June 2021 BE—Z=-—H X A=1+HILEE

BEESTBE @

Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(v) Related parties

(i)

(i)

A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(a)

has control or joint control over the
Group;

has significant influence over the
Group; or

is @ member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group's
parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(a)

The entity and the Group are members
of the same group (which means that
each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a member
of a group of which the other entity is
a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a
third party and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (i).

2.

(v) BEAL

(i)

(ii)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2021 HEZZE=-—HAXB=1HILEE

BEESTBE @

Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(v)

(w)

Related parties (continued)

(i) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies: (continued)

(9) A person identified in (i)(a) has
significant influence over the entity or
is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings
with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial statements,
are identified from the financial information
provided regularly to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purposes of
allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of
business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and
the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.
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1 75 R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2021 BE—Z=-—H X A=1+HILEE

Accounting Estimates and
Judgement

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made various estimates based on
past experiences, expectations of the future and other
information. Note 23 contains information about the
assumptions and their risk factors relating to fair value of
share options granted. Other key sources of estimation
uncertainty that may significantly affect the amounts
recognised in the financial statements are disclosed below:

(a)

(b)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight line basis over their estimated useful lives,
after taking into account of their estimated residual
value. The determination of the useful lives and
residual value involve management'’s estimation.

The Group assesses annually the residual value and
the useful life of the property, plant and equipment
and if the assessment result differs from the
original estimate, such a difference may impact the
depreciation for the year. The details of property,
plant and equipment are disclosed in note 12.

Impairment of leasehold land and property,
plant and equipment, intangible assets and
goodwill

Determining whether leasehold land and property,
plant and equipment, intangible assets and goodwill
are impaired requires an estimation of the value
in use of the cash-generating units to which the
leasehold land and property, plant and equipment,
intangible assets and goodwill have been allocated.
The calculation of value in use requires the Group
to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise
from the CGU and a suitable discount rate in order
to calculate the present value. If the estimation
of value in use is different, any reversal or further
impairment will impact the profits or losses of the
Group. The details of leasehold land and property,
plant and equipment, intangible assets and goodwill
are disclosed in notes 12 and 13 respectively.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2021 BE—Z=-—HA=1+HLEE

3. Accounting Estimates and
JUdgement (continued)

3. EEHMAFTRHAE @)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(c)

Income taxes

At 30 June 2021, deferred tax assets of
HK$6,192,000 (2020: HK$5,199,000) in relation to
unused tax losses were recognised as set out in note
20. No deferred tax asset was recognised in respect
of the remaining tax losses of HK$244,738,000
(2020: HK$249,263,000) and temporary differences
of HK$93,382,000 (2020: HK$79,705,000)
arising from impairment of certain leasehold land
and property, plant and equipment due to the
unpredictability of future taxable profit streams.
The realisability of the deferred tax assets mainly
depends on whether sufficient future profits or
taxable temporary differences will be available in the
future. In cases where the future profits generated
are less or more than expected, a write down or
further recognition of deferred tax assets may arise,
which would be recognised in the profit or loss for
the period in which such a write down or further
recognition takes place.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2021 HEZZE=-—HAXB=1HILEE

4. Segment Reporting

166

In a manner consistent with the way in which information
is reported internally to the Group’s most senior executive
management, the Group has two reportable segments,
as described below. Businesses in each reporting segment
have similar operating and currency risks, class of customer
for products, distribution channels and safety regulation.
The following summary describes the operations in each

segment:

Food: manufacture and distribution of a wide
range of food products including flour,
edible oils and specialty fats, and trading and
distribution of health products.

Home Care: manufacture and distribution of household
and institutional cleaning products.

(@) Segments results, assets and liabilities

The Group’s most senior executive management
monitors the results, assets and liabilities
attributable to each reportable segment on the
following basis:

The measure used for reporting segment profit
is “profit from operations”. To arrive at “profit
from operations”, the Group’s earnings are further
adjusted for items not specifically attributed
to individual segments, such as head office or
corporate administration costs.

Segment assets include all tangible assets, intangible
assets and current assets with the exception of
deferred tax assets and other corporate assets.
Segment liabilities include tax payables, all trade and
other payables and contract liabilities attributable
to the manufacturing and sales activities of the
individual segments and lease liabilities with the
exception of deferred tax liabilities and other
corporate liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2021 BE—Z=-—HA=1+HLEE

4, Segment Reporting (continued) 4. ﬁ%ﬂ*&%(ﬁg}
(a) Segments results, assets and liabilities (a) EEE BERERGSE)
(continued)
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with RN ANBIREEZREBEF
customers by the timing of revenue recognition, as BEIMNWA  URBAEERES
well as information regarding the Group's reportable BITHERAEZAEE T 2R
segments as provided to the Group’s most senior DEPERIEFNT ¢

executive management is set out below:

2021 2020
-8--f% a3
Segment Segment
Food Home Care Total Food ~ Home Care Total
fm  FEEE M4 ‘m FEEE o4

HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
BRTn  BRTx  BRTx ERTn ERTn ERTx

Disaggregated by timing of ~ REBRHKERRA

revenue recognition on RAREIE
point in time
Revenue from external customers  EAEFZBA 4,956,534 804714  5761,248 4375117 743,923 5,119,040

Reportable segment profit from ~ A2HAH2 &L
operations i 379,150 85740 464899 367,632 84451 452,083

Interest income on financial assets  REHRAFT 2SR

measured at amortised cost BEZASHA 20,17 3,882 24,299 21,163 4,680 25,843
Finance costs AERR (205) (52) (257) (176) (32) (208)
Depreciation and amortisation MEREH (50,697) (4,110) (54,807) (53,533) (3,048) (56,581)

Other material profit or loss items:  HtEEHRFER -

~ Net exchange (losses)/gains -ERE(BR)/
iz (4,470) (1,028) (5,498) 194 (681) (487)
- Loss allowance reversed/ - 2R
(recognised) for trade FiakE
receivables B/ (%R 1" (13) @) ©3) . ©3)
Taxation BE (27,249) (18,920) (46,169) (47,961) (20,880) (68,841)
Reportable segment assets IE2RAWER 2,687,394 296,146 2,983,540 2,496,136 289,548 2,785,684
Reportable segment liabilities 2RI H2EE 617,525 148,784 766,309 543,637 155,776 699,413
Additions to non-current b lipaR E 3
segment assets &g 155,774 7,533 163,307 74,566 5,182 79,748
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For the year ended 30 June 2021 BE—Z=-—H X A=1+HILEE

Segment Reporting (continued)

4. DEHRE @

(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment (b) FAE2FHP2BA - BRE -
revenue, profit or loss, assets and EERBENEHER
liabilities
2021 2020
—B=—% —BoEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Revenue KA
Reportable segment revenue A2 2 WA 5,761,248 5,119,040
Rental income HEWA = 397
Consolidated revenue mEWA 5,761,248 5,119,437
Profit Pyl
Reportable segment profit from A 222 L& HmF
operations 464,899 452,083
Unallocated exchange gains/(losses) AOEZERZWE
(B518) 8,085 (2,764)
Unallocated interest income on financial RO B ZIREEKATE
assets measured at amortised cost ERMEEZFEWA 2,465 6,297
Dividend income BEWA 3,535 -
Unallocated head office and FAOBZBATR
corporate expenses TEEH (57,948) (55,746)
Finance costs BE AR (283) (238)
Consolidated profit before taxation HEBRBADEF 420,753 399,632
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets 2R B2EE 2,983,540 2,785,684
Elimination of inter-segment receivables 43-2f & F& U 5k 1B 2 3K 8 (10,487) (4,005)
2,973,053 2,781,679
Deferred tax assets EERIEEE 672 26
Unallocated head office and corporate RO EZEATR
assets TEEE 701,817 433,394
Consolidated total assets FRBEE 3,675,542 3,215,099
Liabilities &&
Reportable segment liabilities AEfoBzERB 766,309 699,413
Elimination of inter-segment payables 732 R FE 4 7R 1B 2 K 8 (10,487) (4,005)
755,822 695,408
Deferred tax liabilities EEFHEERS 15,246 19,543
Unallocated head office and AOWMZB AT R
corporate liabilities TEEE 23,809 23,251
Consolidated total liabilities meBasE 794,877 738,202
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2021 BE—Z=-—HA=1+HLEE

4. Segment Reporting (ontinued) 4. DHHRE @
Geographical information (0 HEEHR
The following table sets out information about TREIIWHWEBNEERETE
the geographical location of (i) the reportable WAT2HMHBEIIEFR WA 5 K
segment’s revenue from external customers and (VFEEENHELHREYE - K
(ii) the Group's leasehold land and property, plant ENFE EFEENRBEERY
and equipment, intangible assets and goodwill and ¥ BERRBEAMRE(EE
prepayments for property, plant and equipment FREBEE]) cBEFWABHE
(“specified non-current assets”). The geographical TIRIERFIEHREYEZE 2
location of customers is based on the location at IMBE -HELTHRYE K
which the services were provided or the goods ERRENBEHERRER®E
delivered. The geographical location of the leasehold WME - ME - MERRERE
land and property, plant and equipment is based NRENFFBEIRIEEEE
on the physical location of the assets, in the case of WE o MEBRNEERBENE
prepayments for property, plant and equipment, the wERISREEESERINEE
location of operations and in the case of intangible BEME ©
assets and goodwill, the location of the operation to
which they are allocated.
2021 2020
ZBC-F o 23
Hong Kong  Mainland Hong Kong ~ Mainland
and Macau China Total  and Macau China Total
ERRAM HE AR fit BBREM  TEAE &t
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BFr  EETm  BETn BEFr BETrT BT
Revenue from external customers E9EF ZIA 725353 5,035,895 5,761,248 744,657 4,374,383 5,119,040
Specified non-current assets  EEFREEE 80,499 753,251 833,750 82,790 608,614 691,404
HIBE(EB)BRAA | ZEZ—FF W 169
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2021 HEZZE=-—HAXB=1HILEE

Revenue

The Company is an investment holding company and the
principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out
on pages 233 to 235.

Revenue represents the amounts receivable for the goods
sold in the normal course of business, net of discounts,
value added tax and other related taxes to external
customers as well as rental income.

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers
by major products or service lines is as follows:

5.

WA

AABE—BEREZERAR  EEXEMH
BRARIMEEEKFINE2B3EES
235H ©

BARKELERBBREAETHIE
F - HIBRITH - BEBMEMEEH IR
HVBUGKRE - IREE WA -

BEXIREMIAMBLIBZRERTFEME
HBAZZWT

2021 2020
—B-—F —EBCEHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BHEF T
Revenue from contracts with customers FEBERELERFE+HIEEE
within the scope of HKFRS 15 AZREEFESENBA
Disaggregated by major products or REEEERTRBEE D
service lines
- Sales of goods — HEE®m 5,761,248 5,119,040
Revenue from other sources HAth i A SRR
Rental income HEWA - 397
5,761,248 5,119,437

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers
by the timing of revenue recognition and by geographical
markets is disclosed in notes 4(a) and 4(c) respectively.

During the years ended 30 June 2021 and 2020, there was
no single external customer that contributed 10% or more
of the Group's total revenue from external customers.

R ERBEREET S 2R
BF AR A S BIRK 4 R4
T o

BE-_ZE-_—FR-ZE-FFRA=T
HIEFE AEESEHEESERSAR
AREBHIEFLRARANE D ZTH
B-RF o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2021 HEZZE=-—HAXB=1HILEE

6. Other Income

6. HfulgA

2021 2020
= =F=-FF
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT BT T
Sales of scrapped materials HERER 702 429
Income from food supply reservation BEmEEAERA 4,378 9,760
Net losses on disposal of property, HEME  BERSEREZ
plant and equipment (note (i) FIEE (FE)) (2,608) (8,499)
Interest income on financial assets BEHEAATESREEZ
measured at amortised cost FIEWA 26,764 32,140
Dividend income (note (iij) B B WA (B EE i) 3,535 -
Net exchange gains/(losses) BE 5 FuEs (B518) 2,587 (3,251)
Net realised and unrealised (losses)/gains TESRMTIECCBREAR
on derivative financial instruments % (F538) Wk (Bativ)
(note (iv)) (6,457) 4,526
Net unrealised gain/(loss) on club BERERFWRE (FHB)
membership 43 (143)
Government grants (notes (i) & (ii) B BE (B ()R (i) 12,447 30,219
Others Ht 4,575 2,612
45,966 67,793

Notes: BEE -

(i) During the year ended 30 June 2021, government grants (i) BE-_Z-_—SX<A=1THLEFE"
primarily represented one-off government subsidies BAHEEEREHR20198RES
granted due to COVID-19 pandemic of HK$8,958,000 % ([ COVID-19 ) B MR M — R 1%
(2020: HK$1,806,000) under the Employment Support BTER) - HEEE#ES,958,0007T
Scheme of Hong Kong. (ZZE=FF : 8%1,806,0007T) K E

BB RHMEIFTE -

(ii) During the year ended 30 June 2020, expenditure (ii) BE-Z-ZFAA=THLEFE"
relating to the plant relocation project of HK$22,713,000 ERERBEEMEENERRBYE
which mainly included fixed asset write-off of the old 22,713,000t TEBREREMEEE
plant of HK$8,325,000 and corporate income tax of EEZ A BYEL 32500kt
HK$11,751,000 had been incurred. A corresponding BBl AB%E 11,751,000t © 1HES
amount of government compensation was then credited to SHEoBNABET AGEEER -
the consolidated statement of profit or loss. The remaining BT 2B EGRREE L B RY
balance of government compensation is deducted from the ¥ BERREZREENR(RHE
carrying amount of leasehold land and property, plant and 18(a)(ii)) °
equipment (see note 18(a)(ii)).

(i) The Group recognised dividend income of HK$3,535,000 (iii) SEERATFEEF AHMEEKS
from the equity securities measured at FVOCI, of which STENREZSEIARIMAR B
HK$125,000 related to investment derecognised during 3,535,0007T » H A EHEE 125,000
the year and HK$3,410,000 related to investments held at TEERFRELLBIAZRERSE
30 June 2021. ¥43,410,000t BN =T =—F A

Zt+HBEZRE -

(iv) The Group entered into various foreign exchange forward (iv) TEBRFERNTILE FIHBERSE
contracts to manage its foreign currency risk exposures [E » LAEEE FTE ST Y JNE ELRS: ©
during the year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2021 BE—Z=-—H X A=1+HILEE

. [ YA
Profit Before Taxation 7. BRFANEF
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting): MREADEFE MR (GTA) THEE !
2021 2020
—E=—f —E-EF
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T JBEF T
Finance costs BE R
Interest on lease liabilities (note 17(b)) HEBBFNE(HE17(0b)) 283 238
Staff costs (including directors’ BIXSN(BREEEHE
emoluments - note 9) — Ff&¥9)
Salaries, wages and other benefits TE  HFeREMER 416,802 391,463
Share-based payment expenses REZANE R - 78
Contribution to defined contribution EFHFCRIRETE 2 S
retirement plans (note (i) (Bi1EEG)) 19,316 18,414
436,118 409,955
Auditors’ remuneration ZEEMEE
Audit services ZE RIS 1,818 1,745
Tax and other services TS &2 B AR A 329 981
2,147 2,726
Depreciation and amortisation EREH
Leasehold land and property, HEITHEYE  BERRE
plant and equipment 59,672 63,738
Intangible assets BEEE 3,242 4,643
62,914 68,381
Other items HhigH
Net exchange (gains)/losses & W% (kss) 5518 (2,587) 3,251
Loss allowance recognised for B 5 EWERA 2 ErakEER
trade receivables 2 93
Cost of inventories (note 15(b)) FERA(HIE150)) 4,476,856 3,925,837
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7.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2021 HEZZE=-—HAXB=1HILEE

Profit Before Taxation (continued)

Notes:

(i)

(i)

During the year ended 30 June 2021, social security
contributions amounted to HK$13,873,000 (2020:
HK$10,727,000) were exempted in Mainland China
following the government introduced temporary waiver
from the payment of social security contributions due to
COVID-19 pandemic.

The Group participates in pension schemes organised by
the PRC government whereby the Group is required to pay
annual contributions at rates ranging from 14% to 16%
(2020: 13% to 16%) of the standard wages determined by
the relevant authorities in the PRC during the year ended
30 June 2021.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the "MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance and an
Occupational Retirement Scheme Ordinance Scheme (the
“ORSO Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Occupational
Retirement Scheme Ordinance for employees employed
under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance. The MPF scheme and ORSO scheme are
defined contribution retirement schemes administered by
independent trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, the Group
and its employees are each required to make contributions
to the scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant income,
subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000
(2020: HK$30,000). Under the ORSO Scheme, the Group
and its employees are each required to make contributions
to the scheme at 10% and 5% of the employees’ relevant
income respectively. Contributions to the schemes vest
immediately. Save for the above schemes, the Group has
no other material obligation for payment of retirement
benefits beyond the contributions.

MIE(EB)BRAR | &

7.

(ii)

FFHR

BRI A=A )

Wt -

BE-ZE-—SAA=1+THLEE
HEHACOVID-19% BT @ FEIBUTE
SREEACHZIRBEERAL > It
Z£EMABE13,873,000(ZE=F
4 JE110,727,0007T) EEBERE o

AEESEPEBRFAESHEKSST
2 Bt AEERBE=ZT=_—F
AE=ZTRALFERERPEBBE
BIEEZEETIEARE  R14% %
16% (ZZ=FF : 13%F16%)Ht
BHEE FERNSMEIR o

AEETRETBCREIELATESK
) M CRERIRETERG) BIRIBEE
BUEERG) AEETERAZEER
NaFIMAREE(BESTE)
MRS - BESTEA—E
REMBENRSIE  BABL 2T
AEE - RIFAESHE  AEEK
EESBABRZTEAELEERES
BREWAS% 25 MARBYRA LR
A5 AB30,000T(ZE=8F 1 8
#30,0007T) ° RIBBEEAKEE > A
SEREES S BEBZTEMEL
HERNEEBBEWA10%M5% 2 #
o EEtEMEH N EFIENEEERE o
KR EAET 85N AEER AR L
UMW EA B RBRBRSRET -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8. Taxation

R R E

For the year ended 30 June 2021 HEZZE=-—HAXB=1HILEE

8. HiiE

174

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or (a) MREEBEFERZBES
loss represents:
2021 2020
—E—F —ECEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax ZAREFHIE-FERE
Provision for the year REERE 4,087 5,125
Over-provision in respect of prior years I 2 BEERE (266) (63)
3,821 5,062
Current tax - Outside Hong Kong RERE - FHBLUI
Provision for the year REERE 63,833 69,214
Under-provision in respect of prior years FFE 2 EEE 344 681
64,177 69,895
Deferred tax (note 20) BB IE (MEE20)
Origination and reversal of ERMEENEEREE
__ temporary differences (4943 - 7,786
63,055 82,743

Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided for at
the rate of 16.5% (2020: 16.5%) on the respective
estimated assessable profits of the companies within
the Group operating in Hong Kong during the year.

Taxation outside Hong Kong represents income
tax charge on the estimated taxable profits of
certain subsidiaries operating in Mainland China
and Macau, calculated at the rates prevailing in the
respective regions.

All entities engaged in the primary processing
of agricultural products in Mainland China are
exempted from PRC corporate income tax (“CIT").
As a result, the profits from flour mill operations
are exempted from CIT for the years ended 30 June
2021 and 2020.

Other subsidiaries operating in Mainland China are
subject to CIT tax rate of 25% (2020: 25%).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2021 HEZZE=-—HAXB=1HILEE

8. Taxation (continued)

(a)

(b)

loss represents: (continued)

Bz

8' *%II/\(/E)

Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or (a)

In addition, the Group is subject to withholding

tax at the applicable rate of 5% on distribution of

profits generated after 31 December 2007 from

the foreign investment enterprises established in

Mainland China. Deferred tax liabilities have been
provided for in this regard based on the expected
distributable dividends by its subsidiaries established
in Mainland China in respect of profits generated

after 31 December 2007.

REREBRBERZBIAR © (B)

LEoh » REEARE T EARER
YW ECER—ZBZBLFE+=
A=t -BRERELENEFNEL
Z K B RBERS % AR TE
BBt AH  ERBEREKX
BERINMELER-_ZTZLF
TZA=+-HEELZENE
HAafkzREFRELEHRES

ﬁo

Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting (b) HEIZLHESHHEFRBEAFE
profit at applicable tax rates: ZEEBRINT ¢
2021 2020
—EC—F —ECEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETFT BEFT
Profit before taxation BRE AT A 420,753 399,632
Notional tax on profit before taxation, RERNE TS5
calculated at the rates applicable to BT E BB AR T
profits in the tax jurisdictions concerned ~ ZB&EHIA 105,646 98,568
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses B LIRS 2
B8 6,498 3,568
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue BERBRANT KT L (4,537) (7,373)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RFUBERNHIEEEZ
B E 5,282 3,098
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses FERARUAIEET T UER
not previously recognised RSB HEE (2,539) (580)
Effect of tax concessions HEERzTE (64,440) (41,434)
Under-provision in respect of prior years  FEEZ2 T2 E#{E 78 618
Withholding tax on dividend and royalty ~FEIBERZK B QRS
received and receivable from PRC REWRE RIS
subsidiaries BB 16,950 13,902
Corporate income tax on cash W E) B B RE — B
compensation received related to BREMBSREFHEEZ
relocation of a flour mill plant (note 6) SR (Fate) = 11,751
Others Hits 117 625
Actual tax expenses BREBESH 63,055 82,743
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2021 BE—Z=-—H X A=1+HILEE

8. Taxation (continued) 8. *ﬁlﬁ (#&)
(c)  Current taxation in the consolidated statement of (0 “EHEAUBMRRRPHEHHE
financial position represents: (3
2021 2020
—B--% -—Z-FF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT BEF T
Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax AREERBFEHEE
for the year 4,087 5,125
Balance of Hong Kong Profits Tax FEEZEERNEH
payable relating to prior years FEf 2 Sk 1,165 683
5,252 5,808
Provision for profits tax outside BB LN IERE
Hong Kong 7,520 29,338
Tax payables RS E 12,772 35,146
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9.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2021 BE—Z=-—HA=1+HLEE

Directors’ and Senior Executives’

9. EERERITHAEMH

Emoluments &
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) E=E=EMe
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section RIEEBCA THEMYE3I8I(MNER
383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and (RBEI(FEESFRER) RHD
Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information E2EWECEEMEWT ¢
about Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as
follows:
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits schemes
fees in kind Bonuses contributions 2021
(Note (ix))
e 2ER BIK
EShe BYFlE 4 S —B--F
(Hit(ix)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BEFT BETT BETT BETT
Executive director HITEE
WONG Cho Fai (Note (i) ERE (K1) - 4,211 330 18 4,559
Non-executive directors FHTES
KWEK Leng Hai (Note (}) BBMEEN) = = - - -
TANG Hong Cheong (Notes (i & (i) BRES (#z2() K i) - - - = =
CHEW Seong Aun (Notes (i) & (iii) BIR (B2 R i) - - - = =
WHANG Sun Tze B 230 - - - 230
TAN Lim Heng (Note (iv)) BRI (A () 84 = = - 84
Independent non-executive ~ BUFHTES
directors
LO Kai Yiu, Anthony ERE 360 - - _ 360
HUANG Lester Garson, SBS, JP ~ EEf  #4wes
X4 330 - = - 330
HO Yuk Wai, Joan fEE 320 - - - 320
Year ended 30 June 2021 Hz-2--%
AAZTELEEE 1,324 421 330 18 5,883
HIE(EB)BRARA | ZE = —FF®, 177
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2021 BE—Z=-—H X A=1+HILEE

Directors’ and Senior Executives’
Emoluments (ontinved)

(a)

9.

EERSRITHAEM

€ @)

Directors’ emoluments (continued) () EEME#E)
Salaries,
allowances
and Retirement
Directors' benefits schemes  Retirement Share-based
fees inkind ~ Bonuses contributions  benefits  Sub-total  payment 2020
(Note (ix) (Note (xi)
EHR &
Ezhe  ENRG L HEMR  RHER Mt REXN Z3-EE
(Hiiy) (W)
HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
B BEFr BEFn BEFn BEFn BEFn BEfn BETn
Executive director #ies
LEUNG Joseph (Note (ii) PR - 4,407 1,500 3 1,800 7,730 40 7,770
Non-executive directors g
KWEK Leng Hai (Note (i) aLBIE) - - - - - - - -
TANG Hong Cheong (Note (i) WER (W) - - - - - _ _ _
WHANG Sun Tze ELE 230 - - - - 230 - 230
TANLim Heng Rl 230 - - - - 30 - 230
Independent non-executive directors FuFHTEE
L0 Kai Yiu, Anthony (Note (1) BRI 353 - - - - 353 - 353
AU Chee Ming (Note (1) BEB ) 130 - - - - 130 - 130
HUANG Lester Garson, S8, Jp BEl gzyEs
(Note (i) KE (W) 326 - - - - 326 - 36
HO Yuk Wai, Joan (Note (v mES W) 201 - - - - 201 - 201
Year ended 30 June 2020 HZ-E-3E
AAZTRLEE 1,470 4,407 1,500 23 1,800 9,200 40 9,240

Notes: Kizt -

(i) No directors’ fees have been paid to any salaried (i) BEESHLSEXFFARAT
directors employed by the Company or its related REMEEERANETZE
corporations. BEo

(ii) Mr. LEUNG Joseph (“Mr. Leung”) has retired as an (ii) Z2ZEEE(REENR=Z
executive director of the Company with effect from —EE+LA—HEFARATEH,
1 July 2020. Following the retirement of Mr. Leung, TEE—HB - AREERME
Mr. Wong Cho Fai was appointed as an executive % BHEXER-ZT-ZF
director of the Company with effect from 1 July +A—REZEALRATHIT
2020. BEo

(iii) Mr. TANG Hong Cheong (“Mr. Tang”) has retired (iii) WEEXE([HEENNR-E

as a non-executive director of the Company
with effect from 1 January 2021. Following the
retirement of Mr. Tang, Mr. Chew Seong Aun
was appointed as a non-executive director of the
Company with effect from 1 January 2021.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2021 HEZZE=-—HAXB=1HILEE

9. Directors’ and Senior Executives’
Em0|uments (continued)

(a)

Directors’ emoluments (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

Mr. TAN Lim Heng (“Mr. Tan") has retired as a
non-executive director of the Company with effect
from 11 November 2020 after the conclusion of the
annual general meeting of the Company held on
11 November 2020. Mr. Tan is entitled to director’s
fee on a pro-rata basis from 1 July 2020 to 11
November 2020.

Mr. LO Kai Yiu, Anthony was appointed as a
member of the Board Remuneration Committee
("BRC") with effect from 13 November 2019 after
the conclusion of the annual general meeting of
the Company held on 13 November 2019 (the
“2019 AGM").

Mr. AU Chee Ming has retired as an independent
non-executive director and ceased to be the
Chairman of the BRC, a member of the Board Audit
and Risk Management Committee (“BARMC") and
a member of the Board Nomination Committee
(“BNC") of the Company with effect from 13
November 2019 after the conclusion of the 2019
AGM.

Mr. HUANG Lester Garson, SBS JP was re-
designated as the Chairman of the BRC with effect
from 13 November 2019 after the conclusion of the
2019 AGM.

Ms. HO Yuk Wai, Joan was appointed as an
independent non-executive director, a member
of the BARMC and a member of the BNC of the
Company with effect from 13 November 2019 after
the conclusion of the 2019 AGM.

Bonuses paid/payable for the year were
performance-related.

There was no arrangement under which a director
had waived or agreed to waive any emoluments.

These represent the estimated money value of
share options granted to the director under the
Company’s share option scheme. The value of
these share options is measured according to
the Group’s accounting policies for share-based
payment transactions as set out in note 2(q)(ii) and,
in accordance with that policy, include adjustments
to reverse amounts accrued in previous years where
grants of equity instruments are forfeited prior to
vesting.

The details of the principal terms and number of
share options granted are disclosed under note 23.

MIE(EB)BRAR | &

9.

€@
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(a)

FFHR

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(i)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R R E

For the year ended 30 June 2021 BE—Z=-—H X A=1+HILEE

9. Directors’ and Senior Executives’ 9.
Emoluments (ontinved)

(b) Individuals with highest emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments,
one (2020: one) is a director whose emolument is
disclosed in note 9(a) above. The aggregate of the
emoluments in respect of the other four (2020: four)

EERSNITHAEMH
€@

(b) EBEWANEES

BEREFMEBALSR B
B(=B=BE : —F)NALT
2EE AL DR ERMEE
R o HALNE (SR BE

individuals are as follows: WE)ALTZMESEZEMT -
2021 2020
—E=—f —E-EfF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BEFT
Salaries and other benefits HFe R EMER 9,950 9,398
Discretionary bonuses EYBTEAL 1,956 2,077
Retirement schemes contributions RINGTEMHRR 131 123
12,037 11,598
Share-based payment expenses BELZAFER - 29
12,037 11,627

The numbers of individuals whose emoluments falls
within the following bands are:

BT HEERNZAHNT :

2021 2020

—E-—F —ECEF

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

HKS #E# T AE AZ
2,500,001 - 3,000,000 2 2
3,000,001 - 3,500,000 2 2
4 4
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R R E S

For the year ended 30 June 2021 #HZE=

10. Dividends

BE-FXRA=Z+THLFE

10. B2

(a) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the (a) FRENSELI2ARRKRE (MK
Company (excluding the amount paid to shares ENFEARERITHRABRGR
held by the Group under the ESOP reserve) BEARBBETEEZRANSE
attributable to the year: %) :

2021 2020
—E-—F —EEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Interim dividend declared and paid of hEIRR B IR B4
HK$0.15 (2020: HK$0.14) per BREZBEREBE0.15T
ordinary share (ZE-FF:
FBH50.147T) 35,493 33,220
Final dividend proposed after the end of EiR#EHIKE < REIRE
the reporting period of HK$0.33 BREBRBE033T
(2020: HK$0.31) per ordinary share (ZB=TF .
7BM0.317T) 77,994 73,622
113,487 106,842
The final dividend proposed after the end of the Fiﬁiﬁﬂ Efﬂﬁflﬁﬁfz*ﬁ”x
reporting period has not been recognised as a ERBEHAAMKRERLER
liability at the end of the reporting period. %—IEEJE °

(b) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the (b) FREMRESSHWA—EEREE
Company (excluding the amount paid to shares ERAAQRRRRE (HREHS
held by the Group under the ESOP reserve) FAREBRITHRAERDAEE
attributable to the previous financial year, FRRFTRHREZRONEE) :
approved and paid during the year:

2021 2020
—B-—F —ERIEF
HK$'000 HK$°000
BT T BT T
Final dividend in respect of the previous & R8AT— B8 BraE EEH#
financial year, approved and paid REMSHREARE -
during the year, of HK$0.31 iﬂ“%zﬁﬂx,ﬁmomm
(2020: HK$0.30) per ordinary share —ETBE
,%ﬁzoao;c 73,461 71,077
MIE(EE)ERAR | S —FF&K 181



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R R E

For the year ended 30 June 2021 BE—Z=-—H X A=1+HILEE

11. Earnings Per Share 1. BRER

182

(a)

(b)

Basic earnings per share (a)

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based
on the profit for the year of HK$357,698,000
(2020: HK$316,889,000) and the weighted average
number of 236,875,000 (2020: 237,190,000)
ordinary shares in issue during the year, calculated as
follows:

BREXEF

ERERERNTIREARQBRE
& F 78 %% 357,698,000 7T ( =
T_ZTF : #B¥316,889,0007T)
RRARFEEANESRITEBRZM
P8 236,875,000( =8 =&
£ 1237,190,000) R BARETE -

2021 2020
—E—F —ECEF
‘000 ‘000
F s
Issued ordinary shares at the beginning 32 &TEER
of year 243,354 243,354
Effect of shares repurchased EEERECEBRN
in prior years 7 (11,039) (10,337)
Effect of shares repurchased AEE R 2 EBRN
in current year e (615) (309)
(11,654) (10,646)
Effect of share options exercised FEETEZ2ROAERE
in prior years NS A 5,175 4,140
Effect of share options exercised REETEZRMZDIEE
in current year -4 - 342
5,175 4,482
Weighted average number of ordinary ~ SREERINEFIH
shares at the end of year 236,875 237,190
Diluted earnings per share (b) BREBEERF

The diluted earnings per share equalled the basic
earnings per share as there were no dilutive
potential ordinary shares outstanding during the
years ended 30 June 2021 and 2020.

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited | Annual Report 2021

FRITEHARBITZBERES
BR ABUAEBZE-—Z--—FK=
Z_ZEFARA=ZTHIEFEZSE
REBERAEEREREREF



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2021 BE—Z=-—HA=1+HLEE

12. Leasehold Land and Property, 12. HELHRYE  BE

Plant and Equipment REEE
(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount (a) HREEZHER
Leasehold
Leasehold land and
land and buildings
buildings and Machineries,
and leasehold equipment,
leasehold improvements furniture
improvements outside  Construction and motor
in HongKong ~ Hong Kong in progress vehicles Total
ERHEE
TiREF FRUNME B R
R#EE  tHREF HBIR HARKE At

HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
E¥TT  ERTr ERTr E¥Tn ERTx

Cost: A
At 1 July 2019 RZE-NEtA-H 120,167 1,008,152 111,467 889,864 2,129,650
Additions 1 1,013 4,688 51,792 31,291 88,784
Deduction of government grants IR BUF#EL

(note 18(a)li) (Bt 1808)) - (20,571) - (15,788) (36,359)
Transfer between categories PEEER - 74,379 (137,003) 62,624 -
Disposals e - (17,788) - (40,345) (58,133)
Exchange adjustments E R - (27,727) (3,105) (26,622) (57,454)
At 30 June 2020 R-E-ZEEA~A=1H 121,180 1,021,133 23,151 901,024 2,066,488
At 1 July 2020 RZE-ZEFtF-H 121,180 1,021,133 23,151 901,024 2,066,488
Additions 1 457 10,692 136,869 24,160 172,178
Transfer between categories DR 4,274 13,328 (33,966) 16,364 -
Disposals HE - (3,224) S (9,846) (13,070)
Exchange adjustments EHAR - 82,430 4,516 70,794 157,740
At 30 June 2021 WZBE--EXA=1H 125,911 1,124,359 130,570 1,002,496 2,383,336
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2021 BE—Z=-—H X A=1+HILEE

12. Leasehold Land and Property, 12. HELHRYE  BE

Plant and Equipment (continued) BB
(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount (a) MREEZHIRE)
(continued)
Leasehold
Leasehold land and
land and buildings
buildings and Machineries,
and leasehold equipment,
leasehold improvements furniture
improvements outside  Construction and motor
inHongKong ~ Hong Kong in progress vehicles Total
EBHE
1HREF FAUMIE CERET R
REE  tHRET HRIR BRARRE &t

HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
ERTT ERTT BRTT BT BRETT

Accumulated depreciation, RiHE  BER
amortisation and AEEE :
impairment loss:

At 1 July 2019 RZZ-7FtA-A 75,717 713,203 - 634,078 1,422,998
Charge for the year REEHRERTE 2,531 28,780 - 32,427 63,738
Written back on disposals HEZED - (14,696) - (33,899) (48,595)
Exchange adjustments ERAEE - (21,934) - (17,749) (39,683)
At 30 June 2020 RZE-ZEEXRA=1H 78,248 705,353 - 614,857 1,398,458
At 1 July 2020 WZE-ZEE+F-H 78,248 705,353 - 614,857 1,398,458
Charge for the year KEEBERINE 2,620 19,052 - 38,000 59,672
Written back on disposals HEREE - (1,349) - (8,793) (10,142)
Exchange adjustments EiE - 66,131 - 44,916 111,047
At 30 June 2021 WZE--EXA=1H 80,868 789,187 - 688,980 1,559,035
Net book value: REFE

At 30 June 2021 RIEZ-EXA=1H 45,043 335,172 130,570 313,516 824,301
At 30 June 2020 RZE-ZEEXA=1H 42,932 315,780 23,151 286,167 668,030
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2021 BE—Z=-—HA=1+HLEE

12. Leasehold Land and Property, 12. HELHRYE  BE

Plant and Equipment (continued) REfE@
(b) Right-of-use assets (b) FHEEE
The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use REBEESE2FRAEEEZ
assets by class of underlying asset is as follows: BREVEESHAOT
2021 2020
—E-—-F —ECEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Leasehold land and buildings in EHBEE T RET
Hong Kong 12,421 12,898

Leasehold land and buildings outside EBLIMEE L RIETF
Hong Kong 68,509 63,959

Machineries, equipment, furniture and  #88 - 4% « FIMRAE
motor vehicles 1,162 899

82,092 77,756
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2021 BE—Z=-—H X A=1+HILEE

12. Leasehold Land and Property,
Plant and Equipment (continued)

(b) Right-of-use assets (continued)

The analysis of expense items in relation to leases

12.

HELTHERYE  BE
N & )

(b) FEREEEG)

BB RER 2 HEEEE 25

recognised in profit or loss is as follows: XIEEDATIT
2021 2020
—B-—f —E2TEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFT BT T
Depreciation charge of right-of-use REBEESEZ
assets by class of underlying asset: FREEEZITEER :
Leasehold land and buildings in HFEARELHRETF
Hong Kong 477 477
Leasehold land and buildings outside BEBUNMNEE T K
Hong Kong BF 6,040 5,058
Machineries, equipment, furniture and ~ #28 + 34 « FME
motor vehicles AE 292 198
6,809 5,733
Interest on lease liabilities (note 7) HEBBEZFE(ME7) 283 238
Expense relating to short-term leases ~ AREIEHHEE 2B 9,700 9,060

During the year ended 30 June 2021, additions
to right-of-use assets were HK$4,969,000
(2020: HK$5,555,000). This amount included
machineries and equipment of HK$539,000 (2020:
HK$855,000), and the remainder primarily related
to the capitalised lease payments payable under new
tenancy agreements.

Details of total cash outflow for leases and the
maturity analysis of lease liabilities are set out in
notes 17(c) and 24(b) respectively.
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REBZE-_Z-_—FxXA=+HL
FE ABEHAEEEABY
4,969,000 L (ZE-FF : B
5,555,0007T) ° 2N IBEE B
539,000 t(Z&E & F : B
855,000t ) A EHE R
BRTHETEREFHERZET
ETMtEENRER -

FEHEZRERHAEREE
BEZRE D2 BB R
17(c) k% 24(b) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2021 BE—Z=-—HA=1+HLEE

13. Intangible Assets and Goodwill 13. B EEREE
Goodwill  Trademarks ERP Total
TEER
[5ES BE TEIRS &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFT BEFT BEF T BEFTT
Cost: B
At 1 July 2019 RIE-NFEtA—H 14,714 39,970 22,992 77,676
Additions =0 - - 1,908 1,908
At 30 June 2020 N=—E-EEXA=1H 14,714 39,970 24,900 79,584
At 1 July 2020 R-E-ZE+A—H 14,714 39,970 24,900 79,584
Additions o0 - - 1,545 1,545
Exchange adjustments fE 5 3R - - 37 37
At 30 June 2021 RZEZ-FxA=1H 14,714 39,970 26,482 81,166
Accumulated amortisation: 2T
1 July 2019 RN-E-NEtA—H - 39,970 15,570 55,540
Charge for the year TEEEHE - - 4,643 4,643
At 30 June 2020 RZEZZFXB=1H - 39,970 20,213 60,183
At 1 July 2020 R-Z-ZE+A—H - 39,970 20,213 60,183
Charge for the year REEHH - - 3,242 3,242
Exchange adjustments TRk = - 3 3
At 30 June 2021 N-BE-_—-FxXA=1H - 39,970 23,458 63,428
Impairment loss: REES
At 1 July 2019, 30 June 2020, RZE-AFEtA—-HB"
1 July 2020 and 30 June 2021 _?_qff—/\ﬁ] +A-
—ECEFtLA-AK
—E--FXA=1H 12,539 - - 12,539
Net book value: REFE
At 30 June 2021 R=Z=—5xA=1H 2,175 - 3,024 5,199
At 30 June 2020 N-BE-_ZFEXA=1H 2,175 - 4,687 6,862
The amortisation charge for the year is included in AEEZHBEBRCT ARGEEER
“administrative expenses” in the consolidated statement of [{TBERIA -
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 R & Y &

FRAZTHLEFE

For the year ended 30 June 2021 HE=-ZT=—

Intangible Assets and Goodwill

(continued)

Impairment test for cash-generating units
containing goodwill

The carrying amount of goodwill is allocated to edible
oil operations. The recoverable amount of the CGU is
determined based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations use cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a three-year
period. The key assumptions of the cash flow projections
are the estimated weighted average growth rate and
the discount rate used. Cash flows beyond the three-
year period are extrapolated using an estimated weighted
average growth rate of 3% (2020: 3%) which does not
significantly exceed the long-term average growth rate for
the business in which the CGU operates. The cash flows are
discounted using a pre-tax discount rate of 13.2% (2020:
14.0%) which reflects specific risks relating to the relevant
CGU.

The results of the tests undertaken as at 30 June 2021
and 30 June 2020 indicated no further recognition of
impairment loss was necessary.

13.

BEEERERw

BERECREELENZRERNR

BEZRESHBERA MO - HE
REeEEBENNTERESERREFER
BEME ZEEFAZRESREENR
ERBREEEMEC=FHUHRESES
E-REREEATANEIEREZATE
d‘bﬂ*gflzi’ﬁ*%%&ﬁﬁfﬁ% o ZHFHILL
# RN S ME T E AN TEFT INREF 518
REI%(ZEB-ZF 3%)THBEEE
CEUREEBNRPFHERE B
EREEARBABREI32% (==
ZTE D 140%)MR  URMEBREE
EENNSERRE

E)\\\—v— f'i/\ﬁ +E|&—7—7£|5
ANE=+TBRETZASRERERBAE
3 — D RER R 2R
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2021 BE—Z=-—HA=1+HLEE

14. Other Financial Assets 14. HitbFERBEE
2021 2020
—E-—F —ECEF
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
BaE BT T BT T
Debt securities measured at R E 2
amortised cost BIES (i) 67,669 -

Equity securities designated at FVOCl  1EER AV EETAHM

(non-recycling): 2HEKE (R ATEE)
REFHS
- Equity securities listed in Hong Kong —R&EB LT Z
REHS (if) 81,945 -
Financial assets measured at FVPL: RATEEFABRTE
ZEMEE
— Club membership -2 815 772
Derivative financial instruments: TTESmIA :
— Foreign exchange forward contracts — JMNREISE - 584
150,429 1,356
Representing: HER:
- Non-current assets —RBEE 82,760 772
— Current assets - REEE 67,669 584
150,429 1,356
Notes: Hrat -
(i) The debt securities are unsecured, bearing fixed interest (i) BEREEFABEA REEFANE
rates from 2.2% to 3.2% per annum and will mature in NF22%ZE32% 2B ABR=-F
2022. ——FRE o
(i) The equity securities designated at FVOCI (non-recycling) (i) EERATEET AR ME2EEEG (T
include the listed equity securities of companies engaged AEE)WREERSFBERITREFE
in banking and finance industry of HK$62,525,000 (2020: ARz EHREFE S E%62,525,000
Nil) and telecommunications industry of HK$19,420,000 T(ZEZEF  E)REAELTZ
(2020: Nil). The Group designated these investments TR EFHSB19,420,000T (=8
as equity securities at FVOCI (non-recycling), as the —EF R  AEEHZEREEE
investments are held for investment yield enhancement BRAFEES AEM2EKE (FIE
purpose. ENHREFES  LLIIHRBEEIAD
?ﬂ’ﬁhﬂ?ﬁﬁ@iﬁzﬁﬁﬁ °
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15.

190

. ‘4
Inventories 15. 78
(a) Inventories in the consolidated statement of (a) MNEAPBRRRZEERES:
financial position comprise:
2021 2020
—®=—F  —Z-BF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BEFT BT T
Raw materials B 538,153 396,772
Work in progress ¥ 44,925 36,880
Finished goods IR 224,529 183,139
Inventories in transit TERER 16,728 5,472
Packing materials R 25,489 23,810
849,824 646,073
(b) The analysis of amount of inventories (b) RELEZXREIAEZIHZEE
recognised as an expense and included in the SEIMWOT
consolidated statement of profit or loss is as
follows:
2021 2020
—E-—F —ECEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BEFT BT T
Carrying amount of inventories sold 2EFEZREE 4,473,040 3,923,404
Write-down of inventories FERE 3,816 2,433
4,476,856 3,925,837
Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited | Annual Report 2021
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2021 BE—Z=-—HA=1+HLEE

16. Trade and Other Receivables 16. EZ R HMEWERTK
2021 2020
=F=-F —2-FF
HK$°000 HK$°000
BETFT BEFT
Trade receivables, net of loss allowance HNBREEREZE S EWEER 290,984 310,159
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments EfifER - RE R FETRIE 64,406 36,473
355,390 346,632
All of the trade and other receivables are expected to be FEESRHEMEWERMIIBBHE—F
recovered or recognised as expense within one year. ALNEIER Y S g i
Ageing Analysis BRiR DA
As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis RBEHLE  REXEEBRIORES
of trade receivables (which are included in trade and other EREECESEVERFTZIRRDT(E
receivables), based on the invoice date and net of loss STAESREMBWER)NT :

allowance, is as follows:

2021 2020
—B-—% —B-EF
HK$'000 HK$'000
B F T BT T
Within 3 months =@EBR 289,991 307,465
3 to 6 months =ZXEA 979 2,398
Over 6 months NMEAU L 14 296
290,984 310,159

Further details on the Group’s credit policy and credit risk AEEZEEBRRREGEWRMES

arising from trade receivables are set out in note 24(a). K= ERBEFEFIRMIEE24(a)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2021 BE—Z=-—H X A=1+HILEE

17. Cash and Short Term Funds and 17. ReREHES R HM

Other Cash Flow Information ReREER
(a) Cash and short term funds comprise: (a) BEREHESLEIE:
2021 2020
—E-—& —E-%&
HK$°000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Deposits with banks IRITEHFR 1,141,936 1,231,791
Cash at bank and on hand RITFERERS 343,541 297,817
Cash and short term funds in the FEMBRRERZEREER
consolidated statement of financial EHES
position 1,485,477 1,529,608
Fixed deposits held at banks with FEERISAEA=EA
original maturity over three months B E VR ITEERTE R (208,147) (192,272)
Cash and cash equivalents in the GERETERZEER
consolidated statement of cash flows BE%E 1,277,330 1,337,336
Cash at bank carries interest at floating rates based RITERERESHRITERZ
on daily bank deposits rates. Deposits with banks FEREGFEMBRRAELE o R17
include time deposits which are matured within EHEREREMFRIIR=E
three months and earn interest at the respective BREH  UREEEZESF
short term deposit rates, and fixed deposits with MAER=EAULHNERFR
original maturity over three months. BRERF S, o
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17. Cash and Short Term Funds and
Other Cash Flow Information

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R R E S

For the year ended 30 June 2021 BE—Z=-—HA=1+HLEE

(continued)

(b)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (b)
financing activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s
liabilities from financing activities, including both
cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from
financing activities are liabilities for which cash flows
were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the
Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as
cash flows from financing activities.

17. REREHPEESRHEM
HEREER 2

BMEEBELE A EHR

TRHANASEREETHEE
ZEE2E  ETRERENE
Re88  BMEFTDHMELEZR
BEARESREERNIRRRE
RESRAEERERERER
RO BERBEFTH2RERE -

Lease liabilities (note 79)

HESBE(HE19)
2021 2020
—EC-—-F —ECEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
At 1 July RtA—AH 4,351 3,596
Changes from financing cash flows: BERE&FEFH :
Capital element of lease rentals paid 2 ER e 2 EAREH (4,497) (3,642)
Interest element of lease rentals paid EHREHRES 2 F 25 (283) (238)
Total changes from financing cash flows FERESRELELLE (4,780) (3,880)
Exchange adjustments BE R AR 389 (123)
Other changes: Hib# s
Increase in lease liabilities from entering FRARETZFHHEER
into new leases and renewal of HEEP-HEE
leases during the year &M 4,969 4,520
Interest expenses (note 7) MEER(ME7) 283 238
Total other changes Hith B B4 %8 5,252 4,758
At 30 June RAA=+H 5,212 4,351
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2021 BE—Z=-—H X A=1+HILEE

17. Cash and Short Term Funds and 17. ReREHES R HM

Other Cash Flow Information

(continued)

(c) Total cash outflow for leases

Amounts included in the consolidated statement of
cash flows for leases comprise the following:

HEHhEER®

(9]

HERESRHAT

FEEFAGERERERZK
HEENTIEE !

2021 2020
—B--%  C-Z-%F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT BEF T
Within operating cash flows KRERERENR 9,700 9,060
Within financing cash flows RERETREA 4,780 3,880
14,480 12,940
These amounts relate to the following: ZEFIHE LT AEEE ¢
2021 2020
—B--%  C-Z-EF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT BEF T
Lease rentals paid 2fEERES 14,480 12,940

194 Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited | Annual Report 2021



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2021 BE—Z=-—HA=1+HLEE

18. Trade and Other Payables and 18. EZRHMEMNERR

Contract Liabilities cEAEE
(a) Trade and other payables () EZRHMEMNER
As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing MRIMEBRARE RBEXZAH
analysis of trade payables (which are included in B ZEMRRZRRIM(EETA
trade and other payables), based on the invoice date, B REMEMERIR)NT :
is as follows:
2021 2020
—®=--%  CZB-FF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Within 3 months =@EBAR 404,349 306,865
More than 3 months =@EBUE 3,657 6,529
Trade payables B 5 IR 408,006 313,394
Deposits received BWizE 14,977 10,259
Other payables and accruals Htn B[R R
&R 297,583 311,554
Deferred income IEFEYA 5,505 4,472
Derivative financial instruments: PTESRTA :
— Foreign exchange forward contracts — —MN&REFEE 40 114
726,111 639,793
Notes: Bt -
(i) All of the trade and other payables are expected to 0] BB 5 REMENRRIE
be settled or recognised as income within one year SE—FRENSIERR/BA
or are repayable on demand. RANEREHEE o
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18. Trade and Other Payables and
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2021 BE—Z=-—H X A=1+HILEE

Contract Liabilities (continued)

(@) Trade and other payables (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(ii) Pursuant to the relocation agreement executed
on 16 November 2016 between the Grain
Bureau of YiXing City and Jiangsu Lam Soon
Flour Mills Company Limited (“JSLSF"”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, government
compensation will be paid to JSLSF to compensate
the relocation of a flour mill plant in connection
with the construction of the new plant on the
relocated land, including among others, acquisition
of property, plant and equipment and associated
costs relating to the relocation. The full amount of
cash relocation compensation has been received

during the year ended 30 June 2020.

As at 30 June 2020, government compensation
of HK$68,108,000 in relation to the relocation
was received. During the year ended 30 June
2020, expenditure relating to the plant relocation
project of HK$22,713,000 had been incurred.
A corresponding amount of government
compensation was then credited to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss (see note 6).

After offsetting the total estimated costs and
expenses relating to the relocation, the remaining
balance of HK$36,359,000 was deducted from the
carrying amount of leasehold land and property,
plant and equipment and consequently was
effectively recognised in profit or loss over useful
life of the assets by way of reduced depreciation
expense in accordance with the accounting policy

set out in note 2(t)(v).

(iii) As at 30 June 2021, trade payables included
an amount due to a fellow subsidiary of
HK$8,423,000 (2020: HK$1,586,000) in relation
to purchase of goods from the fellow subsidiary,
which is unsecured, interest-free and to be settled

according to the contract terms.

As at 30 June 2021, other payables and accruals
included an amount due to a fellow subsidiary of
HK$12,623,000 (2020: HK$11,989,000) in relation
to management fee expenses payable to the fellow
subsidiary, which is unsecured, interest-free and

repayable on demand.

18. ES REMENERARAR
EREE @)

() EZRHEAMEMERRE)
Bt - (4)

(i) REFETRBRRELRRQH
2EME QR IEEIEEY
ERAF ([IHEIRE
®1) RZE-—RE+-A
TARBETHRERZ -
FEE N T IEmMIEE
BMUBEEENRENRE
T ERERTIR  S1FE
EWME BERKBUARHA
WREBEEHENEEER - 28
REMEWESHCHNER
TEZEFXRA=ZTHLF
EUE -

R=ZT=ZTEXA=+H"E
WEMWZIBEHERBYE
68,108,0007T * HE-Z_ZF
FRNA=ZTHLEFE  BELE
HIREIEE RN H A B
22,713,000t © HHEEFE 2K
HAEEest \REeBmR(R
FfaE6) ©

HERARBHEM (G 28
BAREX®E  SHRERBE
36,359,000t AEE T R ¥
¥ BERREZREEST
B RIEEEAERAFRT
HAER SRR - WIRRH
FE2(0(v) BT oz & 5T B TR
DIFEER -

(iif) R-BE-Z—-F~A=1+H B
ZEAREEEENRRNE
ATEHER 423,000 (=B =
T BHE1,586,0007T) ¢ B
REHEERRAMBARREE
B ERBEAEERR RER
RIBERGRIELE -

R=ZB=Z—-FxA=+8"
HiEARAKEGERE
FENEZREME QT BE
12,623,000 T (ZE=FF :
HB#11,989,0007T) ' ERE
BEATFRANMBATNER
BRY  ZREARKR %
BERIEERESR -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2021 BE—Z=-—HA=1+HLEE

18. Trade and Other Payables and 18. EZRHMEMNERR

Contract Liabilities (continued) SREE@®
(b) Contract liabilities b) ERAE
2021 2020
—B-—F —BRIEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Advances received for goods to be sold FHEERBEKRER 35,536 39,369
Contract liabilities represent receipts in advances for cRAERELERREARER
sales of goods, giving rise to contract liabilities until ERRAVAZIMELEZERE
revenue is recognised. f&o
Included in the contract liabilities as at 30 June RZZBZZEFARA=THNER
2020, a balance of HK$38,635,000 (2019: BEEF  ERAEERIAK
HK$27,293,000) was recognised as revenue in the A BB 138,635,000t (=& — N
current year. & ##27,293,0007T) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2021 BE—Z=-—H X A=1+HILEE

19. Lease Liabilities 19. HEAE
At the end of the reporting period, the lease liabilities RIREEIARE  HEEERE
represented:

2021 2020
—B-—f —EBTEHF
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T BT T
Within 1 year —FR 3,365 2,767
After 1 year but within 2 years —FRZERFR 1,307 899
After 2 years but within 5 years MFERERFR 540 685
1,847 1,584
5,212 4,351
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2021 BE—Z=-—HA=1+HLEE

20. Deferred Taxation 20. EEBIIE
(a) Deferred tax assets and liabilities (a) CBRIAEEFHEEEREE:

recognised:

(i) Movement of each component of (i) BEHEEEREEEHE
deferred tax assets and liabilities L)
The components of deferred tax liabilities/ RiFE MBI RKRERR
(assets) recognised in the consolidated ZIEERBEE (BEF)
statement of financial position and the HERFEAZESFHMNT :

movements during the year are as follows:

Depreciation
allowances
in excess of Expected
the related distributable
Deferred tax arising from: EEREELR depreciation ~ Provisions  Tax losses profits Total
REEHE ik
BHEBNE B HEER  TARER At

HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
E®Tn  E¥fr  ERTn ERFn ERTx

At 1 July 2019 RZE-nE+tA-H 8,567 (57) (4,762) 7,983 11,731
Charged/(credited) to REAEERIR/GIA)
consolidated statement of ~ (#2843)

profit or loss (note 8(a)) 502 (44) (437) 7,765 7,786
At 30 June 2020 RZBEZEEXA=1H 9,069 (101) (5,199) 15,748 19,517
At 1 July 2020 e <t o R 9,069 (101) (5,199) 15,748 19,517

Charged/(credited) to RESBERNG/GTA)
consolidated statement of (#3803

profit or loss (note 8(a)) 45 44 (993) (4,039) (4,943)

At 30 June 2021 RZEZ-%£XA=1H 9,114 (57) (6,192) 11,709 14,574
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2021 HE=-ZT=—

20. Deferred Taxation (continued)

200

(a)

(b)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities
recognised: (continued)

(ii) Reconciliation to the consolidated
statement of financial position:

FRAZTHLEFE

EIERIE ()
(a) CHERELEHELEERERS:
(&)

(i) HFEHBMREEZHE

2021 2020
—B-—F t- e 22
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Net deferred tax assets recognised  FAMRE BITSARIR TR
in the consolidated statement of BHERZIELER I
financial position FEE (672) (26)
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised A%R&BTERIRE
in the consolidated statement of R 2B IE
financial position HEE 15,246 19,543
14,574 19,517
Deferred tax liabilities not recognised (b) FRERELEHEAE

At 30 June 2021, temporary differences relating to
the expected distributable profits of the Group’s
subsidiaries in the Mainland China amounted
to HK$808,375,000 (2020: HK$763,541,000).
A deferred tax liability has been recognised
in respect of expected distributable profits of
HK$234,180,000 (2020: HK$314,960,000) where
there are planned distributions from subsidiaries in
the foreseeable future. No deferred tax liabilities
have been recognised in respect of the remaining
HK$574,195,000 (2020: HK$448,581,000) as the
Company controls the dividend policy of these
subsidiaries and it has been determined that it is
probable that profits will not be distributed by these
subsidiaries in the foreseeable future.
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For the year ended 30 June 2021 HE=-Z—=—

20. Deferred Taxation (continued)

(c)

Deferred tax assets not recognised

At 30 June 2021, the Group had unused tax losses of
HK$280,893,000 (2020: HK$280,774,000) available
for offset against future taxable profits. A deferred
tax asset has been recognised in respect of tax
losses of HK$36,155,000 (2020: HK$31,511,000).
No deferred tax assets have been recognised in
respect of the remaining HK$244,738,000 (2020:
HK$249,263,000) due to the unpredictability
of future taxable profit streams. Included in
unrecognised tax losses are losses of HK$22,157,000
(2020: HK$28,509,000) that will expire within
five years. Other losses can be carried forward
indefinitely.

At 30 June 2021, the Group had temporary
differences of HK$93,382,000 (2020:
HK$79,705,000) arising from impairment losses
of certain leasehold land and property, plant and
equipment provided in prior years. No deferred tax
assets have been recognised in respect of these
temporary differences due to the unpredictability of
taxable profits streams against which the deductible
temporary differences can be utilised in the
foreseeable future.

MR (&

FRA=ZTRILEFE

JEIERIE ()
() KREZELEHREELEE

JERRR | ZF = —FFH

RZZEZ—FX<A=1+H  &&
A 7% #280,893,000 T (=& =
T 7B1280,774,0007t) A A
PR RERB R R RIS E
B BEFREHEEERER T,%
#£36,155,000Tc (=B =T F :
MmammmﬂWuLmﬁﬁ
E o FI&RH9B ¥ 244,738,000 T
(ZZE-FF : #B¥249,263,000
o) AEMAER  BAKRRK
EANNATEEME > TR
REBRBELHRBEE - 3
S RERNBREBTERYE
22,157,000c (Z B 24 : B
28,509,00070) B R AER
BHR o EMhE B A LB IR Bt &
BEBHR o

AEBRUBFEASETHESL
WRME BRERREERE
BiE ZEBER-_ZE-—F
NRAE=ZTHBAXREEELERY
93,382,000t (= =FF : B
79,705,0007T) BV E B E R -
BRREFHATERM » W
T8 R AR R A E R T R =
BOUNTEBRZEERAEL
HEEE -

201



21. Share Capital 21. |BA
(a) Issued share capital (a) BRITEREX
2021 2020
—E-—F —ECEF
Number of Number of
shares shares
RO E R EE
‘000 HK$°000 ‘000 HK$'000
- BT F BT
Ordinary shares, ERITREAR
issued and fully paid: TEK
At 1 July and 30 June RtA—BR
~H=+H 243,354 672,777 243,354 672,777
In accordance with section 135 of the Hong Kong RIEE B (D THEBIY B 1351% » A&
Companies Ordinance, the ordinary shares of the ATEBERITEESEE -
Company do not have a par value.
During the year, the Group purchased its own KEELSTERETROIDE
ordinary shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong AT IS zlgﬁlﬁzﬂx
Kong Limited for the purpose of satisfying the HRERESREAEEEBES
exercise of share options to be granted under the X B AR D 55 1 E BR
Group’s share option scheme as follows: T
For the year ended 30 June 2021: BE-—E-_—E~A=+HLE
=
Number Highest Lowest
of shares price paid price paid Aggregate
purchased per share pershare price paid
=5 C0 =500
BARG BRES BR&E =F-Ch
Month/year /A HE B B wE®
‘000 HK$ HKS$ HK$'000
F BT BT BT
August 2020 —E-ZFNA 128 12.26 11.98 1,549
September 2020 —EZEFNA 261 12.26 12.04 3,183
October 2020 —E-FF+HA 111 12.30 12.00 1,342
November 2020 _q_qi-l- A 62 13.40 12.20 806
December 2020 —E-FEF+-HA 194 14.30 13.44 2,649
January 2021 —E-—-%—A1 61 15.20 14.50 893
February 2021 —E-—-F—A 38 15.50 14.90 577
March 2021 —E-—-F=H 44 16.00 15.20 688
April 2021 —E-—-FMA 28 16.00 15.66 441
May 2021 —EBE-—-FFHA 102 15.80 15.20 1,575
June 2021 B —-FXA 116 15.32 15.00 1,749
1,145 15,452
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2021 HE=-Z—=—

21. Share Capltal (continued)

(a)

FARA=TH

21. A& (@)

L

Issued share capital (continued) (a) CBEITRAEGE)
For the year ended 30 June 2020: BE-Z-_ZF A A=1THLHF
=

Number Highest Lowest
of shares price paid price paid  Aggregate
purchased per share per share price paid

=5 05) 2
AR BRES BREE [=FCh)
Month/year /R g2 EL L BIER
‘000 HK$ HK$ HK$°000
F JBHTT JBHETT BT T
September 2019 —E2-NFhA 130 13.68 12.70 1,735
October 2019 —E-hF+A 75 13.80 13.08 1,003
November 2019 —B-NEF+-—A8 47 14.40 13.90 666
December 2019 :ﬁ—ni-l-—ﬁ 71 14.60 14.30 1,027
January 2020 —E-EF-A 50 15.28 14.60 749
March 2020 —ETEF=RA 150 13.30 11.10 1,848
April 2020 —E-FFNA 55 12.50 12.00 675
May 2020 —EBE-EFHA 41 13.00 12.50 521
June 2020 —EFF XA 83 13.10 12.80 1,078
702 9,302

The considerations of the purchased shares for the BE-E-—ExA=+H1

year ended 30 June 2021 of HK$15,452,000 (2020:
HK$9,302,000) were charged to ESOP reserve.

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are
entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the
Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with
regard to the Company’s residual assets.

As at 30 June 2021, there were 7,009,000 (2020:
5,864,000) ordinary shares acquired and held by the
Group under the ESOP reserve for the purpose of
satisfying the exercise of share options to be granted
to eligible employees.
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For the year ended 30 June 2021 BE—Z=-—H X A=1+HILEE

21. Share Capltal (continued)

204

(b)

Capital management

The Group's primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can continue
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits
for other stakeholders, by pricing products and
services commensurately with the level of risk and by
securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain a balance
between the higher shareholder returns that might
be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the
advantages and security afforded by a sound capital
position, and makes adjustments to the capital
structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure by reviewing
its equity-debt ratio and cashflow requirements,
taking into account of its future financial obligations
and commitments. For this purpose, the Group
defines equity-debt ratio as the ratio of total equity
to net debt. Net debt represents lease liabilities less
cash and short term funds.

21. A& (@)

(b)

EXEH

FEEEREANTIERRRE
RESEEHFEREE  BBH
7= i &2 AR 7% 5 1 B2 L ok 7 4B A8
HEE  UARBBRSEMALE
SRE  KMERSRREMHE
BN AEMAI AR E H R

FEEEBREMHEARBR
AR REE  UERsREH
BRERTUREFEzRSHEEX
FHRHEFNERNRRTRNES
REREZEREGFE  LEEE
BRENSCHERRBELR
)

AEEUESEELRRRESR
EREEBRNMBEERASE
HEREREARBE - BRR
bt AEEEERERLRRATE
RBEREFEBHOLLER - FE
BEfRHEatRRERERE
%o

2021 2020

—E-—F —EEF

HK$’000 HK$°000

BT T BT T

Lease liabilities HEERE 5,212 4,351
Less: Cash and short term funds B BEERERES (1,485,477) (1,529,608)
Net liquid funds FREBES (1,480,265) (1,525,257)
Total equity AR 2,880,665 2,476,897
Equity-debt ratio FEREKLE 100:0 100:0
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2021 BE—Z=-—HA=1+HLEE

Reserves 22. A&
The Company ¥ N
Fair value
Share reserve
Share option (non- Revenue
capital reserve  recycling) reserve Total
BaREE A TEERE
[ g (FAEmE) Wi ke &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFT BT BETT BT BT
At 1 July 2019 R=Z-1%
+tA—H 672,777 1,072 - 1,331,394 2,005,243
Profit for the year REERF - - - 145,305 145,305
Exercise of share options TEZRPERE - (1,150) - (7,770) (8,920)
Equity settled share-based KRB EEZURND A
transactions BB - 78 - - 78
Final dividend paid in BREEEDH
respect of prior year RERE - - - (73,006) (73,006)
Interim dividend paid in BAFESH
respect of current year TR E - - - (34,070) (34,070)
At 30 June 2020 R-EZEF
AA=tH 672,777 - - 1,361,853 2,034,630
At 1 July 2020 R-EZEF
+thA—H 672,777 - - 1,361,853 2,034,630
Profit for the year REERF - - - 255,219 255,219
Equity investments at RAFEES AR
FVOCI - net movementin  2EURZHMIRER
fair value reserve E-QVEEGE
(non-recycling) ZEFE(TIED) - - (5.079) - (5.079)
Transfer of loss on disposal &R A FEES
of equity investments at AR EHB G RER
FVOCI to revenue reserve EuEE = = 9 (9) =
Final dividend paid in BREEERH
respect of prior year RERE - - - (75,440) (75,440)
Interim dividend paid in respect FANERE S 4
of current year FEIRE - - = (36,503) (36,503)
At 30 June 2021 R-ZB=-F
~B=1H 672,777 - (5,070) 1,505,120 2,172,827
HIBE(EB)BRAA | ZEZ—FF W 205
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For the year ended 30 June 2021 HEZZE=-—HAXB=1HILEE

22. Reserves (continued)

206

Nature and purpose of reserves of the Group:

()

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Surplus reserves

Surplus reserves include statutory surplus reserve
and discretionary surplus reserve.

In accordance with Accounting Regulations for
Business Enterprises, foreign investment enterprises
in Mainland China are required to transfer at least
10% of their profit after taxation, as determined
under accounting principles generally accepted in
the PRC (“PRC GAAP") to the statutory surplus
reserve until the balance of the reserve is equal to
50% of their registered capital.

ESOP reserve

The ESOP reserve comprises the purchase
consideration for issued shares of the Company
acquired for the purpose of satisfying the exercise
of share options to be granted to eligible employees
under the Company’s Share Option Scheme.

Share option reserve

Share option reserve comprises the cumulative fair
value of employee services received for the issue of
share options at respective grant date and is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policies in
note 2(q)(ii).

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises: (a) the foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of subsidiaries outside
Hong Kong whose functional currencies are different
from the functional currency of the Company; and
(b) the exchange differences on monetary items
which form part of the Group’s net investment in the
subsidiaries outside Hong Kong. The reserve is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policies set
out in note 2(u).
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23.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2021 HEZZE=-—HAXB=1HILEE

Reserves (continued)

Nature and purpose of reserves of the Group: (continued)
(v) Fair value reserve (non-recycling)

The fair value reserve (non-recycling) comprises the
cumulative net change in the fair value of equity
investments at FVOCI under HKFRS 9 that are held at
the end of the reporting period (see note 2(f)).

(vi) Revenue reserve
The distributable reserves of the Company at 30
June 2021 amounted to HK$1,505,120,000 (2020:
HK$1,361,853,000).

Equity Settled Share-Based
Transactions

Executive Share Option Scheme 2013 (the “ESOS 2013")
was approved by the shareholders of the Company at the
extraordinary general meeting held on 23 April 2013 and
took effect on 25 April 2013 to, among other, allow grant
of options over newly issued shares and/or transfer of
existing shares by a trust of the ESOS 2013 (the "“Trust”)
which was established between the Company and a trustee
of the Trust, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group.

Options granted under the ESOS 2013 are subject to
achievement of performance-based vesting condition. The
option shall lapse on the date the grantee ceased to be an
employee of the Group or the performance-based condition
is not satisfied. Each option gives the holder the right to
subscribe for one ordinary share in the Company and is
settled gross in shares.

As at 1 July 2020, there were no (1 July 2019: 1,035,000)
outstanding options pursuant to the ESOS 2013. During
the years ended 30 June 2021 and 2020, no share options
were vested to the grantees under the ESOS 2013. No share
options granted to the grantees were lapsed or cancelled
during the years ended 30 June 2021 and 2020 and no
(2020: 1,035,000) share options were exercised by the
grantees during the year ended 30 June 2021.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2021 BE—Z=-—H X A=1+HILEE

23. Equity Settled Share-Based 23. BEREEZURG A
Transactions (continued) HERXZw@
(a) The terms and conditions of the grants are (a) BHZGERMEHEDT :
as follows:
ESOS 2013: 20131 R B RERT & ¢
Number of
instruments Contractual
at grant date  Exercisable period life of options
RUPHABEEE TIEHH RBESHH

Options granted to a director:

ARERT-2EE:

- 28 June 2013 (Batch 1) 1,250,000  From the date of notification of entitlement 4 years
-RZE-=EXB=+/\B(#%E1) (“Vesting Date") up to 6 months from
the Vesting Date
RESNEMEARERN(EERAB)ER k3
BEAHEAEARTE
From the 13th month up to the 18th month from 5 years

the Vesting Date
REBRHEET=EAZE T \EAHRETE nE

From the 25th month up to the 30th month from 6 years
the Vesting Date
REBRHEE-_+tREAZE=HEABRENE ~E

- 28 June 2013 (Batch 2) 3,750,000  From the Vesting Date up to 6 months from 4 years
-RZE-ZEXAZT AR the Vesting Date
REBRBEEARTHR E
From the 13th month up to the 18th month from 5 years

the Vesting Date
REBRHEET=EAZE T \EAHRETE nE

From the 25th month up to the 30th month from 6 years
the Vesting Date
REBRHEE_+tREAZE=TREABRENE

Sk
Ty
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For the year ended 30 June 2021 BE—Z=-—HA=1+HLEE

23. Equity Settled Share-Based 23. REGHEEZURG R
Transactions (continued) ERRTZ @)
(a) The terms and conditions of the grants are (@) BHZERNEHENT @ (&)
as follows: (continued)
ESOS 2013: (continued) 2013 MR ABREETE : ()
Number of
instruments Contractual
at grant date  Exercisable period life of options
REBMABERE TIERE ABESHH
Options granted to eligible executives:
ABERTRERTHAR
- 28 June 2013 (Batch 1) 2,400,000 From the Vesting Date up to 6 months from 4 years
-RZB-=EXAZHNBE(HE) the Vesting Date
REBRBEAEARTHE e
From the 13th month up to the 18th month from 5 years
the Vesting Date
REBREBEET=EAZE T \EAHRETE ki
From the 25th month up to the 30th month from 6 years
the Vesting Date
REBRHEE-tEEAZE=HEABBITE ~E
- 28 June 2013 (Batch 2) 7,200,000 From the Vesting Date up to 6 months from 4 years
-RIB-ZEXAZHNE (132) the Vesting Date
REBRBEAEARTHE e
From the 13th month up to the 18th month from 5 years
the Vesting Date
REBRBEET=EAZE T \EABETE ik
From the 25th month up to the 30th month from 6 years
the Vesting Date
REBRHEE-_tEEAZE=HEABBITE ~E
- 26 November 2014 900,000 From the Vesting Date up to 6 months from 3 years
-RZE-WE+-A=+RA the Vesting Date
REBRBEAEARTHE =
From the 13th month up to the 18th month from 4 years
the Vesting Date
REBRHEET=EAZE T \EAHRETE e
From the 25th month up to the 30th month from 5 years
the Vesting Date
REBRHEE-tEEAZE=HEABRITE k2
Total share options granted 15,500,000
RORBEET A5
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For the year ended 30 June 2021 BE—Z=-—H X A=1+HILEE

23. Equity Settled Share-Based 23. BEREEZURG A
Transactions (continued) ERRZ @
(b) The number and weighted average exercise (b) ROZPEBENEE RMNEFH
prices of share options are as follows: TEBWT :
ESOS 2013: 2013 AR BRERTEI
2021 2020
—B--F 2.2
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number of exercise Number of
price options price options
ik R IEF T
18 REEYE T8 REESE
HK$ ‘000 HK$ ‘000
BT F BT F
Outstanding at the REDERBEITHE
beginning of the year - - 4.79 1,035
Exercised during the year RERTTE - - 479 (1,035)
Outstanding at the end RERERBITE
of the year = = - -
Exercisable at the end RERATE
of the year = = - -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R R E S

For the year ended 30 June 2021 BE—Z=-—HA=1+HLEE

23. Equity Settled Share-Based
Transactions (continued)

(c)

23. REREEZ2URNTDA
BERERXZ @

Fair value of share options and (0 RBROAIRBENLATFLEENRR
assumptions
The fair value of services received in return for share ZRBRFRPABEERERE
options granted is measured by reference to the fair NAFEERBZMETIABE
value of share options granted. The estimate of the HWAFEEE - ERERMER
fair value of the share options granted is measured BEANTEERBE M OR—E
based on Black-Scholes model. The contractual life T RS - RODBENS
of the share option is used as an input into this HHARR 2 E R A A o
model.
Fair value of share options and assumptions of ESOS BROREELFLEER2013KH
2013: R BIRE
26 November 2014 20 November 2013 28 June 2013
Grant date RHAH ZR-BE+-AtAR ZB-ZE+-AZR CE-ZERAZTAR
Fair value at measurement date RHERZAYEE HK$0.883 - HK$1.083 HK$1.090 - HK$1.739  HK$0.456 - HK$1.060
BH0.883T-B% 1,083 A%1.090m-B%1.739  ER0.4567-E 1,060
Share price k& HK$6.75 HK$5.75 HK$4.58
6,75 5757 %4587
Exercise price T8 HK$6.80 HK$4.62 HK$4.62
#6807 B4 62T B4 6T
Expected volatility BHRE 26.46% - 27.81% 23.33% - 35.04% 27.20% - 35.99%
Option life DREES 2.6 years - 4.6 years 0.6 year - 5.6 years 1 year - 6 years
26%-4.6% 0.6%-5.6F 15-65
Expected dividend yield BHREE 3.1% 3.1% 3.5%
Risk-free rate EERANZE 0.49% - 1.07% 0.20% - 1.25% 0.24% - 1.37%
(based on Exchange Fund Note) (RENEESEE)

The expected volatility is based on the historic
volatility (calculated based on the weighted average
remaining life of the share options), adjusted for
any expected changes to future volatility based on
publicly available information. Expected dividends
are based on historical dividends. Changes in the
subjective input assumptions could materially affect
the fair value estimate.
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For the year ended 30 June 2021 HEZZE=-—HAXB=1HILEE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24. B EBEER AFE

24. Financial Risk Management and
Fair Values

212

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks
arises in the normal course of the Group's business. The
Group is also exposed to equity price risk arising from its
equity investments in other entities.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below.

(a)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will
default on its contractual obligations resulting in a
financial loss to the Group. The Group’s credit risk
is primarily attributable to trade receivables. The
Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from cash
and short term funds and derivative financial assets
is limited because the counterparties are banks
and financial institutions with a good credit rating,
for which the Group considers to have low credit
risk. The Group invests in debt securities issued by
government with credit ratings A or above as rated
by international credit rating agencies, and has
limits for exposures to individual investment in debt
securities to manage concentration risk. The Group
does not provide any other guarantees which would
expose the Group to credit risk.

Trade receivables

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer rather than the industry or country
in which the customers operate and therefore
significant concentrations of credit risk primarily
arise when the Group has significant exposure to
individual customers. At the end of the reporting
period, 24% (2020: 37%) of the total trade
receivables was due from the Group’s five largest
customers.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R R E S

For the year ended 30 June 2021 HEZZE=-—HAXB=1HILEE

24. Financial Risk Management and
Fair Values (continued)

(a)

Credit risk (continued)
Trade receivables (continued)

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit. These evaluations focus
on the customer’s past history of making payments
when due and current ability to pay, and take into
account information specific to the customer as
well as pertaining to the economic environment in
which the customer operates. Credits are offered
to customers following financial assessments and
established payment records where applicable.
Credit limits are set for all customers and these are
exceeded only with the approval of senior company
officers. Customers considered to be with credit risk
are traded on a cash basis. General credit terms are
payment within 30 to 60 days following the sales
took place. Regular review and follow up actions
are carried out on overdue amounts to minimise
the Group’s exposure to credit risk. Collaterals over
properties are obtained from certain customers.
An ageing analysis of the debtors is prepared on a
regular basis and is closely monitored to minimise
any credit risk associated with these debtors.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs,
which is calculated using a provision matrix. As the
Group’s historical credit loss experience indicates
different loss patterns for different customer
segments, the loss allowance based on past due
status is further distinguished between the Group’s
different customer bases.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2021 BE—Z=-—H X A=1+HILEE

2. MBERBEER N TVE

24. Financial Risk Management and
Fair Values (continued)

214

(a)

B

Credit risk (continued) () FEERKE)
Trade receivables (continued) BESENR (E)
The following table provides information about the TRIEHEBRAEEMREZEW
Group's exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade A EE2EERRNRFBHE
receivables: BEiE 28R
2021 2020
—g--% - 12
Gross Gross
carrying Loss carrying Loss
amount  allowance amount allowance
IREAE EERE IREAE EERE
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFT BE T BT BT T
Current (not past due) BOEA (K@) 273,278 = 285,109 -
Less than 3 months BEDR=EA
past due 17,256 (12) 24,182 -
More than 3 months BIHERE R =18 A
past due 810 (348) 1,278 (410)
291,344 (360) 310,569 (410)

The calculation reflects the probability-weighted
outcome of expected credit losses and is adjusted
to reflect differences between economic conditions
during the period over which the historic data has
been collected, current conditions and also forward-
looking information including the Group’s view of
economic conditions over the expected lives of the
receivables.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2021 BE—Z=-—HA=1+HLEE

24. Financial Risk Management and
Fair Values (continued)

(a)

(b)

24. I EBEERAFE
=0

Credit risk (continued) () EERGE)
Trade receivables (continued) B S ENARR (&)
Movement in the loss allowance account in respect AEEEZRERWERR ZEBERE
of trade receivables during the year is as follows: AEREMD 2 Z BT ¢
2021 2020
—E-—F —ECEF
HK$°000 HK$°000
BET T BT T
At beginning of year F4) 410 556
Amounts written off during the year REEMESEE (90) (224)
Loss allowance recognised during REEEFBERBERR
the year 2 93
(88) (131)
Exchange adjustments [ 5 A% 38 (15)
At end of year FR 360 410
Liquidity risk (b) REBELEMR
The Group closely monitors its liquidity and financial AEBZYERERBESE
resources to ensure that a healthy financial position BER » UEREFERNE K
is maintained such that cash inflows from operating MR FRELEEBNEBR
activities together with un-drawn banking facilities T BREARBANRITERE
are sufficient to meet the requirements for loan B RUEMNEBEENR - BHEZE
repayments, daily operational needs, capital 2 EBEXET UREBRFEBER
expenditure, as well as potential business expansion BRENEBETESEE -
and development.
The Group reviews its strategy from time to time AEBABRITEVBERE - B
to ensure that cost-efficient funding is available to HWEEHEERARZENRHER
cater for the unique operating environment of each ¥ UEEHEBLARBENEE
subsidiary. RIE o
Banking facilities available to Group companies and AHAEEERZRRERZERIT
not yet drawn as at 30 June 2021 amounted to MER-_Z-_—F<A=+H53
HK$610 million (2020: HK$611 million). 7 #610,000000 T (=B ==&
F : #B%611,000,0007T) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2021 BE—Z=-—H X A=1+HILEE

24, I ERBEERAFE
B

24. Financial Risk Management and
Fair Values (continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued)

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of
the Group’s financial liabilities, which are based
on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including
interest payments computed using contractual rates
or, if floating, based on rates prevailing at the end of
the reporting period) and the earliest date the Group
can be required to pay:

(b)

RBEERRE)

TREJ A EEEHEENRS
MR B ZBTENEHA 8T
BHRIABANRENRFTRRS
RE(BEFMANER R (fF
BIEHREML AEANFRTE
Z A BT AR A R E AT 5 2R
Rz &RE AHE

2021
“E--F
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
ANARBERLR

Within ~ More than ~ More than

Carrying Tyearor  1yearbut 2 years but
amount  ondemand within 2 years within 5 years Total

—FR —EHE RERL
A gk ERENR BEENR At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B¥Tr B¥Tr B¥Tr B¥Tr B¥Tr
Trade payables ERRAER 408,006 408,006 - - 408,006
Other payables and accruals HitEAERRETER 297,583 297,583 - - 297,583
Lease liabilities HERE 5212 35M 1,352 562 5,485
710,801 709,160 1,352 562 711,074

2020
-g-3%
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
RORERRER

Within More than More than

Carrying 1 year or Tyearbut 2 years but
amount  ondemand within 2 years  within 5 years Total

-ER —ENE RERL
FEE g EmEMAR BEENR ait
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$000
¥R BRI BRI BRI BRI
Trade payables BAEMERR 313,394 313,394 - - 313,394
Other payables and accruals Bt ENRI R ETER 311,554 311,554 - - 311,554
Lease liabilities HESE 4,351 2,920 940 707 4,567
629,299 627,868 940 707 629,515
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2021 BE—Z=-—HA=1+HLEE

24. Financial Risk Managementand 24. IR EREER A FLE

Fair Values (continueq) E(,{%}
(c) Interest rate risk () FI=mEps
(i) Interest rate profile (i) FIFEHER
The following table details the interest TRFVNRREHLB >
rate profile of the Group's interest earning rEEZHESREER
financial assets and interest bearing financial TESREERRER

liabilities at the end of the reporting period:

2021 2020
—E--F —ETEF
Effective Effective
interest Carrying interest Carrying
rate p.a. amount rate p.a. amount
BREFI= REE BRFAN=E IREE
% HK$’000 % HK$'000
BT T BT T
Fixed rate financial assets/ TE&R
(liabilities): BE/ (1) :
Deposits with banks RITERER 1.65 1,141,936 2.36 1,231,791
Debt securities B ES 2.64 67,669 - -
Lease liabilities HEAE 4.98 (5,212) 477 (4,351)
1,204,393 1,227,440
Variable rate financial BESRMEE .
assets:
Cash at bank RITIER 1.30 221,071 1.27 258,929
Total &t 1,425,464 1,486,369
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For the year ended 30 June 2021 BE—Z=-—H X A=1+HILEE

2. MBERBEER N TVE

24. Financial Risk Management and
Fair Values (continued)

218

() Interest rate risk (continued)

(i)

Sensitivity analysis

At 30 June 2021, it is estimated that general
increase/decrease of 0 to 14 basis points
(2020: 0 to 7 basis points) in interest rates for
the Group'’s interest earning financial assets
denominated in various currencies, mainly
Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi and United
States dollars, with all other variables held
constant, would have increased/decreased
the Group’s profit for the year and revenue
reserve by approximately HK$541,000 (2020:
HK$157,000).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group’s profit
after tax (and revenue reserve) that would
arise assuming that the change in interest
rates had occurred at the end of the reporting
period and had been applied to re-measure
those financial instruments held by the
Group which expose the Group to fair value
interest rate risk at the end of the reporting
period. In respect of the exposure to cash
flow interest rate risk arising from floating
rate non-derivative instruments held by the
Group at the end of the reporting period, the
impact on the Group's profit after tax (and
revenue reserve) is estimated as an annualised
impact on interest income of such a change
in interest rates. The analysis is performed on
the same basis as for 2020.

B

() F=EbE)

(i)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2021 BE—Z=-—HA=1+HLEE

24. Financial Risk Management and
Fair Values (continued)

(d)

Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily
through sales and purchases which give rise to
receivables, payables and cash balances that are
denominated in a foreign currency, i.e. a currency
other than the functional currency of the operations
to which the transactions relate. The currencies
giving rise to this risk are primarily United States
dollars (“US$"), Renminbi (“RMB"), Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$"), Macau Patacas ("MOP"), New
Zealand dollars (“NZD") and Euro (“EUR").

(i) Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group's
exposure at the end of the reporting period
to currency risk arising from recognised assets
or liabilities denominated in a currency other
than the functional currency of the entity to
which they relate. Differences resulting from
the translation of the financial statements
of operations outside Hong Kong into the
Group's presentation currency and exposure
arising from inter-company balances which
are considered to be in the nature of interest
in subsidiaries are excluded.

24. I EBEERAFE
=0
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2021 BE—Z=-—H X A=1+HILEE

24. Financial Risk Managementand 24. IR EREER A FLE

Fair Values (continued) BHa
(d) Currency risk (continued) (d) E¥mEbsE)
(i) Exposure to currency risk (continued) (i) FRFZIMNE R R (4E)

Exposure to foreign currencies (expressed in original currency)
AEZHNERR(UREME)
2021
—E--F
HK$'000  RMB'000  US$'000  MOP'000  NZS$'000  EUR'000
BRI ARBFr  Enfn RfRFa AERETT  BiTh

Trade and other receivables &5 Kk EtEWER 324 - 79 - - -
Cash and short term funds B4R EHES 406 15,465 6,298 - 3 -
Trade and other payables B 5 R EMEMFER - - (2,917) - (1,555) -
Amounts due from group ~ FEREBAFFE

companies 15,867 1,670 - 6,099 - -

Gross exposure arising ERALERARERE
from recognised assets and  FIERAIEELE

liabilities 16,597 17,135 3,460 6,099 (1,552) -
Notional amounts of foreign A FEEABHZ

exchange forward SHNERBSHAN

contracts at fair value 2EEH

through profit or loss - - = - 1387 395

Net exposure arising from ~ SREEREBELY
recognised assets and el

liabilities 16,597 17,135 3,460 6,099 (165) 395
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2021 BE—Z=-—HA=1+HLEE

24. Financial Risk Managementand 24. IR EREER A FLE

Fair Values (continued) =N
(d) Currency risk (continued) (d) E¥mEbsE)
(i) Exposure to currency risk (continued) (i) RFZIMNE R (4E)

Exposure to foreign currencies (expressed in original currency)
AENERR(AREHEHE)
2020
“R0EF
HK$'000  RMB'000  US$'000  MOP'000  NZ§'000  EUR'000
BETn ARBTr  Enfn ROEFn AERETT  Baitn

Trade and other receivables &5 Kk EtEWER - - 112 - - -
Other non-current assets ~ EfiFRBEE - - - - - 1,184
Cash and short term funds B4R EHES 510 13,875 12,980 - 49 -
Trade and other payables ~ EZ R EMEFER (62) - (2,044) - (320) -
Amounts due from/(to) /(B ERAT

group companies B 26,151 (22) - 5,336 - -

Gross exposure arising BRREEREBEL

from recognised assets and  {ERAIELEE

liabilities 26,599 13,853 11,048 5336 (271) 1,184
Notional amounts of foreign RATEE:T ABHZ

exchange forward contracts SNERHAHH

at fair value through profit &

or loss - - 7,726 - - 1,964

Net exposure arising from ~ SREEREBEEZ
recognised assets and et
liabilities 26,599 13,853 18,774 5,336 (27) 3,148
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2021 BE—Z=-—H X A=1+HILEE

24. Financial Risk Management and
Fair Values (continued)

24, I ERBEERAFE
B

(d) Currency risk (continued) d) EB¥EKE)
(i)  Sensitivity analysis (i) HBEZIT
The following table indicates the TREY HEREBRIR
instantaneous changes in the Group’s profit EHARBFrmE ERER
after tax (and revenue reserve) that would ZINEEER  NEZ B EW
arise if foreign exchange rates to which BrESHAEBRERE
the Group has significant exposure at the a A (R &= % ) 2 B B
end of the reporting period had changed at #E - WERIRMBEEME
that date, assuming all other risk variables P BRI o
remained constant.
2021 2020
—E--F S 223
Increase/ Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in profit (decrease) in profit
in foreign after tax in foreign after tax
exchange and revenue exchange  and revenue
rates reserve rates reserve
BRI BREBERIR
HNEEER K& e HNEEE K& fE
ER/(TH)  #i/(RD)  LH/(TH)  #in/(6D)
% HK$000 % HK$'000
BETT BETT
HKS$ AR® @2.11) (263) (1.31) (153)
RMB g 2.1 363 131 166
us$ Er 0.05 21 0.28 495
MOP ks (2.11) (94) (1.31) (51)
NZ$ il L 4.13 (51) 033 (3)
EUR £V 2.23 82 2.80 691

222

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited | Annual Report 2021



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2021 HEZZE=-—HAXB=1HILEE

24. Financial Risk Management and
Fair Values (continued)

(d)

(e)

Currency risk (continued)
(ii) Sensitivity analysis (continued)

Results of the analysis as presented in the
above table represent an aggregation of the
instantaneous effects on each of the Group
entities’ profit or loss after tax and revenue
reserve measured in the respective functional
currencies, translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the exchange rate ruling at the end of the
reporting period for presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the
change in foreign exchange rates had
been applied to re-measure those financial
instruments held by the Group which expose
the Group to foreign currency risk at the
end of the reporting period. The analysis is
performed on the same basis as for 2020.

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising
from equity securities measured at FVOCI (see note
14).

All of the Group’s equity securities are listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and are held
for investment yield enhancement purpose. Equity
securities have been chosen based on their dividend
yield track records. Equity securities are subject
to asset allocation limits to control appropriate
risks and the limits are reviewed from time to time
based on the latest market situation as well as the
Group's liquidity needs. The portfolio size is regularly
reviewed and the price movements are closely
monitored with appropriate actions taken when
required. Internal reporting mechanism is strictly
implemented for treasury management.

At 30 June 2021, it is estimated that an increase/
decrease of 18% in the market value of the Group’s
equity securities at FVOCI, with all other variables
held constant, would have increased/decreased the
Group's total equity by HK$14,750,000.
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24. Financial Risk Management and
Fair Values (continued)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R R E

For the year ended 30 June 2021 BE—Z=-—H X A=1+HILEE

24, I ERBEERAFE
B

(f) Fair value measurement (f)

(i)

Financial assets and liabilities measured
at fair value

The following table presents the fair value of
the Group’s financial instruments measured
at the end of the reporting period on a
recurring basis, categorised into the three-
level fair value hierarchy as defined in
HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The
level into which a fair value measurement is
classified is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs
used in the valuation technique as follows:

- Level 1 valuations: Fair value
measured using only Level 1 inputs
i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or
liabilities at the measurement date.

- Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured
using Level 2 inputs i.e. observable
inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and
not using significant unobservable
inputs. Unobservable inputs are
inputs for which market data are not
available.

- Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured
using significant unobservable inputs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2021 BE—Z=-—HA=1+HLEE

24. Financial Risk Managementand 24. IR EREER A FLE

Fair Values (continued) =N
(f)  Fair value measurement (continued) f) DAFEEEFERE)
(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured ) UNFEEFTEZEHRE
at fair value (continued) EREE(E)
201 2020
8-f 2

level1  Level2  Level3 Total  levell  Llevel2  Level3 Total
08 E@H E=4M T I R 5] ait
HKS'000 ~ HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000
BETT  BETT BETnT BEFn BEFn BEFn BETn HETa

Recurring fair value measurements ~ EEHATEREIE

Assets EE

Other finandial assets: AfEREE:

- Fquity securities designated at VOCI - KERATBETARA

ENENREES 81,045 - - s - - - -

- Club membership -ef - 815 - 815 - m - m

Derivative financial instruments: fTESRIA:

- Foreign exchange forward contracts -INEEECR = = = - - 584 - 584

81,945 815 - 82760 - 1,356 - 135

Liability 1

Derivative financial instruments: fHERIA:

- Foreign exchange forward contracts - NEEEAR - 40 - 40 - 114 - 14
During the years ended 30 June 2021 and BE-ZE-—FR=-ZT=
2020, there were no transfers between EERNA=Z1THLEE >
Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into or 5B — AR BIBEE — AR B2

REBR  WRBAEADS
BHE=RG - AEBK

out of Level 3. The Group's policy is to

recognise transfers between levels of fair FEANBRIER A R
value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting LHIRBERANFEEBER
period in which they occur. B o
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2. MBERBEER N TVE

24. Financial Risk Management and
Fair Values (continued)

226

(f) Fair value measurement (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Valuation techniques and inputs used in
Level 2 fair value measurements

The fair value of club membership in Level
2 are determined using market comparison
approach by reference to quoted prices in an
active market of financial assets similar to the
instrument being valued, adjusted for factors
unigue to the instrument being valued.

The fair value of foreign exchange forward
contracts in Level 2 is determined based on
quotes from market makers or alternative
participants supported by observable inputs
including spot and forward exchange rates.

Fair value of financial assets and
liabilities carried at other than fair value

All other significant financial assets and
liabilities are carried at amounts not
materially different from their fair values as at
30 June 2021 and 2020. It is not meaningful
to disclose the fair value of non-trade
balances with subsidiaries because there is no
fixed term of repayment.

B

) LDVEESEE

(ii)

(iii)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R R E S

For the year ended 30 June 2021 HE=-ZT=—

25. Commitments

FRAZTHLEFE

25. AiE

(a)  Capital commitments outstanding at the end of the (@) AEERBEHKBEUTER
reporting period not provided for in the financial FRYE R B AR R 1 B B4
statements were as follows:

2021 2020
—B-—f —E2CEF
HK$’000 HK$°000
BEFT BHEF T
Capital expenditure authorised and CRENCTNZ
contracted for EREX 46,988 52,760
Capital expenditure authorised but not B EREBARTHZ
contracted for =N 61,208 157,845
In addition, the Group was committed at 30 June oy REBR-_FE-—F A
2021 to enter into new leases of 2 to 3 years that =+ HABIEKRBABH=-F
are not yet commenced, the lease payments under =FEHHBEE EEBEENERE
which amounted to HK$327,000 per annum (2020: HEBFEAEE327,000t(=ZE=F
nil). ¢ D) o
(b) At 30 June 2021, the Group had several non- (b) RZZBE=Z—-FXA=+H 4%

cancellable purchase orders for raw materials with
its suppliers with an amount of HK$899,400,000
(2020: HK$754,566,000).

MR (&

JERRR | ZF = —FFH

) B2 EL B P ] 3 Bk S T BUH
HRMBIERIBETE > SEABY
899,400,000t (ZE_FF :
#B#E754,566,0007T) ©
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26. Related party transactions

228

(a)

(b)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R R E

For the year ended 30 June 2021 BE—Z=-—H X A=1+HILEE

Key management personnel remuneration (a)

Remuneration for key management personnel,
including amounts paid to the Company’s directors
and certain of the highest paid employees is
disclosed in note 9 to the consolidated financial
statements. Total remuneration is included in “staff

26. BERAEALTZRS

FTEEE ASEHM

FTEEBAEZHMH  BEXM
FARRAEERETHEESH
BENGREMBERRMTOWER
B o FENAEERC T A TR T RA
W (RFEE7) -

costs” (note 7).
Material transactions with related parties (b) BEALTEARRS
Nature of transactions XEME 2021 2020
=F=—F —F-FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Management fee expenses to fellow EEBEYHTRZA
subsidiaries (note (i) BB D B (ML) 13,823 13,189
Purchase of goods from a fellow BIEEGIEAG
subsidiary (note (ii)) BB (HaEi) 34,745 11,849
Notes: Biat -

)

On 3 July 2020, a master services agreement
(the “Master Services Agreement”) was entered
into by the Company and its subsidiaries with
Guoline Group Management Company Pte.
Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Hong Leong
Company (Malaysia) Berhad (“"HLCM"), the
ultimate holding company of the Company at the
time (see note 28), for the provision by the latter
of management services including, among other
things, overview and/or oversight of businesses
and operations, investment management and
financial management disciplines, treasury and
risk management, key managerial recruitment and
retention as well as other operating practices and
procedures, accounting, corporate advisory, legal,
company secretarial and other services.

The Master Services Agreement is for a term of

three financial years from 1 July 2020 to 30 June
2023.

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited | Annual Report 2021
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26. Related Party Transactions

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R R E S

For the year ended 30 June 2021 BE—Z=-—HA=1+HLEE

26. BREEATZRZ @)

(continued)

(b)

(c)

Material transactions with related parties
(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(i) On 29 August 2019, LS Synalife Trading Company
Limited (“LS Synalife”, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company) entered into the distribution
agreement (the “Distribution Agreement”) with
Manuka Health New Zealand Limited (“MHNZ", an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Guoco Group
Limited which in turn is an indirect subsidiary of
HLCM at the time), pursuant to which MHNZ has
agreed to appoint LS Synalife as the distributor to
distribute the full range of the products of MHNZ
(the "Products”) via certain online channels in the
PRC for the period from 1 July 2019 to 30 June
2020.

On 27 March 2020, a master distribution
agreement (the “Master Distribution Agreement”)
was entered into by the Company with MHNZ
to extend the distributorship of the Distribution
Agreement to a wider geographic and channel
coverage for the distribution of the Products of any
MHNZ and its subsidiaries by the Company and its
subsidiaries in the PRC and such other jurisdictions
as the parties may agree from time to time.

The Master Distribution Agreement is for a term
from 27 March 2020 to 30 June 2022.

Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to
connected transactions

The related party transactions in respect of
management fee expenses and purchase of goods
above constitute continuing connected transactions
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The
disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules are provided in section “Connected
Transactions” of the Directors’ Report.

mIE(ES)BERAR | —F=—

(b)

(c)

FFHR

EXRBEALRS (#)

Hiet ()

(i) RZZB-AENA=+HA
FLUEBZAERAT([HE
B AT zEEMBLT)
E2Manuka Health New Zealand
Limited (TMHNZ] » BB E
EERARZEZEZENRBEL
5 MESEEERATEE
ABHICMz BEKBAR)ET
JaERE(oHERED o B
o MHNZEIZZEFLHES
2 R=F—hELB—
HEE-Z-_ZTFXA=1+H
IHHAR]  RPEERETH L
EERESHEMHNZIZRER
(TERD -

R-BEZZBE=-A=++H
RN B EEMHNZET 3 £ 2 85 1
#E(E28HED  UERS
EHET 2O EEEEEREZ
Rt R RIE » BALQTIRE
B BB R T4 77 T &E
TEHBENEMEEEED
EAMHNZIIE S ©

IR HEHBRESNPR-Z ==
FZA-t+tHEE=Z=C

FXA=tHILE-
FREBRERXZZ2LHmREAZE

Rtk

REAEREIHRRBENRZ
BREATZRZBREHRR
BUART ZHFERERS - £h
RAFAATREZREERNE
EEREANBERS |—&8HiiE
fit o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2021 BE—Z=-—H X A=1+HILEE

27. Company - Level Statement of 27. A RIEEN MR R
Financial Position

2021 2020
—E-—F —ECEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BEFT
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BENRE 187 230
Interest in subsidiaries MB D alER 1,063,755 885,346
Amounts due from subsidiaries AL NG B 638,277 966,760
Other financial assets HihemEE 81,945 -
1,784,164 1,852,336
Current assets REEE
Other receivables Hh W AR 1,871 1,882
Cash and short term funds RENEHRES 519,490 346,370
521,361 348,252
Current liabilities FEBEE
Other payables and accruals Hit SRR ETTE A 18,098 17,243
Tax payables FERBEFR 140 -
18,238 17,243
Net current assets BEREBEE 503,123 331,009
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBEE 2,287,287 2,183,345
Non-current liabilities ERBAE
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEH B A TR IE 114,460 148,715
NET ASSETS BEE 2,172,827 2,034,630
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EeNEHE
Share capital (note 21) BRAS(BitaF21) 672,777 672,777
Reserves (note 22) R (ffaF22) 1,500,050 1,361,853
TOTAL EQUITY ez 2,172,827 2,034,630
Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors KHEEENR _Z-_—F/\B=+=H
on 23 August 2021. HERERETIZ -
WONG Cho Fai =HE CHEW Seong Aun Bz
DIRECTOR ) DIRECTOR )

230 Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited | Annual Report 2021



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2021 BE—Z=-—HA=1+HLEE

28. Immediate and Ultimate Holding
Company

At 30 June 2021, the Company’s immediate holding
company is Guoline International Limited, which is
incorporated in Bermuda. With the completion of an
internal restructuring exercise on 16 April 2021, the
directors consider that the Company’s ultimate holding
company is GuolLine Capital Assets Limited, a company
incorporated in Jersey, replacing Hong Leong Company
(Malaysia) Berhad, a company incorporated in Malaysia, as
its ultimate holding company. These entities do not produce
financial statements available for public use.

28.

EERERERAR

R-ZZEZ—FXA=1+AH XA27W
B E# KR 2D 7 A Guoline International
Limited » —ERBRFETMAILH D
Ao BEE_E-_—FNA+ BRI
BAIEZERE  ESRALXLTAN
B & #:R 2 8 A Guoline Capital Assets
Limited » —EEZFETMRIZAAF -
EX & Hong Leong Company (Malaysia)
Berhad » —REIMABRA T FMA LD
A RBERELERAT - EL(ERR
B BHmRAMAREA -

MIE(ER)BRAR | B - —F 5, 231



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2021 BE—Z=-—H X A=1+HILEE

29. Possible Impact of Amendments,

232

New Standards and Interpretations
Issued but not yet effective for
the year ended 30 June 2021

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments and a new
standard, HKFRS 17, Insurance contracts, which are not
yet effective for the year ended 30 June 2021 and which
have not been adopted in these financial statements. These
developments include the following which may be relevant
to the Group.

29. BHE=-E=-Z—F 5 H

THILEFECEME
o RAER 2 RIEFT - F
H’J“EEJ&%EEJ‘H*EE

BELEUBEBERTEAH  FBEF
MASCHEMSZERBE-ZR-—FX
B=1THLEFEERERBELENHR
RERRB2ZETR—BHTEL - &
BUBREERET LR RESH]
ERAREAKEAEZBRAOT

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
BT B B bR
BmzETBBEX

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Reference to the Conceptual Framework

BBPBMEEREIN 2B [ 2ERSER ]

Amendments to HKAS 16,

Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use

BRERTERE16R BT (% - BERRE - FREMAR

Amendments to HKAS 37, Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

BBETEREITN B [EEEN - BITEHNZRA

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle
EBVBREEN - N\FE_Z_TFREBFELRE

Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current

BRETERE 1R 2R [ RBBERBEED

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these developments is expected to be in
the period of initial application. So far it has concluded that
the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact
on the consolidated financial statements.

ESEIN

1 January 2022
—E-Z%—-H—H

1 January 2022

1E | —EB--§—-F—H

1 January 2022
s

1 January 2022
—EB-§—-F—H

1 January 2023
—Z-=%—-HF—H

REBEFGEZEETRNRERNRD
2R E  -BREAAL  KAZRE
BIRBTEHAEEGEMBRRE
LEREE -
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The following list contains particulars of principal subsidiaries at 30

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

TENE QT

At30June 2021 RZZEZ-—FXA=+H

R-BZ-—FXA=ZTHETEMBELATFEEN

June 2021: T :
Place of incorporation/ Effective
Particulars of establishment and percentage of
Name of company issued capital operation equity holding Principal activities Notes
RRER BRTZRTHE EREE RERERIL TEEH i3
Group  Company
58  A4q
Changzhou Lam Soon Edible Oils  RMB40,000,000 The People’s Republic of 100 - Manufacturing and trading of N1
Company Limited AEK#40,000,000 China specialty fats products
ENEIEREERA PEARLAE BERREREERES
Lam Soon Edible Oils Holdings 2 ordinary shares Hong Kong 100 - Investment holding
Limited (formerly known as WREBR BB REER
Gladko Industries Limited)
HIERREERERA R
(AWESEXARAR)
Guangzhou Lam Soon HK$21,000,000 The People’s Republic of 100 - Manufacturing and trading of N1
Homecare Products Limited 78#21,000,0007 China home care products
BNEIEEZRRERAR EARLANE FEEEEREERES
Hong Kong Flour Mills Limited 100 ordinary shares Hong Kong 100 - Provision of trucks rental service
BEERRERAR 10,000 deferred shares &3 and investment holding
100REBR RUEETHERREER
10,000 R EER
Jiangsu Lam Soon Flour Mills US$7,000,000 The People’s Republic of 100 - Manufacturing and trading of N1
Company Limited 7,000,000% 7t China flour products
IHERERERA HEARANE BRERLERES
Jiangsu Lam Soon Food US$10,000,000 The People’s Republic of 100 - Manufacturing and trading of N7
Company Limited 10,000,000% 7T China flour products
THEIERRARAF hEARLNE BREREERES
Lam Soon (China) Holdings US$1 British Virgin Islands/ 100 - Investment holding
Company Limited [E Hong Kong REER
RESEREE/ES
Lam Soon Cleaning & Caring 2 ordinary shares Hong Kong 100 - Trading of home care products
Laboratories (Hong Kong) UREBR Bk FEEEERES
Company Limited
HIEEREEME (FR)ERLT
Lam Soon Distribution 400,000 ordinary shares  Hong Kong 100 100 Trading of edible oils products
(International) Limited 400,000 Z &R BE RAHERES
MBS # (B ERAT
HIE(BEB)ERAR | ZS—FF#K 233



Name of company

NAEB

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
TENE QT

At30June 2021 RZZEZ—FXA=+1H

Particulars of
issued capital

ERTZRARE

Place of incorporation/
establishment and
operation

AR EE A

Effective
percentage of
equity holding
RERREIL

Notes

Principal activities

Lam Soon Food Industries
(BVI) Limited

Lam Soon Food Supply
Company Limited

HERREERRAR

Lam Soon Food Supply (Macau)
Company Limited

HERRAE(RM)ERLT

Lam Soon Home Care Products
Holdings Limited (formerly known
as Lam Soon (Pan Yu) Industries
Company Limited)

HEREERERERERAR
(AIERIE(ER) IXERAR)

Lam Soon Products Supply
(Hong Kong) Company Limited
HEERMLE(FE)ERAT

Lam Soon Realty Limited

HELERRLR

Lam Soon (Shandong) Food
Company Limited
HEILR)RRERAT

Lam Soon (Sichuan) Food
Company Limited

HE(mIDRRERAT

Lam Soon Silos Investments Limited

HERRREARLA

Lam Soon Systems Limited
RIEZAERAF

234

HK$ 11,858,415
iBH11,858,4157

1,000 ordinary shares
500,000 deferred shares
1,000REBR

500,000 BB R

MOP25,000

P9 #25,0007

2 ordinary shares
UREBER

1,000,000 ordinary shares
1,000,000 ZBR

2 ordinary shares
UREBER

US$10,113,100
10,113,100£ 7t

US$7,000,000
7,000,000% 7T

2 ordinary shares
IREER

2 ordinary shares
UREBER

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited | Annual Report 2021

British Virgin Islands
EBERARES

Hong Kong
&8

Macau

P

Hong Kong
&k

Hong Kong
&k

Hong Kong
&k

The People’s Republic of
China
HEARLNE

The People’s Republic of
China
hEARLNE

Hong Kong
&8

Hong Kong
B

Group  Company

i d. ]

100

100

100

100

100

100

v oA

100

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

REER

Trading of flour, edible oils and
home care products
Y RRRRFEEEERES

Investment holding

REER

Manufacturing of edible oils and
trading of flour, edible oils and
agency products

RRABEERER RAMR
REERES

Property holding, the provision of
warehousing and logistic services
and licenses of factory canteen

NERE - RERRANARER
IRREHRER

Manufacturing and trading of N7
flour products

BNERLERES

Manufacturing and trading of N7
flour products
BRERLERES

Investment holding

REER

Provision of information
technology services

REERNERS



PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
TENE QT

At30June 2021 R=ZE=—FX<A=t+H

Place of incorporation/ Effective
Particulars of establishment and percentage of
Name of company issued capital operation equity holding Principal activities Notes
RREW BRTZRAHE EMREEHH RERERIL TEEY it
Group  Company
25H  AAH
Lam Soon Trademark Limited Us$2 Cook Islands/ 100 - Trademark holding
VES Hong Kong BEEE
NREE/BE

LS SynaLife Trading 2 ordinary shares Hong Kong 100 - Trading and distribution of

Company Limited UREBR B products and investment holding
FEEESERAT ESRABERRREER
LS SynaLife Trading (Shanghai) RMB7,000,000 The People’s Republic of 100 - Trading and distribution of NT

Company Limited AK%7,000,000 China products
BEEHE (LB)ERAR PEARLNE EARAHER
Richly Choice Development Us$1 British Virgin Islands 100 100 Provision of trustee services

(PTC) Limited 127 EBERARES RIETRE
Shekou Lam Soon Flour Mills US$27,500,000 The People’s Republic of 100 - Manufacturing and trading of N7

Company Limited 27,500,000% China flour products
RORRERBRAR HEARLAE BREREERES
Shekou Lam Soon Silo US$9,500,000 The People’s Republic of 100 - Provision of silo facilities NT

Company Limited 9,500,000% 7 China REERRE
LNEEHRERAR HEARLNE
Shenzhen Lam Soon Edible Oils US$12,000,000 The People’s Republic of 100 - Manufacturing and trading of N7

Company, Limited 12,000,000% T China edible oils products
Ry BB R A B hEARLANE RABEREERES
Note: Kt -
N1 These subsidiaries are registered as wholly foreign-owned N1 ZEMBATRRTEEEUINIEBEECEER

enterprises under the PRC laws. i
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5-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
LFEMBERE

The summaries of results, assets and liabilities of the Group and AEEBEREGHREENEE BEEREEBER
total equity attributable to equity shareholders of the Company for ARATRREGAESZREZNT -
the last five financial years are as follows:

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
—®-—% -¥-PF -F-hE —F-\F —F-tf
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M

EEEET BYXEET EWEEn EFEET EFEET

Results £

Revenue LN 5,761 5119 5,316 5,374 4,814

Operating profit before interest,  RIIBRFIE « B1E -

taxation, depreciation and NERBHENZEET

amortisation 457 436 433 428 369
Profit for the year REERF 358 317 340 326 273
Assets and liabilities EERERE
Non-current assets FRBEE 917 692 725 684 698
Net current assets FRBERE 1,981 1,806 1,622 1,491 1,209
Non-current liabilities E = (17) (21 (12) (5) (1
Non-controlling interests IS - - (11) (1) (11
Equity attributable to AARRRIEL AR

shareholders of the Company 2,881 2,477 2,324 2,159 1,895
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